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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Yilin
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
Mr. Liu Yan Chee, James
(appointed on 26 April 2017)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang
(appointed on 28 April 2017)
Mr. Wu Hongquan (Chairman)
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)

Ms. Li Yali

(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng

(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (appointed on | October 2016)
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory

(resigned with effect from | October 2016)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Ho Ming

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (Chairman)
(appointed on | October 2016)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory
(resigned with effect from | October 2016)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Zhang Xianlin (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (appointed on | October 2016)
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory

(resigned with effect from | October 2016)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (appointed on | October 2016)
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory
(resigned with effect from | October 2016)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Yilin, aged 48, was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 23 January 2015. Mr. Huang graduated from The Institute
of Finance and Economics of Radio and Television (BRI ELT) in
1992 and is engaged in management related works since graduation.
During the past years, Mr. Huang was the general manager of Shantou
Sanye Plastic Company Limited CIIZET = ZE KB R AF]) Shenzhen
China Investment Company Limited (RYITAHEEEFR A A]) Shenzhen
Rihuisheng Group Company Limited (%TEJ‘JH?ﬁEl RSB ABRAT]) and
Shenzhen Hongxun Investment Company Limited (F&IITBIZE IR
A A]) respectively and has extensive theoretical knowledge and practical
experience in corporate modern management.

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith, aged 56, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 23 January 2015 and as the members of
each of the nomination committee and remuneration committee of the
Company on 30 January 2015. He was also appointed as (i) an authorized
representative of the Company under The Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Authorised
Representative”) and (ii) the authorized representative of the Company for
the purpose of accepting service of process and notices in Hong Kong (the
“Process Agent”) on 23 January 2015.

Mr. Chan has over 30 years of experience in finance, investment and
management and worked in different sectors such as insurance, bullion and
foreign exchange investment, project mergers and acquisitions, corporate
consulting services and fund investment. Mr. Chan was the regional
manager of American International Assurance Company (Bermuda) Limited
CERAEFHRBR(BRE)BMR AT from 1984 to 1992 and senior vice
president of Emperor Financial Services Group (2% g5 &) from 1992
to 1994. Since then, he founded Top Gun Investment Limited, his self-
financing financial investment company, in 1994 and was the president
until 2013. Top Gun provides corporate planning and consulting services
to enterprises in listing, project investments (especially in real estate and
new energy industry), corporate finance and solicitation of business. From
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

2013 to date, Mr. Chan founded TIEN Credit Limited and is a director. This
company provides different financial credit services to institutional clients
and corporate shareholders, especially to listed corporate shareholders.
From 2013 to 2015, Mr. Chan was also the chairman of the board and
executive director of Hong Kong TIEN Group and the president and
executive director of China New Energy Group Holdings Limited since
2013, responsible for fund management, including new energy industry
fund and securities investment fund. Moreover, from 2013 to 2015, Mr.
Chan had also set up fund management company and industrial merger and
acquisition fund in China.

Mr. Liu Yan Chee, James, aged 47/, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 26 April 2017. He has over 20 years of
experience in finance and accounting. Since January 2014, he has been
a director of Special Fine Investment and Management Ltd, a company
principally engaged in fund management business. In February 1994,
he graduated from Dalhousie University in Canada with a Bachelor of
Commerce. Mr. Liu is an independent non-executive director of Luen
Wong Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8217).

Mr. Chan Yuk Sang, aged 71, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 28 April 2017. He has more than 30 years of experience
in the banking and finance industry. He was the chairman of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (Stock Code: 79) from September 1999 to July
2002 and a director of Hong Kong Building & Loan Agency Limited (Stock
Code: 145) from 1993 to 1995, an independent non-executive director
of Opes Asia Development Ltd (Stock Code: 810) from April 2011 to
June 2012, an independent non-executive director of GOME Electrical
Appliances Holding Ltd (Stock Code: 493) since May 2004 to June 2015, an
independent non-executive director of Imagi International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 585) since May 2010 to January 2016. Mr. Chan is currently
an independent non-executive director of Four Seas Mercantile Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 374). All of these six companies are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange™). He was a
senior general manager of a local bank and an executive director of a joint
Chinese foreign bank in Shenzhen.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Xianlin, aged 63, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on |6 December 2008. Mr. Zhang is
also the chairman of Remuneration Committee, and members of each of
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. Currently,
Mr. Zhang is the director of Chinese Fund Investment Management Limited.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology
with a Master Degree in Business Administration and a Doctor Degree
in Management. He is a Chinese certified public accountant and senior
accountant. During the period from 1974 to 2007, he served in the senior
management positions in China National Aviation Corporation (Group)
Limited and the Civil Aviation Administration of China. Besides, Mr. Zhang
was a general manager in China National Aviation Company Limited, an
executive director in Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Limited, the chairman of
the Board of Supervisors in Air Macau Company Limited and the chairman
of the Board of Supervisors in Air China Limited (stock code: 753), a
company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhang was also a non-executive director of Cathy Pacific Airways
Limited (stock code: 293), a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, during the period from August 1997 to May 2005. Mr. Zhang
has over 35 years of extensive experience in enterprise finance and
investment management.

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 8 November 201 1. Mr. Kwok
is also the chairman of the nomination committee, and members of each
of the audit committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Mr.
Kwok is a solicitor and notary public and is the sole proprietor of Messrs.
Jesse H.Y. Kwok & Co. with substantial previous working experiences acting
as solicitor of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong. He obtained his degrees
of Bachelor of Laws (LLB) and Master of Laws (LLM) in Civil Laws from
the Peking University in the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Kwok was
appointed as a Temporary Magistrate between December 1994 and March
1995, and a Temporary Adjudicator of the Small Claims Tribunal in July
1998. He is also a Panel Arbitrator. He is also a member of the Law Society
of Hong Kong, the Law Society of United Kingdom, Singapore Academy
of Law and is the Counsel Member of the Hong Kong Society of Notaries.
Mr. Kwok is also a China Appointed Attesting Officer.

Mr. Kwok was an independent non-executive director of China
Infrastructure Investment Limited (stock code: 600), a company listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, during the period from August
2005 to August 201 2.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

Mr. Ng Ping Yiu, aged 49, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, and members
of each of the nomination committee and remuneration committee
of the Company on | October 2016. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Heriott Watt of United
Kingdom and is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries, a member of Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and also a fellow of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He

is also a certified tax adviser in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ng is currently the principal of GDT CPA Limited. He served as tax
manager and senior tax manager of international accounting firms in Hong
Kong for over 10 years. He has substantial working experience in Hong
Kong, the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") and international tax,
corporate structuring, planning advisory services and accounting services
and specializes in providing advices on PRC corporate and individual
income taxes, VAT, customs duty, transfer pricing, and other regulatory or
practical issues normally encountered by Hong Kong manufacturers with
production and distribution operations in the PRC, and by foreign investors
planning and setting up operations in the PRC. He also holds qualification
to practice PRC Tax in Qianhai, Shenzhen, the PRC.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognizes the importance of maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance with an aim to protect the interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix |4 (the “Code”) of the Listing Rules. During the year ended 3|
March 2017, the Company complied with all applicable provisions of the
Code except for the deviation as stated below:

Code Provision A.1.3

Under Code provision A.l.3, notice of at least 14 days should be given of
a regular Board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. For
all other Board meetings, reasonable notice should be given. Due to the
practical reasons, 14 days’ advanced notifications have not been given to
all meetings of the Board. Reasons have been given in the notifications in
respect of those meetings of the Board where it is not practical to give 14
days' advanced notification. The Board will use its best endeavours to give
|4 days’ advanced notifications of Board meeting to the extent practicable.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer (“CEQ") should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman and
CEO of the Company should be clearly established and set out in writing.
During the year, the roles of the chairman and the CEO of the Company
were not separated and were performed by Mr. Wu Hongquan until his

resignation with effect from 28 April 2017.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors, as equal board members, should
give the board and any committees on which they serve the benefit of
their skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through
regular attendance and active participation. They should also attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Due to other business engagement, an independent non-
executive director was unable to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 7 September 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company
and oversees the Group'’s business strategic decisions and performances.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four Executive Directors,
Mr. Huang Yilin, Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith, Mr. Liu Yan Chee, James and
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang; and three Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr.
Zhang Xianlin, Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Ng Ping Yiu.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are persons
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting and
appropriate expertise. They provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent
Non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company and the Company considers these directors to be

independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance and as an essential
element in maintaining strategic objectives and sustainable development of
the Group. All appointment of the Board members will be based on merits
against objective criteria and with due regards for benefits and balance of
diversity on the Board. The Board diversity will be considered in terms of,
among other things, gender, age, professional experience and qualifications
and educational and cultural background, and any other factors that the
Nomination Committee may consider relevant and applicable from time
to time towards complementing and extending the skills, know-how and
experience of the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

Meetings

Details of Directors’ attendance records at the Board meetings and general
meetings of the Company during the year ended 3| March 2017 are set out

below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Yilin
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
Mr. Liu Yan Chee, James
(appointed on 26 April 2017)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang
(appointed on 28 April 2017)
Mr. Wu Hongquan
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)
Ms. Li Yali
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu
(appointed on | October 2016)
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory

(resigned with effect from | October 2016) BE-T—

Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the Board of Directors will
meet on other occasions when a board level decision on a particular matter
is required. The Directors receive details of agenda items for decision
and minutes of committee meetings in advance of each board meeting.
The Board of Directors has reserved for its decision or consideration
matters covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results, Directors’
appointment, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board of Directors to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board of
Directors, implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and
risk management procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory
requirements, rules and regulations.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and CEO of the Group
should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.
The division of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO of the
Group should be clearly established and set out in writing. The roles of the
chairman and the CEO of the Group was not separated and was performed
by the same individual, Mr. Wu Hongquan throughout the year ended 31
March 2017. Subsequently, Mr. Wu Hongquan has resigned as executive
director and chairman of the board with effect from 28 April 2017, there
remains the outstanding appointment of chairman of the Board. The

Company will look for a suitable candidate to fill the vacancy of chairman.

The Directors meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Group. As such, the Directors consider that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the Directors
and the management of Group and believes that this structure will enable

the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for terms of
three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Annual General Meeting pursuant to the Bye-laws of
the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, any Director appointed by the
Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting
of Members after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting; and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following Annual General

Meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective

training records pursuant to the Code.

FERITHRER
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BBz BeETED TJEEE—}\WH%%
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During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways of

attending seminars or self-reading set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Yilin
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
Mr. Liu Yan Chee, James
(appointed on 26 April 2017)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang
(appointed on 28 April 2017)
Mr. Wu Hongquan
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)
Ms. Li Yali
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu
(appointed on | October 2016)
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory

(resigned with effect from | October 2016)

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

FRN - EEZE®AR ZFEBHEH
gk arTHMEm2INE *ﬁﬁﬁiﬁfé
B :
Attending seminars Self-reading
HEME HTE&
BITES
BRMEE - v
BREBELE - v
2B HEE N/A N/A
(RZE—EFWAZTRAEZE) TEA iR
REELLE N/A N/A
(RZE—+FEWA-ZT\BEZE) TEA TEA
REBEE(EFHE
BEZZ—tFMAZTN\BREN) - v
FHMLT(BEFHE
BZZ—t+EFWAZTNBRBER) - v
SRR S (B BHE
E-Z—tEMA-+N\BEER) - v
BYFHTES
REMEE v/ v
BEELE v/ v
IR E
(RZE-R"E+A-REZHT) v v
OE:ES ?ﬁi( EBHE - N/A N/A
E-Z—RETA-BREN TER TEA
= % i_ 17 Z ng %

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code") as set out in Appendix |0
to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2017.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and is
currently chaired by Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse. Its primary duties include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members, assessing the
independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of Directors, and reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy etc.

The Nomination Committee held two (2) meetings during the year ended

31 March 2017. The attendance of each member of the Nomination
Committee at the meetings during the year is set out below:

COMMITTEE MEMBERS

ZEEHE

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (Chairman) HERLE(EE)

Mr. Zhang Xianlin REBMEE

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith RFELE

Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (appointed on | October 2016) AmREE(R=-F

Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory fAIEEE £
(resigned with effect from | October 2016) (BEE - BZF

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure
and composition of the Board; discussed the causal vacancies for the
resigned Directors; assessed the independence of Independent Non-
executive Directors and made recommendations on the appointment and

re-appointment of Directors.

REEES

ARAREEZEEGH="EBBUIFNTEER
—BHTERER  ARBADBERLEREET
IE - REZBEZTIERERERIES
SRE  MREENX - VEAEREERA
MREFEREZ AL  FEBILIERITE
EZBMUE  REEREFEZEEFTZHEB
FHAESSRHUEBEAMRTETENK
BZITEBER -

REBEE_ZT—+F=-HA=1+T—HLEFE ' &

ZEEBSERITMQNEH - SRIRRZE®
MERAFESHRDFLEOT

Meetings

Attended/Held

HERE,

BITEBRNRE

2/2

2/2

212

—~NFT+A—BHEZF) 0/0

—NFTH—BRER) 1/2

TR RAZBGCENEFEZRERA
X B EEF 2 ERTH - SHEELIE
WOTEFZRAIMELRRREREHRZITES
RHER -
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE yMEE=

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises three AATZHEMNEESRFEBRIE =28 L IEH
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and is TEER—ZHTESE  HEHRREMREE
currently chaired by Mr. Zhang Xianlin. Its primary duties include making EITxE FHEESe 2 FTEHERERE
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure BAARRIFBESERSRERABFHI 2
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management, reviewing the FREENESSELESZ BRI TES
remuneration package and recommending salaries, bonuses, including the NEaRERBANEBZFMAEBYRESE 2 H
incentive awards for Executive Directors and senior management, and & BA(RREBES)IERHES  MEREE
ensuring no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own ERYHAMBMEAT2HEETEE RS HM -
remuneration etc.

The Remuneration Committee held two (2) meetings during the FWEEEgREE_Z—tF=-H=+—H
year ended 31 March 2017. The attendance of each member of the LEFERABITRMQREGZ - SHWESEK
Remuneration Committee at the meetings during the year is set out below: ERAFEeHEHFERENT -

Meetings

COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held

HERE

ZEEME BOTGRBRH™

Mr. Zhang Xianlin (Chairman) REMEE(EE) 212

Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse HERLE 2/2

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith RFELE 22

Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (Appointed on | October 2016) MRREAE(R-_ZE— R FT+A—HEZT) 0/0
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory fAIEEE £

(Resigned with effect from | October 2016) (BT BEZZE—RFTA-BRER 12

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered and FRN - FHEESEL2ERFEAELEAR
reviewed the existing terms of the appointment letters of the Directors Y rass  EFNHZEBLES &K
with reference to the factors including salaries paid by comparable N EMBU 2 BEBIGHENEGIERBETE
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, FHEREZE  ZEMRTESZSEZTRZEEAE
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and desirability B - HINEEERE TR BIERIT
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee EELZFTRHZEREBEKEIBATEAE - EE 2
considers that the existing terms of the appointment letters of the FINBCRFFIBE R AR EF 408 -

Executive and Independent Non-executive Directors are fair and

reasonable. Details of the remuneration policy of the Directors are set out

on page 40 of this report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors. During the year, Mr. Ho Chun Kit,
Gregory was the chairman until his resignation with effect from | October
2016, and is subsequently chaired by Mr. Ng Ping Yiu on | October 2016.
Its primary duties are to review and supervise the financial reporting

system, risk management and internal control system of the Group etc.

BEREES

ARBIZERZZEQRBER=-2B Y
TEE - FR - AFNKRERLCEEEIEIFEES
HEHBE(BE-Z—R"F+A—BBEXR) &
% HWEBEER-_T—A"F+A-BHEE
TR -BERZBEZIZRERBNLEE
AEBzMBREFREF  EREENRARE

BHIES -

The Audit Committee held two (2) meetings during the year ended 3| EREEENEBE_ZT—tF=A=+—8H
March 2017. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at JJ:EFW%?’FH(Z)/KQ% o RBEMEEEGHK
the meetings during the year is set out below: BERAFEEHRDELEENOT
Meetings
COMMITTEE MEMBERS Attended/Held
BRE
ZEEHE HITEBRE™
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (Chairman) HIRB L& ()
(Appointed on | October 2016) (RZE—RFTHA—BEZE) 1/1
Mr. Zhang Xianlin REBMEE 2/2
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse HERLE 2/2
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory B E
(Resigned with effect from | October 2016) (BT BT —~FT+A—BERER /1
During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with management the FR - BERLZEeCHEEERMNASEEK
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed Wz ERIREA - WHEZ - AEE

auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
including the Group's audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 3| March 2016 and the unaudited financial statements for the
six months ended 30 September 2016 respectively, In June 2017, the Audit
Committee reviewed the Group's audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2017 prior to recommending them to the Board for

approval.

Z - EAREELVMBERREE(DHBEAE
lﬁi_;—/\iiﬂi—k—ﬁtiﬁiz,@
EZWBRERBEZE_E—R"FNA=TH
JJ:MIH ZARBEZI B ®ER)ET® o R

tix\ﬂ %V%ié\*ﬁﬁﬂil@
MEmRE  TOEFSRLIZZARKES
#t -
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 March 2017 under review, the remuneration paid
to the Company’s auditors, Messrs. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, is
set out as follows:

Services rendered

Fi 52 it AR 7%
Audit services ZE R
Non-Audit services (Note) BRI (A7)

Note: The Audit Committee is of the view that the auditors independence was not affected by

the provision of these non-audit related services during the year ended 31 March 2017.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 3| March 2017, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting
policies which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and
reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems. To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
the Group emphasizes on the importance of a sound risk management
and internal control systems which are also indispensable for mitigating the
Group's risk exposures. The Group's risk management and internal control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.

The risk management and internal control system are reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in
providing reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that, based on
information furnished to it and on its own observations, the present risk
management and internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZRBR A
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The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management
of risks associated with its business activities and has implemented a
practical and effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system and
periodic review of the Group's performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board.

During the year under review, the Board has engaged an external
professional firm to conduct the annual review of the risk management
and internal control systems for the year ended 31 March 2017. The
review has covered financial, operational and compliance control and some
recommendations were provided in the internal control review report. All
recommendations are properly followed up by the Group. Therefore, The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING
During the year ended 31 March 2017, Mr. Law Ho Ming has received no

less than fifteen (15) hours of relevant professional training to refresh his

skills and knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings can send a written
request to the Board or the Secretary of the Company to request a Special
General Meeting (“SGM").

The written request should be deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company at Unit 4312, 43/F., COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary. The
written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a statement
of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and signed by the

shareholders concerned.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and upon
its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company will
convene a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the request.
The actual SGM shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of

the written request.

AEBBHEN  ERLEEEEXRED
BRzZRR YOEE-BRERATRAEX
ZEEHE BREMATCHERZEERS
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BHRRGFIAE
HERTRBRAS LEREZ ARTMR
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Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting
Shareholder can send a written request to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company to make proposal(s) at a shareholders’ meeting.

The written request must state the resolution(s), accompanied by a
statement of the matters referred in the proposed resolution(s) and signed

by the shareholder concerned.

The written request should be deposited with the Company at its principal
place of business at Unit 4312, 43/F., COSCO Tower, 183 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong, at least fourteen (14) clear days before the date of the
shareholders’ meeting.

The request will be verified with the Company’s share registrar and upon
its confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board to include the proposed resolution(s) in the
agenda for the shareholders’ meeting.

Procedures for nomination of Directors for election
The procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a Director are available on the Company’s website at
http://www.asiaresources899.com.

AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no significant changes to
the Company’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders through the
Company’s annual report and financial statements, the interim report,
as well as the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). The AGM allows the
directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website is
maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other relevant

financial and non-financial information electronically on a timely basis.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EESHRAEERENWR O

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | present
herewith to the shareholders of the Group the annual report and audited
consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017.

RESULTS OF THE YEAR

In the fiscal year ended 31 March 2017, the consolidated revenue, net,
contributed from continuing operations (mainly money lending) of the
Group amounted to approximately HK$6,651,000 (2016: HK$4,454,000).
Accordingly, the Group's continuing operations reported a gross profit of
approximately HK$6,651,000 for the year (2016: HK$4,354,000).

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$92,794,000 for the year ended 31 March
2017 (2016: HK$76,205,000). The increase in loss was mainly due to (i)
the decrease in other revenue from the other trading business; and (ii) the
increase in the loss sharing to the owners.

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations for the year ended 3| March 2017 was HK$0.017 (2016: basic
and diluted loss per share, from continuing and discontinued operations of
HK$0.018).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year ended 31| March 2017, the net revenue had increased
approximately to 50% over last year. For Dalian Property, the first phase
is nearly completed and expected to recognise the revenue in the coming
years. The Group disposed the non-profitable business and continued
to rationalize its cost structure, and focused its effort on property
development and property investment businesses in the PRC and money
lending business in Hong Kong. As such, the Group has further expanded
its property investment business in Beijing in February 2017.

Apart from the consolidating the existing operations, the Group has been
actively exploring opportunities to achieve further business diversification,
with an aim to broaden its revenue stream and earning base. The Group
had successfully completed two strategic acquisitions for bottled water
production and sales business in Quangxi and water mining business in
Hunan in April and June 2017 respectively. The Board is confident that the
operation of water business will contribute positively to the Group. The
Directors are of the view that the two strategic acquisitions will maximize
the future contribution to the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EESAAEERENWR O

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. As a responsible corporation,
the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and
employment and has adopted effective measures to achieve efficient use of

resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
During the year ended 31 March 2017, there was no incident of significant
non-compliance to any relevant laws and regulations in all material aspects

for the Group.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

During the year ended 31 March 2017, there were no material and
significant dispute between the Group and its key stakeholders, including
employees, customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and Shareholders. The
Group will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good

relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property Business

Property Development

Dalian Properties

Our indirectly wholly owned China subsidiary, Dalian Chuanghe Landmark
Co Ltd.(KEBIFE AR A F]) (“Dalian Chuanghe”) continues engaging
in the development of urban land for residential purpose in the real estate
sector in Dalian and as planned to develop 55 buildings on the said land
with 21| buildings in the first phase (“Phase I”) and 34 buildings in the
second phase (““Phase II").

Phase | named “Xin Tian Jia Yuan” had almost completed the construction
work except some public area and its utilities. It was expected to be
completed in October 2017. There are 2| buildings established in Phase
| with a saleable area of approximately 42,540 square metres. including
4 eight-storey apartments (/N&/E), 9 garden villas (F/%) and 8 garden
houses (BtBERIZE). The whole contracted sales achieved approximately
RMB101,200,000 (of which pre-sale deposits of approximately
RMB88,710,000 received), and the whole contracted gross saleable area of

around 19,500 square metres.
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For the Phase I, 34 buildings with 69,000 square metres used as the
saleable area. The initiation date will be in 2018.

The Dalian Chuanghe recorded a loss of approximately HK$8,921,000 for
the year ended 3| March 2017 (2016: HK$5,572,000). The loss was mainly
comprised of operation and administrative expenses.

Property Investment
Yantian Properties
(A) The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 24 June 2014,

(B)

a supplemental agreement on |5 April 2015, a second supplemental
agreement on 12 July 2016 and a third supplemental agreement
on |7 May 2017 to purchase the property at a consideration of
approximately RMB 100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$126,000,000).

The property to be acquired represents 46 units of Jinma Creative
Industry Park (formerly known as “Kingma Information Logistic Park")
which is situated at Depot No. 2, 3rd Road and Shenyan Road
Intersect, Inner Logistic Park, Yantian Bonded Area, Yantian District,
Shenzhen City, the PRC* (FR B2 31| 77 & [ B8 R T [R 07 B A
=R BRI PR A ME R SR H#EY5) (“Jinma Creative Industry Park”)
with a total gross floor area of approximately 8,699 square metres.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and totally paid conditionally refundable deposit of
RMB90,000,000 in accordance with the terms of payment stated
in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the
consideration of approximately RMB10,000,000 shall be paid within
30 days from the date on which the relevant building ownership
certificates have been issued in favour of the purchaser. The vendor
shall register the title of the property under the name of the purchaser
on or before 31 March 2018 (or such other date as may be mutually
agreed).

The Group entered into a second acquisition agreement on |5
May 2015, a supplemental agreement on 12 July 2016 and a second
supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017, to further purchase
the property at a consideration of approximately RMB65,107,800
(equivalent to approximately HK$81,384,750). The property to be
acquired represents 30 units of Jinma Creative Industry Park with a
total gross floor area of approximately 5,400 square metres.

*  For identification purpose only
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As at 31 March 2017, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and totally paid conditionally refundable deposit of
RMB60,000,000 in accordance with the terms of payment stated
in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the
consideration of approximately RMBS5, 107,800 shall be paid within 30
days from the date on which the property has been registered under
the name of the purchaser. The vendor shall register the title of the
property under the name of the purchaser on or before 31 March
2018 (or such other date as may be mutually agreed).

(C) The Group entered into a third acquisition agreement on 10
November 2015 and a supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017, to
further purchase the property at a consideration of approximately
RMBI101,628,955 (equivalent to approximately HK$121,954,746). The
property to be acquired, being a single-storey reinforced concrete
building designated for office and storage uses, is the Block 2 of Jinma
Creative Industry Park with a total gross floor area of approximately
4,957 square metres.

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and totally paid conditionally refundable deposit of
RMB 100,000,000 in accordance with the terms of payment stated
in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the
consideration of approximately RMB1,628,955 shall be paid within 30
days from the date on which the property has been registered under
the name of the purchaser. The vendor shall register the title of the
property under the name of the purchaser on or before 30 June 2018
(or such other date as may be mutually agreed).

Zengcheng Properties

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated |5 April
2015, 5 June 2015, 27 August 2015, 15 June 2016 and 18 January 2017 in
relation to the acquisition of certain properties located in Jinma Waterfront
Square* (& FHI/KFEH). Given that the vendor failed to deliver the
physical possession of the properties within the timeframe specified in
the acquisition agreements, the Group served a termination notice to the
vendor on |8 January 2017 and demand the refund of the consideration
in the amount of RMB274,000,000 pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the acquisition agreements and the payment of an additional sum
representing not less than 3% thereof as compensation (details of which
were disclosed in the announcement dated |8 January 2017). As at 3|
March 2017, the Group had totally received RMB50,000,000 for the refund
of the paid consideration and the payment of the compensation.

*  For identification purpose only
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Hangzhou Properties

In late 2015, the patisserie coffee shop and the indoor recreation
playground business operated in Hangzhou properties had ceased due
to weak performance. Hangzhou, capital of Zhejiang province, it has a
population of nearly 9 million and is one of China's richest cities. However,
the property market in Hangzhou suffered from the state macro control
and has a pressure in its economic growth. It is the intention of the Group
to dispose of the Hangzhou properties to potential investors, although the
Group would still consider leasing them out.

Iron Ore Mining Business

While facing the Ministerial Regulation No. 1/2014 promulgated by the
Indonesian Government regarding the export restriction of iron sand still
in force, the management had decided to stem the export of the iron sand
trading business of PT. Dampar Golden International (an indirect 60% non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Group) in Indonesia during the period
under review as the purity level of the iron sand did not meet the minimum
requirement under the Indonesia mining regulation.

After dismantled and removed the processing plants to warehouse, the
management is continuing to explore the opportunity to dispose the plants
and inventory. Meanwhile, the Group had closed down all activities except
for those office and administration function.

Under the circumstances, the Company is considering to dispose the
Indonesia mining business to potential investors who are interested in the
mine so that the management can focus their effort on the other business
units.

This segment recorded a loss of approximately HK$2,672,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: HK$2,810,000). The loss was mainly
comprised of operation and administrative expenses and impairment loss
of fixed assets approximately to HK$700,000.

Investing and Financing Business

Money Lending Business

The Group has obtained a money lenders licence in Hong Kong since
July 2015 through its indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Asia Financial
Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Asia Financial”). Under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of Laws of Hong Kong), Asia Financial has
commenced the money lending business since September 2015. In view of
the keen competition on this business, the Group will continue to approach
high credit rating customers.

For the year under review, the money lending business recorded a revenue
of approximately HK$6,651,000 (2016: HK$3,942,000).
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Securities and Other Trading Business

During the year under review, due to the volatility of the stock market, the
management was prudent in taking risk on the securities trading business.
There is no trading of securities during year ended 31 March 2017. The
management focus their effort on other business.

Therefore, the securities trading business for the year ended 31
March 2017 recorded a loss of approximately HK$2,870,000 (2016:
HK$6,490,000). The loss in 2017 was mainly due to the fair value change of
the securities.

Other

(A) The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 29 June
2016 with Ms. Hu Huifang* ($8875) and Ms. Shi Xiulan* (A7
), relating to the acquisition of 100% equity interest of Shaanxi
Tiandi Zhongli Energy Development Company Limited* (BRFEX
RN EERERABRAA]) (“Shaanxi Tiandi") at a consideration
of RMB31,200,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$36,816,000).
Shaanxi Tiandi was established in the PRC with limited liability and is
principally engaged in vehicle liquefied natural gas supply business, it
owns and operates the LNG Station. The acquisition of Shaanxi Tiandi
has not yet completed as at 31 March 2017. Subsequently, the Group
has served a termination notice to the vendors for, among other
things, termination of the sale and purchase agreement on 26 June
2017.

(B) During the year under review, the Group paid interest for
convertible notes/bonds of approximately HK$10,442,000
(2016: HK$13,142,000) and incurred non-cash finance costs of
approximately HK$32,1 15,000 (2016: HK$30,774,000) as a result of
the imputed interests on the convertible notes/bonds issued.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 3| March 2017 (2016: Nil).

*  For identification purpose only
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Shareholders’ equity decrease to approximately HK$1,884,213,000 as at 31
March 2017 from approximately HK$2,047,938,000 as at 3| March 2016.
As at 31 March 2017, the short term and long term interest bearing debts
to shareholders’ equity was | 1.13% (2016: approximately 9.7%).

2014 CONVERTIBLE NOTES

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated | | July
2014, 3 September 2014, 25 September 2014, |5 October 2014, 22
October 2014, 29 October 2014 and the circular of the Company dated 8
September 2014 relating to the placing of a 2-year 12% coupon convertible
notes due 2016 (at a conversion price of HK$0.38 — subject to adjustment)
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$608,000,000 under specific
mandate (the “2014 CN Placing”). The 2014 CN Placing was completed in
three tranches on |5 October 2014 and 22 October 2014 and 29 October
2014 respectively (the “2014 Convertible Notes”).

Holders of the Tranche 2 — 2014 Convertible Notes and Tranche 3 —
2014 Convertible Notes had been fully converted the outstanding principal
amount during the financial year ended 31 March 2016.

During the year under review, the Company had redeemed all outstanding
Tranche | — 2014 Convertible Notes at the principal amount of
HK$9,997,800 on its maturity date in October 2016.

2015 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 21 May
2015 and 20 August 2015 and the circular of the Company dated 6 July
2015 in relation to the placing of a 3-year 4% coupon convertible bonds
due 2018 (at a conversion price of HK$0.72 — subject to adjustment) in
the aggregate principal amount of up to HK$432,000,000 (the “2015 CB
Placing”). The 2015 CB Placing was completed on 20 August 2015 (the
“2015 Convertible Bonds").

During the year under review, no holder of the 2015 Convertible
Bonds has converted any outstanding principal amount into shares of
the Company. As at 3| March 2017, the principal amount of the 2015
Convertible Bonds outstanding was HK$244,800,000.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,433,016,000 (2016: HK$2,560,721,000) which was financed
by current liabilities of approximately HK$306,712,000 (2016:
HK$288,195,000), non-current liability of approximately HK$251,238,000
(2016: HK$232,658,000), non-controlling interests of approximately deficit
balance HK$9,147,000 (2016: HK$8,070,000) and shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$1,884,213,000 (2016: HK$2,047,938,000).

The Group’s current ratio as at 31 March 2017 was approximately 5.23
(2016: 5.09) and gearing ratio, representing the total of bank borrowings
and the sum of convertible notes, divided by the shareholders’ equity was
approximately |1.1% (2016: 9.7%). As at 31 March 2017, approximately
100% of debts were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and with fixed
interest coupon rate (2016: approximately 100%).

As at 31 March 2017, the Group had no pledged/changed on Group’s
assets (2016: Nil).

As at 31 March 2017, except for the capital commitment amounting to
approximately HK$251,442,000, the Group had no other material capital
commitment and contingent liabilities.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE YEAR

Acquisitions

Acquisition of 100% equity interest of Shaanxi Tiandi Zhongli Energy
Development Company Limited” (B 75 X #th 52 1 BE R /R B R 43 &])

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 29 June
2016 to acquire 100% equity interest of Shaanxi Tiandi Zhongli Energy
Development Company Limited* (BREGRHR HEERERBR
R]) at a consideration of RMB31,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$36,816,000) (details of which were disclosed in the announcements
dated 29 June 2016 and 29 May 2017). The acquisition of Shaanxi Tiandi
has not yet completed as at 31 March 2017. Subsequently, the Group
has served a termination notice to the vendors for, among other things,
termination of the sale and purchase agreement on 26 May 2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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Acquisition of property located in the Phrase Il of the Beijing Convention and
Exhibition International Port (Exhibition Centre Ancillary Facilities) Project* (3£
REREBERERERIBELEE=H)

The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 28 February 2017
to purchase (a) office premises (the "Office Premises”) with a gross floor
area of 8,335 square metres and (b) underground car park (the “Car Park”)
with a gross floor area of 3,100 square metres located in the Phrase Ill
of the Beijing Convention and Exhibition International Port (Exhibition
Centre Ancillary Facilities) Project* (t R E@REIFEREBALEREE
B % = 8) for an initial Consideration of RMB220,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$253,000,000) (subject to adjustments) (details of
which were disclosed in the announcement dated 28 February 2017). The
acquisition has not yet completed as at 31 March 2017.

Disposals

Disposal of 100% equity interest of Shenzhen Shi Longxinchang Industrial
Company Limited* (RYITEMK EBE¥ZREER A &)

The Group entered into a share transfer agreement on 31 March 2016
to dispose 100% equity interest of Shenzhen Shi Longxinchang Industrial
Company Limited* (RYITEMEEZERAR AL A]) and the sale loan
for a total consideration of RMB13,600,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$16,048,000). The disposal was subsequently completed in April 2016.

Disposal of 100% equity interest of KRB EREXZRREERA A

The Group entered into a share transfer agreement on 4 April 2016 to
dispose 100% equity interest of JFIIBREREXZERER AR and the
sale loan for the total consideration of RMB41,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$48,397,000). The disposal was subsequently completed
in April 2016.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or disposal

of subsidiaries or associates of the Company during the year under review.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are set out in note 43 to the

consolidated financial statements.

*  For identification purpose only
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EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

Most of the Group's assets, liabilities and business transactions are
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi, Indonesian Rupiah and US
Dollars which have been relatively stable during the year ended 31 March
2017. The Group was not exposed to material exchange risk and had not
employed any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group has a total of approximately 45 employees in Hong Kong,
Indonesia and the PRC as at 31 March 2017. The total cost (staff salary
and director emolument) for the year ended 31 March 2017 amounted
to approximately HK$47,868,000. Remuneration packages are generally
structured according to market situations and individual performance.
Apart from the mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement
benefits, the Group also provides medical benefits and sponsors employees
in different training and continuous education programs.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
shareholders and business associates for their ongoing support and extend
our appreciation to our management team and staff members for their

contributions to our achievements in the year.

By order of the Board

Huang Yilin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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The directors of the Company present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 40 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on pages 62 to 63.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement in the share capital of the Company during the year
ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of share options are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year ended 31 March 2017 are
set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page |9 which forms

part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial position, business results and prospects would be
affected by a number of risks including operational risk, market risk and
financial risk. The Group’s property business in the PRC which is susceptible
to change in government policies and foreign currency risk. The Group’s
money lending business is subject to credit risk. The Group’s securities
trading business is affected by the volatility of the stock market. The
Group's financial risk management objectives and policies are shown in

note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

The Company has deficit at 31 March 2017 which comprises contributed
surplus of approximately HK$180,030,000 less accumulated losses of
approximately HK$3,593,519,000. Accordingly, the Company has no

reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March 2017.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2017, the Group spent an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$7,080,000 on the acquisition of property,
plant and equipment for expansion and improvement of the facilities of
mining business and aggregate amount of approximately HK$505,000 on
disposal of property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2017 are set out in note |8 to

the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE

CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2017 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Huang Yilin
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
Mr. Liu Yan Chee, James
(appointed on 26 April 2017)
Mr. Chan Yuk Sang
(appointed on 28 April 2017)
Mr. Wu Hongquan
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)
Ms. Li Yali
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng
(resigned with effect from 28 April 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Zhang Xianlin
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (appointed on | October 2016)
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory
(resigned with effect from | October 2016)

In accordance with Clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Ng
Ping Yiu, Mr. Liu Yan Chee, James and Mr. Chan Yuk Sang will retire at
forthcoming General Meeting, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election as Directors at the forthcoming General Meeting.

In accordance with Clause 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Zhang
Xianlin, Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse and Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith will retire
at the Annual General Meeting, and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election as Directors at the Annual General Meeting.

The term of office of each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
for a term of three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Annual General Meeting as required by the Company's Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has any unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture
of the Company

As at 31 March 2017, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix 10 (the “Model
Code"”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) were as follows:

Long positions in shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

ESRFETRAEBRESZ
e
EBEREETHASRER AR
HHER G REFZEBER LR

RZZE—tF=A=+—B ARFAEEK
TETHABRARAREAMREEE(E
ERBHFLBAEGRO([EFRPEED])E
XVER) 2 Bt ~ MR REFPHEEBAL
BN AR RIRIEE 75 M B 150 F 3526 B F
BEZERMA - ARTREBRAES LT
MBI EWmARA DM+ LM ARES
ETRFR S ZFETRI([RESTA ) AH
SARRB LR 2 R IORBINT

RAEXGRE - HEKGREF
ZHE

Number of ordinary shares held

BRCEERYE

Approximately

percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital of

Personal  share options Total  the Company

Name of director Capacity interest held interests (Note 1)

HERF

ERITRAE

BREZ ZBRESH

EEps a6 fEAELR BRERA AER (Hat1)

Huang Yilin Beneficial owner 70,000 80,000,000 80,070,000 1.50%
B ERBAA

Chan Shi Yin, Keith Beneficial owner 1,200,000 80,000,000 81,200,000 1.52%
REHE EEHAA

Zhang Xianlin Beneficial owner - 6,840,000 6,840,000 0.13%
REM EasfAA

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse Beneficial owner - 6,700,000 6,700,000 0.13%
NES 3 DN

Wu Hongquan (Note 2) Beneficial owner - 53,000,000 53,000,000 0.99%
REB(HiE2) EafaA

Li Yali (Note 2) Beneficial owner - 53,000,000 53,000,000 0.99%

A (HreE2) ESBEAA
Zhang Zhensheng (Note 2) Beneficial owner - 53,000,000 53,000,000 0.99%

FIRAE (Hat2) BElBA
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Note:

The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company of 5,343,690,000 Shares as at 3| March 2017.

2. Resigned with effect from 28 April 2017

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2017, none of the directors or
the chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on [4 January 2002
(the 2002 Share Option Scheme™) had been terminated on 9 August 201 |
and a new share option scheme (the “201 | Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 9 August 201 I.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2017, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme was
3,220,000.

Bt

HZEAOLIBREBEAR AR _E—+F=ZA=1+—
H 2 B BT 4 815,343,690, 0000 B (D 5+ & ©

2. BEEHME - B Z—tFEA-+N\ARER-

BREXBEEEN R_F—tF=H
=t— B BEARFEFRIETHRAER
H W E BB A LR AR B SR EATEBE
B (E&ALEFEFMEGPIEXVER) 2 EAI
0~ MR REFTHEA BLBERARE
RiFEFMABERMEIREFE 2 ECH
W HRTTIREFESTRANE AT ME
RFr 2 Bk R -

B IR T &
RABIRZZEZEZF—A+HBEEMN 2B
BB ZZZE—FHEREFE D ER=Z
——FNAABHEILE MARBERZE
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—EE_FEREE
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IR BIIE T M RITE 2 BIREY K2
% 17 % B %3,220,0008% °
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During the year under review, the details and movements in the share ROBEFER  BIE_ZZ -FEKRETD

options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows: ERbzBEREZHBERESHWT
Number of share options
BREHE
Adjusted
Exercise Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
priceper at | April during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period share 2016 theyear  theyear  theyear  theyear 017
R=8-7% RoB-tf
Shise  BA-A ZA=t-8
RiR% fife8 kR HATE REARE REAGE  REARN  RMEREE  HAOR
(Note)
(i)
HK$
AT
Category |: Director
EH- 8%
Zhang Xianlin [2Jul 2011 [2Jul 2001 - 11 Jul 2021 1775 140000 - - - - 140000
K& “§-5tAtcR E--FtAtoRE
“F-FEAt-H
Total for Director 140,000 - - - - 140,000
EE 6
Category 2: Employees
ER- 8
Employees (2 Jul 2011 [2Jul 2011 = 11 Jul 2021 1775 3,080,000 - - - - 3,080,000
8 SE-E¢At-R CE--EHffoRE
“F-FEAT-H
Total for Employees 3,080,000 - - - - 3,080,000
EE&:H
Total for all categories 3,220,000 - - - - 3220000
R

Note: The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of Miet - RRARRMDRE L BEREMA R WTERS

grant was HK$0.07 | (adjusted to HK$1.775 upon capital reorganization became effective 0071 B L(MBAZEER-—TE—=F~A=HE
on 3 June 2013). BUIAFARE R 7758TT) °
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2011 Share Option Scheme

On 28 September 2016, 379,500,000 share options were granted to
Directors, employees and consultant of the Company under 201 | Share

Option Scheme at an exercisable price of HK$0.26 | per share.

Reference is also made to the circular of the Company dated 28 July 2016.
On 7 September 2016, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the
shareholders at annual general meeting of the Company, approving, inter
alia, to refresh the scheme mandate limit under the 2011 Share Option
Scheme of the Company adopted on 9 August 201 1. The refreshed
scheme limit as at 7 September 2016 was 534,369,000.

During the year under review, the details and movements in the share

options granted under 201 | Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Category |: Directors

£hl- &2
Wu Hongguan (Note)
REEWE)

Huang Yilin
BRI

Chan Shi Yin, Keith
[

Li Yali (Note)
FanlfE)

Date of grant

RHiAA

28 Sept 2016
“E-F

AAZ+NA

20 Apr 2015
“E-1f
MAZ+E
28 Sept 2016
“EF

AAZ+NA

20 Apr 2015
“5-1f
MA=+A
28 Sept 2016
“EF
ABZTNE

28 Sept 2016
“E-F

AAZ+NA

Exercisable period

s

28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“E- EARZTN\BE
“E-AENAZTLA

20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
ZZ-1EMAZTRE
ZRCREMATAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
ZE-REAACTNRE
“EOREAACTLA

20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
“Z-FEMA-1+HE
“E-RERATAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“E- N ENAZTN\BZ
“ECAENRZTA

28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
Z3-AEAAZTRE
“E-AEAAZTEA

Exercise
price per
share

8B
Tl
HKS
T

0261

0.39

0261

039

0261

0261

—=

= —— R

0B HE -

BREARRFPBEMB -_T—RFLAZTN
HZ@E RN TE—RFALALH —EE
BRBRNARRZBRIBFAEG LERR
EFURE - UHLE(EPERE) EFARFAR
“E-—FNANBRNZ T —FER
BT EIA T 2T 8RR - R_FT—RF

——FEREE
RZZE—XNEANA-+NB  ARRRE=
FTEIRITEEEAR0261E T
MARBES - B REME 379,500,000

NLAERZE E#HETEIBR & /&534,369,000 ©

REBEER  RIE-F——FHERETS

EREZEREZHBERESHNT
Number of share options
BRELE
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
at | April during during during during at 31 March
2016 the year the year the year the year 2017
R-R-RE RoB-t#
mA-A ZA=1-A
HATE RERRE  REAGE  RERAR  REREE  HAOR
- 53000000 - - - 53,000,000
27,000,000 - - - - 27,000,000
- 53,000,000 - - - 53000000
27,000,000 - - - - 27,000,000
- 53,000,000 - - - 53000000
- 53000000 - - - 53,000,000
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Zhang Zhensheng (Note)
i3id (i)

Zhang Xianlin
REH

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse

=

Total for Directors

Ly

Date of grant

RHtiAH

28 Sept 2016
“EFF

AAZ+N\A

26 Aug 2014
“3-|F
NAZ1AH
30ct 2014
—T-mE
TA=R
20 Apr 2015
“E-1f
MA-+H
28 Sept 2016
ZEF
AAZTNA

26 Aug 2014
“3-QF
NEZt7A
30ct 2014
—5-mF
A=A
20 Apr 2015
il
MA=+A
28 Sept 2016
5 F
NAZTNH

Exercisable period

e

28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“E- EARZTN\BE
“EENRZTLA

26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 204
“Z-MENAZT/HE
“E-mENAZTRA
30ct 2014 -2 Oct 204
“3-mF+R=AZE
2 o
20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
“T-nFNE-1HE
“E-RERATAA
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“E-NENAZTNRZ
“ECAENRZT4A

26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024
“E-MENB=17/BE
“E-RENAZTRA
30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2004
“3-mETRZAZE
“E2-mETACH
20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
“Z-EEMA-1+HE
“Z-REMAHAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“S-"EARZTN\RE
B NFNAZTLA

Exercise
price per
share

gk
iR
HKS
AT

0261

0352

0520

0.39

0261

0352

0520

0.39

0261
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Number of share options
RRELE

Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
at | April during during during during at 31 March
2016 the year the year the year the year 2017
i i
BA-A ZR=1-8
HAGE  REARE  RERGE  REAKN REAER  HATE
- 53000000 - - - 53,000,000
200,000 - - - - 200000
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
500,000 - - - - 500000
- 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
200,000 - - - - 200000
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
500,000 - - - - 500000
- 5,000,000 - - - 5,000,000
57,400,000 275,000,000 - - - 332400000
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Date of grant

RHtiAH

Category 2: Employees

FA- R
Employees 26 Aug 2014
& ZE-mE
NAZTAA
30ct 2014
“2-IF
TA=H
20 Apr 2015
“2-REMAZTH
28 Sept 2016
It SR
hAZTNE
Total for Employees
a4t
Category 3: Consultant
ER=BR
Consultant 28 Sept 2016
B B0
AAZTAR

Total for Consultant

Bt

Total for all categories

R ERI At

Exercisable period

e

26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024
“E-MENBZ1/EE
“E-RENAZTRA
30ct 2014 -2 Oct 204
“3-mETRZAZE
“E2-mETACH
20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025
“Z-FEMA-1+HE
“Z-REMAHAR
28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“EREAACTNEE
“ECRENRZTLA

28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026
“E- EARZTN\BE
“E-AEAAZTEA

Note: Resigned with effect from 28 April 2017.

The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the respective dates of grant of 26 August 2014, 3 October 2014, 20
April 2015 and 28 September 2016 were HK$0.345, HK$0.520, HK$0.395

and HK$0.255 respectively.

Exercise
price per
share

B

i

HKS

B

0352

0520

0.3%

0261

0261

Number of share options
RRELE
Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
at | April during during during during at 31 March
2016 the year the year the year the year 2017
i i
BA-A ZR=1-8
HAGE  REARE  RERGE  REAKN REAER  HATE
1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000
45,400,000 - - - - 45400000
35,800,000 - - (15,000,000) - 20800000
- 51,500,000 - - - 51500000
82400000 51,500,000 - (15,000,000) - 118900,000
- 53000000 - - - 53,000,000
- 53,000,000 - - - 53000000
139,800,000 379,500,000 - (15,000,000) - 504300,000
Bret: BEHE BT EFEA- T NAHBAEK -

ARARIROREL BB AE-ZT—WF
NAZ+"H - —E—WNFE+AH=H ==
—ARAFEAZtEARZ-ZE—F"FALAZTN
AR 2 WM E 2 R A0345 7%
7T~ 0.520/8 7T * 0.395/8 7T 5025578 7T, °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in securities
and Share Options in the note 32 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year ended 31 March 2017, was the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2017, so far as was known to the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than any director
and chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

Name of shareholder Capacity

BERER 8

Xi'an Communication Energy Beneficial owner

(Hongkong) Co., Limited
PR EEER(BE)ER AR

BEmEAA
Xi'an Communication Gas Corporation Limited
AR ZBERRAREE LA BB IEEE
PRI ERREERREEERR QA

BBXIEE
Shanxi Yanchang Petroleum (Group) Co,, Ltd.

REER AR (KRE)BEREETAA BBXIEE
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Through controlled corporations

Through controlled corporations

Through controlled corporations

EEBARMDSEERE 2ER

BEXHBEBERNES 2 Ea MRAMB®REK
MiFE32 2 A FA IR E SN ARRHE(E
M BRARANEE—T—tF=A=1+—H
L AR B R B B 2 B AT ST AR 2
HEARR 2 EZAREWBAR R SEMRE
fEABEzRNXEHER(BEEH)M
R -

FTERRZEHZRAR

R-ZZE—tHF=A=+—B REERAEARQ
A2 EETHRABMRA » U TAL(EARAME
MEEREBITRABRINRARRRD K&
MERDTHEERESIRE  MBRERES
NEAE GOIEXVEBSE2 R 535 &b 2 R /E
B REBRARFEAREBEES MEK
FIFEBIFRAFEZELCMA - KRTTHAER
NCIVNE RS

Approximate
percentage of the
issued share

Number of capital of the

issued ordinary Company
shares held (Note |)
HARDEEBITRAE
BFREZERT ZEBHNBEDL
HRERHE (Btat1)
1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Note 2)
(Bfat2)
1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Note 2)
(Bfat2)
1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Note 2)
(Btat2)
1,330,000,000 24.89%
(Note 2)
(Btat2)
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Notes:

() The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the
Company of 5,343,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2017.

(2)  Xi'an Communication Energy (Hongkong) Co., Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Xi'an Communication Gas Corporation Limited, which is owned as to 49% by Shanxi
Yanchang Petroleum (Group) Co., Ltd., 46.8% by FAZc i M E W R iEERIEEEEHR
AR) and 4.2% by FARTRAHIZBMANT] (100% interest controlled by 78 %Z il 1 E
RIGERITREEBERAR).

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is not
aware of any other person who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest of 5% or more in the issued shares capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2017.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31
March 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group had not made any charitable donations (2016:
HKS$NI).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and up to the date of this report,
there was or is permitted indemnity provision in the Bye-laws of the
Company being in force. The Company has maintained directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate
cover certain legal actions brought against its Directors and officers arising
out of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in respect of Convertible Notes and Share Options in the
notes 30 and 32 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during
the year ended 3| March 2017 or subsisted at the end of the year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales during the year ended 31 March 2017, attributable to
the Group's five largest customers comprised approximately 100% of the
Group's total sales.

The Group had no major suppliers due to the nature of the principal
activities of the Group.

At no time during the year ended 3| March 2017, did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the Company's
issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or

customers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2017, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed
securities.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart from the
mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group
also provides medical benefits and sponsored employees in different
training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are decided, having
regard to the Company's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2017, none of the Directors is considered
to have business interests which are likely to compete directly or indirectly
with the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 3| March 2017.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 March 2016
and 2017 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, which
retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2017
Annual General Meeting.

A resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited and to
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the

2017 Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Yilin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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PREAMBLE

The Group actively adheres to environmental and social
responsibilities. The Board is ultimately responsible for leading the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) works by establishing
dedicated teams to manage ESG issues. Designated staff are assigned
to enforce and supervise the implementation of relevant policies.
The Group is committed to making continuous improvements in
environmental and social responsibility in order to meet the changing
needs of an advancing society. The Group is pleased to present
its ESG report this year to demonstrate its efforts in sustainable
development.

REPORTING PERIOD AND SCOPE OF THE
REPORT

The ESG report covers the operational boundary of the property
business in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”) and money lending
business in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 March 2017 (“FY
2017"). For corporate governance section, please refer to the Group's
Annual Report 2017 on pages 8 to 18. The reporting period of this
ESG report is for the financial year 2017, from | April 2016 to 31
March 2017, unless specifically stated otherwise.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

To conduct of the Group's materiality assessment in identifying
and understanding the main concerns and material interests of
stakeholders, the Group has engaged its stakeholders, including
customer, employee and shareholder. Stakeholders are selected
based on stakeholder influence and stakeholder dependence on the
Group. Stakeholders with high influence and high dependence on the
Group are selected by the management of the Group. The selected
stakeholders have been invited to express their views and concerns
on major social and environment issues. The stakeholder engagement
has been conducted through online survey. For this ESG report, the
Group has identified employee benefits, product and service quality,
anti-corruption policies and legal compliance on operating practices as
material concerns to stakeholders.

After assessing the feedback from stakeholders through an online
survey, the Group has reviewed the sustainability strategies, practices
and measures undertaken in FY2017 and highlighted material and
relevant aspects throughout this report so as to align with the
stakeholders’ expectations.
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IV. ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

The main continuous business segments of the Group include
property business, money lending business, securities and other
trading business. Since the projects of the property business are all
completed in FY2016, there are no ongoing constructions. Therefore,
all business operations are conducted in the office buildings with
a little emissions and resources consumption. The Group strictly
adheres to relevant laws and regulations including but not limited to
the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC (FF BIIRIZIRFEE), the
Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution of the PRC (FF IR
K524 7%), the Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC (R BUZK)5 2B 787%), Law of the People’s Republic of China
on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid

Wastes (FF B [El 88 B 1))5 R IR F B a)%).

A.l.Emissions
The major environmental emissions of the Group include
greenhouse gases (GHGs) generated indirectly from property
electricity consumption, wastewater and solid waste.

Understanding that the GHGs emission is positively correlated
to the electricity consumption, the Group has tried to reduce
the electricity consumption in its daily operation. The specific

measures it takes will be explained in A2 Use of Resources.

Wastewater emission of the Group only comes from domestic use
of the employees in the working area, which are discharged to the
municipal sewage pipe network directly. To reduce wastewater
generation, the Group has taken measures to reduce the water
consumption which will be explained the details in A2 Use of
Resources.

Solid wastes generated by the Group mainly include waste paper and
domestic solid waste generated by the employees in the working
area, which are put in the garbage bins and collected daily by the
property management of the office buildings. To reduce the solid
waste emission, the Group has taken measures to reduce the paper
consumption (which will be explained the details in A2 Use of
Resources).

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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A.2.Use of Resources

Due to the business nature and operation status of the Group in

FY2016, resources used by the Group mainly include electricity,

water and paper.

To reduce the electricity consumption, the Group has

conducted the following practices:

e Tumn off the electronics and lights in the office at the end of

the day;

. Modify the set temperature of the air conditioners in the

offices based on the season:

To reduce the water consumption, the Group has conducted the

following practices:

. Hold frequent vocal education on saving water among the

employees;

o Adopt water-saving equipment instead of traditional one;

. Use groundwater or spring as greening water and road

cleaning water in the construction site;

3 Use rain or spring for construction and maintenance in the

construction site.

To reduce the paper consumption, the Group has conducted the

following practices:

? Use the blank sides of unneeded single-sided copies for

printing drafts;

. Use e-mail instead of memos and faxes for inter-office

memos;

. Print double-sided for paper-intensive activities.

To raise the utilisation efficiency of raw material and avoid
unnecessary waste, the Group adopts the Just-in-time (“JIT")

procurement as the policy of purchasing.
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A.3.The Environment and Natural Resources

A3 RERAARER

In respect to the impact on the environmental and natural
resources, the Group is in strict compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations including Circular Economy Promotion Law
of the people’s Republic of China ({ % A R L H1 B 1 3R £ 7
5&/"2) In FY 2016, the Group has no construction work, thus it
exerts no bad influence on its surroundings. The Group closely
links its concept of green building to the construction projects by
planting many trees around its property scope. The Group aims
to perform better in the cause of energy saving and emission
reduction and create green enterprise in the future.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES
B.1. Employment

V. +EUEFEER
ERRETHEH
B.l. 1EfE

The Group treasures talent as it is the most valuable asset and
key for driving success and maintaining sustainable development.
The Group strives to provide its staff with a safe and suitable
platform for career development and advancement.

The Group’s human resources policies strictly adhere to the
applicable employment laws and regulations in Hong Kong and
the PRC, including the Employment Ordinance, Employees’
Compensation Ordinance, Minimum Wage Ordinance,
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, Labour Law
of the PRC (FEI%5 &)%) and Labour Contract Law of the
PRC (FEIEB)E [EE). This ensures that the Group provide
fair welfare and benefits, and a fair working environment to its
employees. The Group’s Human Resources Department reviews
and updates relevant company policies regularly in accordance
with the latest laws and regulations.

Talent acquisition is vital to the Group's business future
development. To attract high-calibre workforce, the Group
offers competitive and fair remuneration and benefits based
on individuals’ performance, professional qualifications and
experiences. The Group also makes reference to market
benchmarks and the Group's financial performance. In order to
motivate and reward existing management and employees, the
Group conducts regular compensation review according to the
overall market environment, inflation, profitability of the Group
and employee performance in the past to determine the staff
salary adjustment to ensure that they are recognised by the
Group appropriately with regard to their working efforts and
contributions.
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Remuneration Committee of the Group is responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management, reviewing the remuneration package and
recommending salaries, bonuses, including the incentive awards
for Executive Directors and senior management. Meanwhile,
any termination of employment contract should be based on
reasonable and lawful grounds. The Group strictly prohibits any

kinds of unfair or unreasonable dismissals.

The Group determines working hours and rest period for its
employees in line with local employment laws and employment
contracts with employees. In addition to statutory holidays,
employees may also be entitled to additional leave entitlements
which are stipulated by the employment law of the local

government such as the paid annual leave and sick leave.

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is committed
to create a fair, respectful and diverse working environment
by promoting anti-discrimination and equal opportunity in all
human resources and employment decisions. For instance,
training and promotion opportunities, dismissals and retirement
policies are determined irrespective of their gender, race, age,
disability, family status, marital status, sexual orientation, religion
beliefs, nationality or any other non-job related factors in all
business units. The Group'’s equal opportunities policy enforces
zero tolerance to any workplace discrimination, harassment or
victimisation in accordance to relevant government legislation,
ordinances and regulations such as Hong Kong's Disability
Discrimination Ordinance and Sex Discrimination Ordinance.
If there is any violation of anti-discrimination incidents,
employees can report to Human Resources Department.
Human Resources Department is fully responsible to strictly
comply with national and corporate regulations on assessing,

dealing with, recording and taking disciplinary actions on such

events.

In terms of internal coaching, effective two-way communication
between general staff and managerial staff is highly encouraged.
Employees maintain timely and smooth communication with
the management and colleagues within the Group through the
emails, trainings and meetings. The interactive communication

benefits the Group’s decision-making process and results in a

barrier-free employer-employee relationship.
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B.2.

B.3.

Health and Safety

To provide and maintain good working conditions and a safe
and healthy working environment, the Group’s safety and health
policies are in line with various laws and regulations stipulated
by the local government, including the Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance, the Production Safety Laws of the PRC (/R
% & A %), Occupational Disease Prevention Law in the PRC
(P EIBEERFHAE) and Regulation on Work-Related Injury
Insurance (ZZ 4R g 15 101).

The Group has established a comprehensive mechanism in
committing the workplace safety by incorporating a range of
occupational health and safety measures for all of its employees
in the office. The Group prohibits smoking and drinking liquor
in workplace, carries out the disinfection treatment of carpets
and sets up first aid boxes with an aim to maintain a clean, tidy,
smoke-free, non-toxic, non-hazardous, healthy and safe working
environment in the office. Besides, the Group held regular
occupational health and safety trainings to its staff to minimise
the risk of accidents and enhance the employees’ health and
safety awareness. The Group targets to achieve accident-free

workplace environment.

Development and Training

The Group emphasises on staff’s training and development
in order to strengthen work-related skills and knowledge
and improve operational efficiency. The Group encourages
and sponsors employees to attend external seminars such as
annual regulatory updates and newly implemented ordinances
which are organised by professional institutions to strengthen
work-related skills and knowledge on products, regulations,
compliance procedures and market updates.
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B.3.
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B.4. Labour Standards

The Group strictly abides by the Employment Ordinance of
Hong Kong, Labour Law of the PRC and other related labour
laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC to prohibit any
child and forced labour employment. To combat against illegal
employment on child labour, underage workers and forced
labour, prior to confirmation of employment, the Group's
human resources staff requires job applicants to provide valid
identity documents to ensure that the applicants are lawfully
employable. The Human Resources Department is responsible
to monitor and ensure compliance of latest and relevant laws
and regulations that prohibits child labour and forced labour.
If the Group discovered such case, the employment will be
immediately terminated.

OPERATING PRACTICES
B.5. Supply Chain Management

As a socially responsible enterprise, it is critical and vital to
maintain and manage a sustainable and reliable supply chain.
The Group’s supply chain management is consistent to its
sustainability in establishing a mutual trust and understanding
with its business partners.

For property business, the Group generally outsources
construction work to independent construction companies that
specialise in different aspects of property development. The
project company of the Group oversees the procurement of
construction materials and typically invites competitive tendering
procedures. Each bid is assessed based on the contractor’s
reputation and product quality comply with PRC laws and
regulations relating to the quality of construction as well as
its own standards and specifications. Once the eligible tender
has been selected, the project company works closely with
the selected contractors in the execution of the development
plans and closely monitors each phase of the construction to
oversee the quality and timetable of completion of each project.
The contractors are subject to the Group's quality control
procedures, including the examination of materials and supplies,
on-site inspection and production of progress reports. The
sample of supplied materials is sent to the relevant qualified

certification bodies for further testing on its density and safety.
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B.6.

[ts main suppliers in money lending and security trading business
are the security service providers. Comprehensive assessment
is performed in selecting suppliers. The Group expects its
suppliers are in high quality and operate in compliance with
applicable local environmental laws, ordinances and regulations.
By selecting reliable supplier, the Group is committed to conduct
business with the suppliers which are socially responsible with
high level of professional ethics.

To avoid any disruptions of supply chain, the Group maintains a
close dialogue with the suppliers and at least two suppliers for
each of supplied services if there are available suppliers in the
market. Meetings are held periodically with the suppliers to share
market information and product updates. In order to manage
the supply chain effectively, the Group would maintain good and
long-term relationship with suppliers by establishing mutual trust

and understanding.

For any non-compliance with expected standards of the
suppliers’ services, the Group would propose suppliers to take
remedial actions immediately to rectify the problems. The Group
would closely follow-up on each supplier's complaint and the
implementation of the remedial measures to ensure that they
are carried out properly and effectively.

Product Responsibility

Property Business

Property business is extensively regulated by planning policies
and other laws and regulations of the PRC Government
including The Administrative Regulations on the Work Safety
of Construction Projects (& Li2Z 2 EEE B IKMH),
Convention concerning Safety and Health in Construction
(BEELZ2HENYL), Regulatory Measures on the Sale of
Commercial Houses (B mFE HEEEHE) and Law of the
PCR on the Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests (1%
ARKMBEIEEE RS REEL).
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The project company of the Group has the responsibility of safe
management throughout the whole process of construction and
sales of properties. The Group sets up the rules for property
business which is specific to the characteristics of project in
order to improve and standardise the safety management. It
covers safety responsibility, safety education and training, safety
inspection, contingency plan for public emergencies and safety
incident reporting mechanism. Besides, the Group sets up
the product quality targets and formulates the corresponding
technical standards and construction plans in the project
planning. The safety and quality of the Group's properties are
monitored at all stages of construction to ensure they meet the

national standards and stringent requirements in place.

In the process of housing sales, the Group offers the
maintenance period to the property projects to customers.
If there are any problems on quality deficiencies, the project
company would arrange the necessary rectification before
obtaining the acceptance from customers. The Group pays
paramount importance to customer’s opinion. The Group
has placed the letter box to collecting customer’s opinions.
Designated person will analysis the complaints and propose
corrective measures and responses to customers promptly.

Money Lending Business

The Group was granted a money lenders licence by the licensing
court in Hong Kong pursuant to the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group adopted
and set up the money lending policy and procedure manuals
such as Credit Policy Manual which provide guidelines on
handling and/or monitoring of money lending procedures to
ensure that the services comply with the requirement of the
aforesaid rules and regulations. The Group is committed to
provide clear and balanced information to customers. Service
features, terms and conditions, and any associated risks are
clearly communicated to customers by the Group’s employees
with professional due care, in particular the terms in relation to
repayment, through letters and telephone. Services provided
are complied with the requirement of Hong Kong Monetary
Authority. In addition, the Group must perform a credibility test
in assessing customers’ financial background and risk tolerant
level before any transaction taken place.
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The Group strives to provide a prompt response to customers’
complaints and opinions. All comment are collected and analysis
by a team of Credit Department. After internal discussion, a

formal reply will be issued to customers in writing if necessary.

The Group

The Group emphasises the importance of protecting the privacy
of the customers and commits in abiding by Hong Kong’s
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance and other relevant local
laws and regulations at all times in collection, use and holding
of customer’s information. The Group prohibits the provision
of consumer information to a third party without authorisation
from the customers. All customers’ personal data should be used
for the purpose authorised or implied by the service contract or
invoice and relevant data must be properly kept. If there are any
requests for customers’ information, internal department will be
consulted to ensure the appropriateness of disclosure under the
law and policies. All collected personal data during the course of
business are treated as confidential and kept securely, accessible
by designated personnel only.

Advertisements of the Group do not include any statement,
promise or forecast which is false, misleading or deceptive to our
customers which comply with the relevant laws and regulations
for local operations. Prior to public release of advertisement,
the materials are reviewed by senior management for final
approval to ensure that there are no erroneous statements.
Information provided by the Group is committed to be true,
accurate and not misleading and makes disclosure of all relevant
and material information which complies with the relevant
laws and regulations. For the advertisement in relation to the
money lending business, the Group strictly complies with the
requirements under the additional licensing conditions of Money
Lenders Licence.
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B.7. Anti-corruption

To maintain a fair, ethical and efficient business and working
environment, the Group strictly adheres to the laws and
regulations relating to anti-corruption and bribery irrespective
of the area or country where the Group is conducting business
such as Hong Kong's Prevention of Bribery Ordinance. The
Group will not be tolerated any form of corruption. All
employees are expected to discharge their duties with integrity
and self-discipline, and they are required to abstain from
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering
activities or any activities which might exploit their positions
against the Group's or client's or impair their interests.
Declaration should be made by the directors of the Company
in writing to the internal department for any financial interests,
directly or indirectly, in any business which competes with
the Group or with which the Group has business dealings.
The Group remind its staff to follow the professional ethics of
relevant professional bodies and encourage its staff to attend the
training courses of bribery, fraud and money laundering which
are organised by Hong Kong Independent Commission Against
Corruption and other professional bodies. Where criminality and
misconduct behaviours are suspected, a report is made following
the procedures of the relevant regulators or law enforcement

authorities if to be necessary.

COMMUNITY

B.8. Community Investment

The Group is now working on cultivating social responsibility
awareness among its staff and encourage them to participate in
charitable activities. In future, the Group aims to extend active
presence in community activities to support public welfare in
addition to its efforts in delivering business growth and will
listen to community needs, exerting itself to contribute to local
economy, livelihood and a harmonious environment for mutual
benefit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B2 BEN RS

B &<t 5% A R A A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 62 to |83, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2017, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sections of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BN 2B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HAREETER

Recoverability of properties under development

TR R SRR T W E

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

2RI4R A WIS MAR M EE22 ©

The Group had approximately HK$765,886,000 of properties under
development as at 31 March 2017.
RZFE-—tHE=A=+—H
765,886,00078 JT °

ERERAERTOVED

Management assessed the recoverability of properties under
development based on an estimation of the net realisable value of the
underlying properties. This involves considerable analyses of estimated
costs to completion and committed contracts and expected future sales
price or rental value based on prevailing market conditions such as
current market prices of comparable standards and locations.
BEERBABDENGAIERFEFGEERTDENTRE
1 o BRPRENT T RARES QR GFHRARERE R (P
AENBRERNENERTE) WERAKREEXHEEENAE
DT
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ETNEEZEREETEER

Our procedures in relation to management's
assessment of recoverability of properties
under development included:
HMEEEEHERT VRO UEIEMIE
ML AR F R

* Testing the key controls around the
property construction cycle with particular
focus on, but not limited to, controls over
cost budgeting for estimated costs to
completion; and

- ARESYMEEZEBHNEREE L
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

BEETER

Recoverability of properties under development (continued)

B R RSO T W B (4]

If the actual net realisable values of the underlying stock of properties
fluctuates from those values estimated as a result of changes in market
condition, material reversal of or provision for impairment losses on
properties under development may result.
WEEYEFENERATZRFERATREEMEZFEHEETD
[ - BIAJRESIMERERTYERER RO AR -

Due to the estimation uncertainty and management judgement, we
considered this a key audit matter.

RGN TR EEEHE - AR QU IRERETFE -

AR ETSH(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ETNIEEZERETEE

* Assessing the reasonableness of
key assumptions and estimates in
management’s assessment, on a sample of
properties selected, including:

- EENYEELRS - FEERER
EEEEREFTNEENE - 8%

* expected future sales prices which
we compared to contracted sales
prices of the underlying properties or
current market prices of properties of
comparable standards and locations,
where applicable; and

- REHAREEEEEDENAD
EERAELRBERMLEYED
ERIHE(ER)ETLER &

* anticipated costs to completion
and committed contracts which we
compared to latest approved budgets
on total construction costs and checked
to supporting documentation.

c BT MAEAHNER KA EE
BN ARERNAREETHER
REFFZAXM -

We found that management's assessment
of recoverability of properties under
development is supported by the available
evidence.
BRAPEEEEEEBHERTYENAIIENE
FREERHE T B R A K ©
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BN 2B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HAREETER

Impairment assessment of interest in an associate

RBEE DTz SR ET

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
2R A M MR M FE20 ©

The interest in an associate is accounted for under the equity method. As
at 31 March 2017, the interest in an associate amounted to approximately
HK$427,228,000 and the related share of results of an associate for the
year ended 3| March 2017 was approximately HK$840,000.
REERRZ RGNS EAR - R-T—+tF=A=+—8"
KRB ERR 2 EHAIR4272280008 T MBE-_T—tF=H
=t —HIFEMREES A — L QB RAEX 840,000/8 7T ©

The management performed impairment assessment of interest in
an associate with the use of valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the value in use calculation.
The valuation requires the application of significant judgement and
estimation by the management in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology to be used, use of subjective assumptions and various
unobservable inputs.

BEEERNEE AR 2 B ETRERNE - BENERBILIERIIE
MEMEHZEE  LERBEFEESE  -AEFREEEAEE
EEEZHERMGETE  MEREBERRETRATABERMSEH
ABUR S &R 2R HI i & A5t
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ETNAREZBRETSE

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment of interest in an
associate included:

IR EH N E QR s PR AR ERT
M2 B

* Evaluating the competency, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
external valuer:

o AHEBZEEIMBMAER 2 KEE - B

SRS S

* Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on our knowledge
of the property industry and using our
valuation experts; and

- RERMANDRTENBIRERGEEE
Rt EEETA  AREXREFTEES
B8 Rk

* Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.

- MEERMABAREESSERLEDS
18E -

We found the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.

B EEERBERDBEAK -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HAREETER

Impairment assessment on loan receivables

FE W & BB B

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.
SHGE M BREN TS -

The Group has loan receivables of approximately HK$38,344,000.
Management judgement is required in assessing and determining the
recoverability of loan receivables and adequacy of allowance made.
ERERARKEF#38344,000/8 T ° VG METE R ERAA]
Bl & FTE L B R IR & 1R - BIREAMEL HIH -

The judgement mainly includes estimating and evaluating expected
future receipts from customers based on past payment trend, age of
the customers, knowledge of the customers’ businesses and financial
condition.
HEETERRRBEBENTES BEPFFRALEREFPNEL R
AR R - At RFHER B TP OBHARRMEA -

EAREE IR (E)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ETNAREZBRETSE

Our procedures in relation to management's
impairment assessment on loan receivables
included:

MR E TR B Y I E R ATER R ERT S
FAIE 7 B4

* Discussing the Group's procedures on
credit limits and credit periods given to
customers with the management;

- HERENR SREREPRMHEE
REE R EEHER

* Evaluating the management’s impairment
assessment of loan receivables:

- FPEEIEE R UCE KA R R (E RF
1t

* Assessing, validating and discussing with
the management and evaluating their
assessment on the recoverability of the
outstanding loan receivables and the
adequacy of allowance made based on the
loan receivables ageing analysis, collections
subsequent to the end of the reporting
period, past collection history and trend
analysis and knowledge of the businesses,
with focus on long outstanding debts and
debts which are past due but not impaired;
and

- REBEREFREST - MEBHRED
Wk - BERGRE SR BB O - UK
HRERGHRH - YHEHNEERNE
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BN 2B AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matter

HAREEITER

Impairment assessment on loan receivables (continued)

FE Wt & RROR B R AL ()

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BN ETNREZBERESSE

* Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy
and relevance of information included
in the impairment assessment of loan
receivables.

o S A REREEFRENGEME
RE R SERE I MR

We consider the management conclusion to
be consistent with the available information.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2B AR

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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BN 2B AR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B 2B AR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Shek Lui.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Shek Lui
Practising Certificate Number: PO5895

Hong Kong, 28 June 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ma

S R Ht 2 ERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

Continuing operations
Revenue, net
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenue

Other gains

Distribution and selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Share of results of an associate

Write down of obsolete inventories

Provision for impairment loss on property,
plant and equipment

Provision for impairment loss on
intangible assets

Loss on disposal of subsidiaries

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

Profit for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive
income/(expenses), net of tax
Reclassification adjustments relating to
foreign operations disposed during the year
Share of other comprehensive expense
of an associate
Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive expenses for the year,
net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

2017 2016
—E-t%F A
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FTER FET
BEREER
WA FEE 7 4,454
5 AR (100)
EH 4354
Eftn i A 8 10,801
H AW as 132
DIERIHEER (3,650)
THAX (87,111)
G —MEE & N A 2 ¥4E (732)
8517 S HOR 21 (3,493)
M - BEREERE
E R 18 (4,156)
my A EREEERE
19 (26,557)
HE B A R ESE 34 (25)
BB KA 10 (30,774)
MRBLATE 1B I (141211)
Fiig 14 (1,664)
TEERFESEERZER
(142,875)
REFZDRIEZER 2R F
15 50,111
REERIE (92,764)
Hih2mE
Wz, (BA%) » BRBi%
EEFRNEHEBINER 2
B BFHE (28,408)
DR E QB M 2 E
(5.264)
BREBINEBEEZIELZRE
(64,228)
REEHMPEMX @ RE%
(97,900)
AEERHEBEARE (190,664)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBEmkEMEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EH{Z - T —tF =—A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
—E-tF —E—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt =E THERT FET
Loss attributable to: FEMR 1

Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZF =N 17 (92,794) (76,205)
Non-controlling interest JEFE R HE (1,010) (16,559)
(93,804) (92,764)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to: JE(E 2T E B4R
Owners of the Company EN/NCIEZ Z DN (198,508) (173,672)
Non-controlling interest JEITRRRE RS (C2L)) (16,992)

(199,487) (190,664)

HK$ HKS
BT BT

Loss per share attributable to owners ZA QB HEAAEEESRER
of the Company

From continuing and discontinued REFERERBR LXK

operations

— Basic and diluted — BEXREE 17 (0.018)
From continuing operations REFEREEL

— Basic and diluted — ERREE 17 (0.030)

Annual Report 2017 F 3 63



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR AR

Asat 31 March 2017 R-ZB—+E=A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Interest in an associate
Deposits paid

Current assets

Properties under development

Loan receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amount due from an associate

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale

Current liabilities
Trade payables
Other payables and accruals
Receipts in advance
Tax payable
Convertible notes

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

ERBEE

WE - BE &R

R — PR A F 2 i
B

RBEE

BRPYE

FE W E R

BNFE  ZE2 R
Hofth & U BR X

JEUY — SR Bt & R R) L FRIR
BERBEAFEARZ
BisEE
RITEBRMRE

DERFFHECZEE

RBEE

B P EMERR

Hip AR AT & A
TEWRIA

FEfITRIA

AR RE

RBEEFE
EERERABDRE
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Notes
h=s

18
20
24

22
23

24
20

25
26

27
28

30

2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FHET

39,630
427,228
361,011

827,869

765,866
38,344

317,360
11,789

7,762
464,026

1,605,147

1,605,147

39,560
166,847
100,082

223

306,712

1,298,435

2,126,304

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHT

39,157
456,313
598,092

1,093,562

782,281
40,638

58,289
4,167

10,632
505,485

1,401,492
65,667

1,467,159

8,676
169,972
97,800
2,101
9,646

288,195
1,178,964

2,272,526



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e AR R

Asat 3l March 2017 R —ZE—+F=HA=+—H

Capital and reserves BEAXR#E
Share capital [N
Reserves G

Total equity attributable to owners AAREE AELERERHE
of the Company

Non-controlling interest IR RE

Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Convertible notes AT iR
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Huang Yilin
ERMNEE
Director

EBEF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

2017 2016

—B—tF —TAF

Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MisE Tl FHT
29 1,335,923 1,335,923
35 548,290 712,015

1,884,213 2,047,938

(9,147) (8,070)

1,875,066 2,039,868

30 209,769 188,448
31 41,469 44210

ZEGAVBRRECHEFEN T —LF
NAZTN\BHAERKETELHATAL
REEFEHRE

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
BB EE

Director

EFE

ok

BEft < M RZ SR M BERR 2 — 8D -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDPER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG LN 1
PRC Attributable
Convertible Share-based statutory to non-
Share Share Capital notes  payment Special reserve Translation Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve losses  Subtotal interest Total
TRRE HRH HEEE FERESR
ke ROEE RAEE BRE  XNRE  BRRRE MRE  ENRE  ETEE it i Eh
HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
ThL ThRL THL ThL TERL Thx ThRL T T Thn ThRL ThL
(note i) (note i (note il
(Byzt) (Paki) — (Hieti)
At | April 2015 R-E-1%mA-A 694848 1188237 198,350 7209 31,900 92926 2062 31466 (1,166060)  1,080938 8433 1089371
Loss for the yezr RERER - - - - - - - CmWY 805 (659 (276
Other comprehensive expenses FERAMRENS
fortheyear . . . . . . - e S o) @y @)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEF 2 ESRAE - - - - - - - (O7467) (76205 (17367 (16992)  (190664)
Conversion of convertible notesbond T RRES /EFEH ERN
into shares 215000 200200 - (54311) - - - - - 360,889 - 360,889
Recognition of equity component of B TAREL /Eh 2
convertible notesibonds Exds - - - 119993 - - - - - 119993 - 119993
Lapse of share options BIRELHR - - - - (10.255) - - - 10255 - - -
Equity settled share-based transactions ~ JAEHEELRA B
AR5 - - - - %5 - - - - 33 - 356
Share subscription i3 332500 146,300 - - - - - - - 478800 - 478800
Plcig o shares BERH B0 5780 - . . . . . S a0 S
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAT - - - - - - (2082) - 2061 - - -
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise  {TEERERZTERR
of share options 8575 4642 - - (10,102) - - - - 3115 - 3115
Acauistion of additional interest in WENBAEzBMER
subsidiries - - - - - - N N1 I 4 .
At3I March 2016and | Aprl 2016 R=F-~EZR=+-RR
RZF-~EmA-A 1335923 1597179 198350 72891 47107 92926 - (63827)  (1.232611) 2047938 (8070) 2039868
Loss for the yezr rEERE - - - - - - - S o (00 (538
Other comprehensive (expenses)income AEEE M2 (Rt ) /Wi
for the year - - - - . . o (1071 o051 I (I56R)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ AEE 2 EERAE - - - - - - - (l0s714) (1794)  (198508) 979 (199487)
Redemption of convertible notes BEMEAZE - - - (330) - - - - 30 - - -
Lapse of share options BRELH - - - - (4559) - - - 4559 - - -
Equty settled share-based trensactions ~ MEREENRN A
ERIRD X - - - W’ - - - - -
Deregistration of a subsidiary BEERnEAR - - - - - - - - - - (%8) (%8)
At 31 March 2017 R-E-tE=f=1-R 1335923 1597179 198,350 72561 71331 92926 - (169.541)  (1.320516) 1884213 9.147) 1875066
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—Z—

Notes:

0]

(i

(i)

The

SERBDE

TFE=ZA=T—BILFE

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting held on 3| May
2013, the Company effected the capital reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) which
became effective on 3 June 2013 and involved (i) the consolidation of every twenty-five
issued and unissued shares with a par value of HK$0.05 each into one consolidated share;
(ii) the reduction of issued share capital whereby the par value of each issued consolidated
shares will be reduced from HK$1.25 to HK$0.25 by cancelling the paid-up capital to the
extent of HK$1.00 on each of the consolidated shares to a reduced share of HK$0.25
each; (iii) transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction to the capital reserve
account of the Company; (iv) the sub-division of each unissued consolidated share into
five reduced shares of HK$0.25 each.

The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the nominal amount of the
shares of the subsidiaries at the date of the group reorganisation over the nominal
amount of the shares issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition of the

subsidiaries.

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign investment in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Company's PRC subsidiaries are required to maintain
two statutory reserves, being a statutory surplus reserve and an enterprise expansion
fund (collectively referred to as the “PRC statutory reserve funds”), which are non-
distributable. The statutory surplus reserve fund may be used to make up prior year losses
incurred and, with approval from relevant government authority, to increase capital. The
enterprise expansion fund, subject to approval by relevant government authority, may also

be used to increase capital.

accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Bt

0]

(ii)

(i)

BER Z M X B S

BERZT-—=FRA=-+—ARITZREHERIK
FERBZFIARR  AARBETRAEZA(R
ABEIR-_T—ZFE~AZBERERSROE
Z+EBREREMEA0SHE T Z B EITRAEITR
MEMB—REHRD : (HHIRBBITRA - &
bt BREFBTAHROZEEKEBTHERE
BERRAD 2 BRI AR 100 T EBREE RSB TZ
EHIRAR 9 R 1258 TR Z 02578 7T ¢ (iii) i A
BRAERESE ZERBBEANRZEAFEER
(VEBRARBTEHBROITAARREREEA025
BT KRR

AEBMZEHFEENEESAE ANBERR 2K
PEEBLHARRERKBHBEAR ZREMET
ZBEMEEZ SR °

B ARAMB([HEDINERERBER A
RZHRE  ARBZPEMERRARIMEEE
W TADIREEBHRAEEREEHRRA
(B PREATAER])  ATABRITEEST
RER R L —FEELZER - WA AR B
FItbEZ BR TEREMEARAZA - bEBRED
FEABABUFRRPIHLE 2 BR T IR A (EREME R
o

BMBHRERZ —#D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEREMER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H{ZE - T —tF =—A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
—B—+F —EREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt TR FET
Cash flows from operating activities REEEER2RERE
Loss before taxation BRI E B
— Continuing operations —FEREES (94,121) (141,121)
~ Discontinued operations —BERIEES = (50,111)
(94,121) (91,100)
Adjustments for: BRDRIE A
Interest income on bank deposits RITEFFSWA 8 (2,809) (1,112)
Interest income on loan receivables FEU & KA SUA = (1,147)
Dividend income BB 8 @n (24)
Finance cost BEKAK 10 32,115 30,774
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME BERRBNE I 4,554 3,546
Written off of property, plant and equipment WE - BE KR EME 1268
Amortisation of intangible assets BB 6,170
Equity settled share-base transaction NS EENRDRERI XS 35,564
Loss/(gain) on disposal of subsidiaries TERBRRERE,(WE) 34 (54,568)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary BT M B A REE -
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value — &E@BEATFEARZ
through profit or loss MBEE N TEE I 436
Share of results of an associate JELE & DRI %R 732
Gains on disposal of property, plant and HENE BEEREZ
equipment, net Weas - %R -
Written-off of inventories FEin 3,493
Provision for impairment loss on intangible assets /& E R EE B E 26,557
Provision for impairment loss on property, M - R NGRERE
plant and equipment EERE I 4,156
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets HELIEZARZ
through profit or loss BB EEMBRIE 24,375
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through B E &85 AT E
profit or loss ARz eREE (29.623)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEREMER

For the year ended 31 March 2017 EH{Z - T —tF =—A=+—HILtFE

2017 2016
e —EREF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt THERT FAET
Operating cash flows before movements in EEESEBFICEBERSRE
working capital (20,964) (40,403)
Increase in properties under development BRAPYELN (32,828) (10,536)
Decrease in trade and bills receivables U EE G ESE R - 55,329
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FERNFR - B REMEKIRR
other receivables Byl (267,708) (55/476)
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables EWEZCRD /() 2,294 (40,638)
Increase in amount due from an associate & A= NCIE =R | (8,053) (4,082)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables B S EMERZE M (Rd) 32,111 (52,539)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals  E 4 BR RN fE 51 B F
=i,/ Ofd) 6,360 (12,590)
Increase in receipts in advance U BN Zh SR 158 0 8,533 97,800
Decrease in amount due to JE UK 3 122 i P 5 AR TERL
non-controlling shareholders (389)
Cash used in operations CEBERARS (280,255) (63,524)
Income tax paid BRAER (1,561) 541
Net cash used in operating activities e EE AR S FEE (281,816) (62,983)
Investing activities RETED
Deposit for acquisition of investment properties ~ WK BEMEZEH S 204,350 (395,138)
Deposit for acquisition of fixed assets WEETEEZ RS - 26,230
Net cash outflow from acquisition of REWERBLRRZ
subsidiaries BHent s - (18,617)
Interest received 2 U F 2 2,809 2,259
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  BENRE (7,080) (2,693)
Dividend income % S 21 24
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE
plant and equipment P15 58 70 -
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBRRIZRERATHE 63,148 48,556
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing REEBES/ (AR EE
activities 263,318 (339,379)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SERIMER

For the year ended 3| March 2017 HE =T —+F=A=+—HILFE

Financing activities METED
Interest paid [RERFARSS
Net proceeds from issue of convertible notes BT EEPA SRR FE
Repayment of convertible notes upon BB R R E R
redemption
Net proceeds from placing of new shares REMBHAERESE
Net proceeds from share subscription R 17 SR BE PT1S RRIE S 88
Net cash outflow on acquisition of an associate ~ WREBE & N AR &R H F4E
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of BRETERETTRR

share options

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing BEEZH(FR) /ELzBEE

activities HER
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash BekBeZEMORD), /L
equivalents pEE]
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 73@%}]2@%&@%%@%
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes I [E K B R 2

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year NERZAELAEEEY
Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents  IR& RIREEEM 2 LD

Bank balances and cash RITHEH#ER S
Bank balances and cash included in assets ;,‘I‘]\’\*Eﬁﬁﬂfﬁ%ﬁéz
classified as held for sales RITHEB LIRS

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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2017
—Z—tF
HK$’000
FHT

(10,442)

(9,998)

(20,440)

(38,938)
506,806
(3,842)

464,026

464,026

464,026

BEPM 2 M B FHRAMBHER L —

2016

—ERE

HK$'000
THET

(13,142)
426,234

137,170
476,560
(371,476)

3,115

658,551

256,189
339,807
(89,290)

506,806

505,485

1,321

506,806

:‘z
|:|



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

GENERAL

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate

information of its annual report.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while its
subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
property sales and investment operations in the People’s Republic of
China (the “"PRC"), engaged in iron ore exploration, exploitation and
trading operations in Indonesia, and engaged in investing and financing
operations in Hong Kong.

According to the register of substantial shareholder maintained
by the Company, at 31 March 2017, Xi'an Communication Energy
(Hongkong) Co., Limited is substantial shareholder of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

4 |

SHERERBRAT(ARAF])%E
BREFMRIAZHEERAF &
BHEEEWA X BHRERAA (B
)L - AARZEMBEEREE
BT AR E R AT E R
5 -

ARB /- HEREZERAT - MmEH
BARAR(TXARBRENERRSHE
BIAEE]DAETERPEARLME
([FEDEEDXHERREZLE -
RENEREFHBAYME HARIRESE
B URREBEBUERELRBERE -

BEARRFENTIERRAM - R
T—t+F=A=1+—H AZXBER
(FB)BRARB/ARRNEERR -

BAMBREUETRS) - HEB A
RRAZDEEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b E A
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial Report
Standards (“HKFRSs”’) adopted by the Group

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the HKICPA, which
are effective for the Group’s financial year beginning on | April
2016.

HKAS | (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative

HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of

(Amendments) Depreciation and Amortisation
HKAS 16 and HKAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Planets
(Amendments)

HKAS 27 (Amendments) Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014
Cycle

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
HKAS 28 (Amendments) Exceptions

HKFRS I'I (Amendments)  Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

The application of these amendments in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial performance and
positions for the current and prior year and/or disclosures set

out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IR R M AT
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
ended 3| March 2017:

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Disclosure Initiative'

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses'
HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property?

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance?
HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Classification and Measurement of Share-based

Payment Transactions®
HKFRS 4 (Amendments) Insurance Contracts’

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

HKFRS 15 (Amendments)  Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017, with earlier
application permitted
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018, with earlier
application permitted
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019, with earlier
application permitted
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2017 or

| January 2018 as appropriate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED 2. ¥R RS EBMERE
H
=

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R 2 R (T & BYBHR

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED) 8| ]) (&)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued) (b) ESEFE [ KL 2 EER

BHREER (&)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments BBUBREERFEIN 2T A
HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the R-ZEZNFRMG2EBVEHRE
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was ZRZFEIF S AT IEEE D LA
subsequently amended in 2010 to include requirements for ENFHRTE -  EBY B WMEER
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for FORHEER T —ZTFLIEE]
derecognition, and in 2013 to include the new requirements MAMBEBZ DB R E AL
for general hedge accounting. Another revised version of SHIERZBE YR ZF—=F I
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include a) impairment A—REFSARIBZFHET - R
requirements for financial assets and b) limited amendments to —E-NFEhBZEBYIEREE
the classification and measurement requirements by introducing Bl 2 B —EARKETMRAEE
a FVTOCI measurement category for certain simple debt A EEZRERE  &b)
instruments. ERRETEHEEBIASI AR

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within
a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets,
and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are
generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election
to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

74  Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZAR AR A R

DT (B35 3 5 5 2 T W26 9B
2 BER HHMERIHBRE
IR R £ -

EEHBRERNBIOR L TER

JE -

- BREAGEASIHRYH
TA: ERLAEBBENANZ
FRAEC AN EERLRAR
B R FERE - Bg
mE - MEMENRERER
BRZEBRAFE  RAaK
RengEAXNAEREAR
BEAR 2B ZEHRE
— RN ER 2 B R HE 4 RS
REHERAGTE - RESNJF
U el & #3R &R 8 K &
BEEZEBRATTHEZE
BTE  UREHERSHE
ERHELEZREREERX
NAERREEREHNEZE
BTLAE  —RERAFEIRYL
REMEEPEAERE 2T
FTE - FTERMEHRE MK
AEEHRE R SR AR
B E AFEE © 1o 1R
BERBWHREEREIN -
ERMEETAIRE 2 EE
RE 2 W as P 2 51 AR
B(AFBIEER)AFEZE
®BEE  ERAERSBMA—R
RiBmP R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IR R M AT
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: (continued)

*  With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
requires that the amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under
HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

. in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b E A
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: (continued)

*  the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms currently
available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater flexibility
has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible
for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of
instruments that qualify for hedging instruments and the
types of risk components of non-financial items that are
eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
quantitative effectiveness test has been removed. Enhanced
disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management
activities have also been introduced.

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 9 in
the future may have a material impact on amounts reported
and disclosures made in respect of the Group’s financial assets.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate
of the effect of HKFRS 9 until a detailed review has been
completed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive
model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. HKFRS |5 will supersede the current
revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue,
HKAS || Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step I: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

*  Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies
a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS |5 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (continued)

The Directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15
in the future may have a material impact on the amounts
reported and disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS |5 until the Group

performs a detailed review.

HKFRS |6 Leases

The new standard specifies how an entity to recognise, measure,
present and disclosure leases. HKFRS 16 required lessees to
recognised assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease
term is 12 months or less or the underlying assets has a low
value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance
with HKFRS [6’s approach to lessor accounting substantially

unchanged from its predecessor HKAS 17.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date of
the pronouncement. The directors of the Company are currently
assessing the possible impact of the above new or revised
standards on the Group's results and financial position in the first
year of application. The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group's accounting policies or financial
statements. Other new or revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective are unlikely to have material impact on
the Group's financial statement upon application.

Except as described above, the Directors do not anticipate
that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
a material effect on the amounts recognised in the Group's

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consolidation

given exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

3. FESFTHEEE

EHREH
RAPBRRDBRBEFESANLE
(TEBGFEIAE ) RMH 2B BB R
SEAN(TEEMBREEL D RBER
AGRPIZ ERERS -

RAEZEEEMBRERMERAZEIRES
AABEREHINMT - RRBAEREIN B
AZERRENERFHERER -

mREE

A B RS IRA IR & KA RS
e 0T XA & AR AL+ AR P E
SEZETHBTAKRS -

B AT ERAL 2 ARG A RD 2
DFAEHE -

RPEREFAEBNARFRSZH  m5
S2EEZBHE-REEMBERIREE
B-RAERESHER - M HZ
BEREGEEANTEREXARAS B
BETDEG - RAFFEEXRRERF
BF - WHiE2EENGTEAREEN
BETEREZEZAEERRENE
B AAKRESFERERH - HEeY
BRmRPAEFER ARERENA
FERZEEETE  EEEYHHREE
AIE2RBEANBRD MRS - FE
SFFERFE I TSRBEANNHERS - A
RERAFEFES TREUMELIEQF
BEMFTE(MEB G ERE 2R
I FERT B G EE3RF AL
FREE)RSN

Annual Report 2017 F#

79



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

o Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level [, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)

controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Company:

\d has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)
At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with HKAS 12 and HKAS 19 respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date; and

*  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’'s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,
would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in the
normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related taxes,

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered

and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to

that asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established (provided
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group

and the amount of income can be measure reliably).

Net gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised on the transaction date when the relevant contracts are
executed.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and any identified

impairment loss at the end of the reporting period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, plant
and equipment over their estimated useful lives after considering
their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Buildings 4%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 209% — 25%

20% — 50%
12 /2% — 30%
6 %/3% — 30%

Leasehold improvements
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Mining right

Mining right is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. The mining right is amortised using the unit-of-
production method based on the total proven and probable mineral
reserves, which is reviewed at least at each end of the reporting

period.

Impairment of mining right

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for mining right at each reporting date. Mining right is tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present values of those cash flows.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Expected useful lives of Mining right and Mineral
Reserves

The Group's management has determined the estimated useful lives

of its mining right based on the proven and probable mineral reserves.

Amortisation rate is determined based on estimated proven
and probable mineral reserve quantities with reference to the
independent technical assessment report. The capitalised costs of the
mining right are amortised using the unit-of production method. Any
change to the estimated proven and probable mineral reserves will

affect the amortisation charge of the mining right.

Proven and probable mineral reserve estimates are updated at regular
basis taking into account production and technical information about
the mines. In addition, as prices and cost levels change from year
to year, the estimate of proven and probable mineral reserves also
changes. This change is considered a change in estimate for accounting
purposes and is reflected on a prospective basis in relation to

amortisation rate.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, interests in
associates is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group's interest in associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to
the extent of interests in associate that are not related to the Group.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except while another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals a rising under
operating lease are recognised as an expense in the period in which
they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land use rights

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payment” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the lease term on

straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period

in which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans (state-
managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme) are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
administered funds.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFTBER(E)
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (continued) BRIKBFILA (E)
Retirement benefits scheme (continued) BIKEFIETE (&

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers’ contributions
subject to a cap monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested in
accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer’s contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the
contributions payable by the Group.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the Group participates in the relevant social retirement benefit
schemes (the "PRC Schemes"”) whereby the Group is required to
contribute to the PRC Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
the eligible employees. Contributions made to the PRC Schemes
are calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll
costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents gross
contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC.

Share options scheme

The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
recognition of significant contribution of and for the provision of
incentives to any directors, employees (whether full-time or part-
time), consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors
of or contractors to the Group or affiliates. The fair value of share
options granted to employee is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (continued)

Share options scheme (continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to retained profits).

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =T —t+F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each end
of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included
in the accounting for the business combination.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development expenditure
All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put

into commercial production.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Inventories — properties under development

The cost of properties under development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price, based on prevailing market conditions, less
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the
property.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

94 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZER AR A

3.

TESFER(E)

BEREREERE
REREHR  AEEGUEGERAF
R2BEMREVEE RESBETE
% NEEREAEMPRBRZEFE
ECHREERRE - WAEAZFD
o AEEHEEZAREESE  UE
EREREAZEE - EEAMBENE
EZAHOeRE  AEEEMFZRE
EZHBREELBM 2 AIREEHE -
BRAEMNAE A ERFERER -
XEENEOREEBMNREELEM -
FNEEABANARNFESREEY
RNRSELEM -

BEERAIEAFHRIELEEALFEK
AERBEVEERZLBFRRAR
R % B E T B RUE B 1T RUE A

Al

FE-RETYE

TR 2 AR B R Bl R 2 A A A
P BRELHKREAAR - REEKRAK -
MEEDE  TEREBERER A
NEE L PIEERARERMNER
PR o Al IR FEELIRITH ISR
AHEVHE BB R TR A RHEY
ERELHRA

RfE
NABEEHMELREEE(TRE
BERHERNEL)  UBKRTTaH
ENHARBIXEL  MEESHL
A et at - B RERERIELL -

HTETEEKX EEWZT%ﬁ%%EJEFj
BHETETMEARARA N RE K
ZHME- 1hﬁaﬁfﬁ1ﬁ&fﬂ~ff’ﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬂ Rl
EIME AN K ERAT BBEKA -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and loans and receivables.
The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is
either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
near future; or

* itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that
the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
At each end of the reporting period subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, loan receivables, amount due from an associate and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.

Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of impairment at
each end of the reporting period. Loans and receivables are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated future
cash flows have been affected.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mm jﬁk#&%EMT

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTBEK(E)

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)
Objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation; or

*  the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of
trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously

written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been

had the impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Company that contain both
the conversion option components are classified separately into
respective items on initial recognition. A conversion option that will
be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using the prevailing market interest of similar non-
convertible debts. In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The equity component, representing the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary shares of the Company,
will remain in equity until the embedded option is exercised (in which
case the balance stated in capital reserve will be transferred to share
premium). Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in capital reserve will be released to the retained
profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion
or expiration of the option.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mm jﬁk#&%EMT

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Convertible notes (continued)

For the convertible notes issued in connection to the acquisition of
assets and liabilities through acquisition of subsidiary, the conversion
option component is recognised at fair value and included in equity,
taking into account that the counterparty must forfeit the right
to received cash in order to receive equity instrument. For other
convertible notes, the difference between the gross proceeds of the
issue of the convertible notes and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the conversion option for the holder to

covert the notes into equity, is included in equity (capital reserve).

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables
and accruals and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability or where appropriate, a short period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and
recognises an associated liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the

consolidated statement of financial positions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.

Related parties transactions
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the

Group or of a parent of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =T —t+F=A=+—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions (continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiaries is related to the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a

group which the other entity is a member);
(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other

entity is an associate of the third entity;

(V) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employees are also related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group

or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties transactions (continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family members who
may be expected to influence, or be influence by, that person in their
dealing with the entity.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when
there is a transfer of resources, or obligations between the Group and
a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively

with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale,

if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented on the face of the profit or loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to

fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or
disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESFBER(E
(CONTINUED)
Segment reporting DEEE

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type of class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the non-
current asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale

within one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control
of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met,
regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest
in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

4.

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using
straight—line method. The estimation of useful lives of the depreciable
assets is based on the experience of the Group, and useful lives are
reviewed at each end of the reporting period based on changes in
circumstances.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated
at the time the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives continued to be valid.
The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on market value of the assets which require
the use of assumptions and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of properties under development

Valuation of properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The directors estimate the net realisable value for properties under
development based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the directors perform an inventory
review on a product by product basis at the end of each reporting
period and assess the need for write down of properties under
development.

Estimate of recoverable amounts of assets

The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on value-in-use calculations which require
the use of assumptions and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of loan and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group
takes into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The
amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. The Group’s maximum exposure to
financial loss due to failure to discharge an obligation by the debtors
is the carrying amount of loan and other receivables as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Measurement of convertible notes

On the date of issue of convertible notes, the fair value is determined
using a discount rate determined by an independent professional
valuer to the Group with reference to market information; and this
amount is carried as a long term liability at fair value at the end of
the reporting period in accordance with the accounting policy stated
above.

Valuation of share options

The Binominal Option Pricing Model and Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model were applied to estimate the fair value of share options
granted by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries. These pricing
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price. The changes in input assumptions can
materially affect the fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5A. Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

As at 31 March 2017, the capital structure of the Group consists
of debt, which comprises of convertible notes (2016: convertible
notes) and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new shares issues, as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:
Total debts* BIE
Shareholders’ equity fig R i 2
Gearing ratio BEHLX

¢ Total debts comprises convertible notes as detailed in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. BT E(E)

5B. Categories of financial instruments 5B. BT AHEF
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET T
Financial assets M EE
Financial assets at fair value through SEHRTEANFEARZ
profit or loss MBEE 7,762 10,632
Loans and receivables ERRERZIE(BERE R
(including cash and cash equivalents) BE&EEY) 557,212 598,678
Financial liabilities B%EE
Amortised cost BB 413,545 376,742

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group's major financial instruments include loan receivables,
other receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, amount due from an associate, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables and convertible notes. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Market risk
Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group's financial
results and its cash flows. The Group's operations are mainly
in the PRC other than Hong Kong, and the sales and purchases
transactions are conducted using RMB, as such the foreign
currency risk is minimal. The Group currently has not entered
into any contracts to hedge its foreign currency risk. However,
the management monitors foreign currency exposure and will

consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should

the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities and no significant interest rate risk as at 31 March 2017

(2016: Nil).

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty to
a transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfil its obligation which
results in financial loss. The carrying amounts of bank balances
and cash, other receivables and loan receivables included in
the consolidated statement of financial position represent the

Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.

In respect of loan receivables, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approval and other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken for the recoverable amount.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of
each individual’s loan receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment loss are made for
irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 March 2017, based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment on individual loans is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully

recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for each of
their new and existing clients before standard payment terms
and conditions are offered. If there is no independent rating, the
Group assesses the credit quality of the customer based on the
customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings
in accordance with limits set by the directors. The utilisation of
credit limits is regularly monitored.

In respect of other receivables, credit evaluations are performed
on all debtors requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the debtor’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtor.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer and therefore
significant concentrations of credit risk primarily arises when the
Group has significant exposure to individual customers. At the
end of the reporting period, the Group has no trade receivables
(2016: Nil).

In relation to the Group's deposit with bank, the Group limits
its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial
institution with high credit rating and no recent history of default.
The directors consider that the Group's credit risk on the bank
deposits is low. Management continues to monitor the position
and will take appropriate action if their ratings are changed.
As at 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group has no significant
concentration of credit risk in relation to deposit with bank.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework to meet the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

Specifically, bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are
included in the earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights within one year after
the reporting date. The maturity analysis for other non-derivative

financial liabilities is prepared based on the scheduled repayment

dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the

reporting period.

In addition, the following tables detail the Group’s expected
maturity for its non—derivative financial assets. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual cash
flows of the financial assets including interest that will be earned
on those assets. The inclusion of information on these non-
derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the

Group's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on

a net asset and liability basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table (continued)

The amounts included below for variable interest rate
instruments for both non—derivative financial assets and liabilities
are subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
different to those estimates of interest rates determined at the
end of the reporting period.

Moreover, the following tables detail the Group’s liquidity
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash
inflows and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on a
net basis, and the undiscounted gross inflows and outflows on
those derivatives that require gross settlement. When amount
payable or receivable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has
been determined by reference to the projected interest rates
as illustrated by the yield curves at the end of the reporting
period. The liquidity analyses for the Group’s derivative financial
instruments are prepared based on the contractual maturities as
the management considers that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows
of these derivatives, which have been entered into for hedging
purposes.

BT AGE)

S5SC.HORREEBEZRERKE (&)

B ()

TS ()

AT R R E RN EFNRE
HIRFTEEE 2 MR fA5T - AIBAT B
3F1J$Eﬁ%é&&ﬁﬁ2ﬂ%ﬂ+
TAZSHEGHRE

BESN - TR A B AT AR
BILANRBESHN - MEZK
RENMEFREELELEENITAET
ﬂm*ﬂﬁiﬁé?’]fﬁ%/m}\&mHj/?
B ANMBRA ,\n%iE’JMEI
m*ﬁﬁfﬁfﬁ)\&muﬁmb%ﬁﬁ
%Hﬁ%%ﬁ%KHE‘%ﬁﬁﬁ
B2 EREPRELSMGET
MTEET MR METE - REEITEY
BIENRBESOMIEREL
IHARE  EREEERRAN
FEMAY TRAEME M A
ZENETANBR S RERRHEH
5o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE —ZE—+HF=A=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. BT E (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies S5SC.OBRBREZERBFERHIE
(continued) (%)

Liquidity risk (continued) TEEN R R (4E)
Liquidity table (continued) TEBEZF ()

Weighted Total

average carrying

effective Total amount

interest Within Over undiscounted at year

rate lyear  |-2years  2-5years 5years  cash flows ended

¥ RERA EX

ERR -fR -EWE WERF  BENE  ReRE  AkEE
%  HKY000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Thr TR TR Thn TER TR

As at 31 March 2017 R-R-tE

ZR=1-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities Zfi4HKEE
Trade payables BHEME 39,560 = ALY 39,560
Other payab\es ﬁ@ﬁgﬁ,ﬁﬁ%’f\ 164,216 - 164,216 164,216
Convertible notes g ES 9,792 248,609 258,401 209,769

213,568 248,609 462,171 413,545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
Liquidity table (continued)

As at 31 March 2016 R-B-AE
ZR=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3fi4 B % E%E
Trade payables BHENEN
Other payables and accruals EERENR
EiTER
Convertible notes THREE

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
T3
BRI
%

1554

Within
| year

—&R
HK$000
TR

8,676

169,972
[1,145

189,793

5.

[-2 years

—ER%
HK$1000
ThR

27733

27733

KA

MERE  RENL  BaRe
HKS000  HKSO000  HK$000
TR TAR ThR

- - 8,676

- - 169,972
- - 128878

- - 407526
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Total
carying
amount

at year

BT R(E)
S5C.AUBREEBEZERBERBE
(#&)
TETERE (AE)
RENESZ (E)
Total
Over  undiscounted
25 years 5 years cash flows

ended
EX
BEEE
HK$'000
THL

8,676

169,972
198,094

376,741
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =T —t+F=A=+—HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. BART A (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies SC.HBRBEEZERERKE

(continued) (#&)

Other price risk H i E R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investment AEBRIEER EMRAZESMA

in listed equity securities. The management manages this ?(y\ﬂx${f1%ﬂ[5ﬁg c EIREIF B

exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with BEETERR LR IEEHE

different risk and return profiles. The Group's equity price risk is Afiﬁﬁaﬂﬁ“ o REBEZ /B

mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on The Stock Rl EEERRERBHARSA

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, the management BRERBIEE ZEAES o o -

monitors the price risk and will consider hedging the risk EHREEeERBKREAR  THNES

exposure should the need arise. ERE R PARARER

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis HEmESRER — $BZ ST

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on AT BURRE S AT DRI s H EA

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. Z IR EERBRETT o

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the Group's loss WAL A BT8R 10% » A& EE

for the year ended 31 March 2017 would increase/decrease EZFE—+tF-A=+—HLFE

by approximately HK$776,000 (2016: increase/decrease by ZEEEE R A776,0008 T (=

approximately HK$1,063,000). This is mainly due to the changes T —NFE R AT 1,063,000 78

in fair value of held-for-trading investments. ) FERIFEEERAEZA

TEEEE o
5D. Fair value 5D. 2 FfE

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are MBEENRMBEEZ ATEETE

determined as follows: TR

«  the fair value of financial assets with standard terms . QT?UE{I%?}Z&{I%#%E%&K\%
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are B RGZMBEEZ
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices; N ﬁ)’ﬁﬁﬁm SHMEET
and M

e the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities . HUWWMKBEENMUWKEEZA
are determined in accordance with generally accepted $f§}§/z}\%f€ﬁ$§*” AT AN
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using BAIMERSERIFEES
prices or rates from observable current market transactions MABEETHMIRESREDNT
as input. EE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ArE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5D. Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Level | to Level 3 based on the degree to which
the fair value is observable:

Level I quoted prices in active markets for the same
instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging);

Level 2. quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or
liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are based on observable market
data; and

Level 3:  valuation techniques for which any significant input
are not based on observable market data.

The following table show an analysis of financial instruments
recorded at fair value hierarchy:

5. BT E(E
5D. 1 F{E (#&)
KRB BBMRENER S NFE

Level |
E—R
HK$'000
FHBT
As at 31 March 2017 R-B—+F
=A=+-—H
Financial assets at fair value LEFZANFE
through profit or loss ARG EE
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RF
=RA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value KIEFEANTE
through profit or loss AR5 EE 10,632

32

TERABRNFERARERAVEFE
ZHBTREZ M AREAFE
ZABERESRF—E=M

F—H: A—LAAIREHES
ENRE)NERMESEA
ZHIE
Fg BUBESBERNERT
BNZREXFTBEEES
ANENRATER 2 585
REM 2 EMEERE
&
F= TEHABEWIELATTER
2S8R AER 2B
Tk e
TEREREZRAFESRFAE D 2
BT AT
Level 2 Level 3 Total
E& B=HK st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET

TAT TET

- 10,632

Annual Report 2017 F#

117



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. I TAR(E)

5D. Fair value (continued)
For reconciliation of fair value of convertible notes, please refer
to note 30.

There were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 in the
both years.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the both years.

Fair value as at

RT3 BAMZARE

2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF Fair value
Financial assets HK$’000 HK$'000 hierarchy
M EE FERT THET DNRESR
Listed equity securities In Hong Kong In Hong Kong Level |
classified as financial HK$7,762 HK$ 10,632
assets at FVTPL (note 25)
DERREEREANTE RER NEE E—&
ANEZHBEREZ 7,762 T 10,632/87T

ETBRARE 5 (HiE25)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not
measured at fair value.

2017
Bt
HK$’000
FERT
Carrying

amount

AR B

Financial liabilities g S =R
Convertible notes/bonds AR EE (A 209,769

5D. A F(E (&

HRAMEREZ A FEEERNS -

FH2 B30 ©

RREFEARNE - REE —RZH

W o

APREFE AL A E = RK

BE=MEH -

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
BERGREEZHABE

Quoted bid prices

in an active market

WIERTIS 2 RE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTABERARE

N/A

TER

W NP EFEZMBEEERM
BREZAFE-

2017

2016 2016

—E—tF —ZT—RF ZE—XRF
HK$’°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAET
Fair Carrying Fair

value amount value

DFE FREE NE

226,645 198,094 218,642
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments are identification the basis of internal

reports which provides information about components of the Group.

These information are reported to and received by the chief operating

decision maker (*CODM") for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

The Group has the following continuing operating segments during

the year. These segments are managed separately. No operating

segments have been aggregated to for the following reportable

segments.

)

)

)

For iron ore exploration, exploitation and trading operations,
the CODM regularly reviews the performance of the iron
ore operation in Indonesia. These operations have been
aggregated into a single operating segment and named “Iron ore

exploration, exploitation and trading operations".

For investing and financing operations, the CODM regularly
reviews the performance of the investing and financing
operations. These operations have been aggregated into a single
operating segment and named “Investing and financing”.

For property sales and investment operations, the CODM
regularly reviews the performance of the property sales and
investment operations. This operation has been classified into
a single operating segment and named “Property sales and
investment”.

$%@5L%ﬁ&hfﬁﬁ$%ﬁ%%
DEMZABAREERD - ZFEEF
CERTIELERRE([TREER
RE DI HEFERN  ADEERNFE
R

FA - $EI%ETNHEé
AZEPBRDZERNER - &8
BT A E SRR E AR -

BN -
g

RS

() BEEHR  HREAREBEZSEEM
T XBERERRETHESHRE
HELE KRR  WELED SR
ABE—ZESBEIWEA [EHEY
R RARKBESHEE] -

2 HMEBELBEXHBME  TRZLE
RRETEPRARENBERBTH
RE - REEBEAARER KR
BRRE | cE— a0 -

() MUEHEERKREEBME  £2
BEARETHEZYEHEE IR
BreemRi o WEBEEBEHER
BE—REOBITmEZAEWEHEE
RIEE |-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE —ZE—+HF=A=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DTHEER (&
Segment revenues and result Vox--l, ONET
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by UTEBARERZARED B ZIMARE
reportable segments: B2
For the year ended 31 March BE=A=+t—HLEE
Continuing Operations
BEGERY
Iron ore exploration,
exploitation and Investing Property sales
trading operations and financing and investment Unallocated Consolidation
AWHR  BER
E7EE RERME NEEERRE OB &8
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
ZE-tE ZR5F ZB-tE ZE0F ZB-tE CF0F Z8-tF CE0F ZB-tE CE0F
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Téx TEr TEn TEr TRz Tz TRz TRz TEx  TExn
Sales to external customers SN HE 4248 4454
Total revenue BA - 4248 4454
Segment results PEES (2,672) (3242) (11,624)
Other revenue A 205 % 10,801
Other gains Afolia 59 - 132
Provision for impairment £ BERESE
loss on intangible assets Bkl - (26557)
Fair value loss on financial  EBEHELTFEA
assets at fair value B HBEEL
through profit or loss ATEEE (436) (436)
Write down of obsolete A SETF &R
inventories - - (3493)
Central administration costs H RATHAAR - (49,805) (49,805) ENEANER)
Loss on disposal of mENBLRERE
subsidiaries - (10) (10) [
Finance costs RERA - (32,115) @2,115) JRED
Loss before taxation WRiAIEE (94,121) W{EIMID)
Taxation WE (102 37 B
Loss for the year KEEER (93,804) W{EIRIS)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M IRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DEERE)

Segment revenues and result (continued) DERARFE(E)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external AEmEZBAERBIINEE P 2K

customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the year. A o FRA D FEME 2 HE -

Segment results represent the loss suffered by each segment without DREEBEERESEMSES 2ERE - 8

allocation of other revenue, other gain, other expense, fair value AoBEHEMUA - iz EH

change on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, central i CREERATFEARZUBEEY

administration costs, loss on disposal of subsidiaries, finance costs and NEEESE) - RARITHKA - HENRE

taxation. This is the measure reported to the CODM for the purpose NAEE MEKARKRTIE o IR E

of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance. DRBEBAREERZEG  EEETE
BB R ERIBEE o

Segment assets and liabilities STHEEERAE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by reportable IUTAEREBEERAIRESEEH 2

segments: DT

Continuing operations

BREEXRE

Iron ore exploration,

exploitation and trading Investing Property sales

operations and financing and investment Consolidation
H#ROR - FARR
E7EE RERME NEHERRE g8
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Z2-tF ZTF ZB-tF ZTF ZB-tF “T"F ZB-tF “TF
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKE000 HK$000  HK$000
TEx TET FEx TEr  FTEx  TEx  TER  TEx
ASSETS EE
Segment assets NEEE 5401 54,383 FIECVATLATS 1398968 FELEAIAYAY 1458752
Unallocated corporate KB E
assets LE 957,234 BRIOIKIS
2,433,016 IR YA
LIABILITIES =R
Segment liabilities PHEEE (I (1,270) (3,091) FEREAIESN  (292,000) FLEELAFIN  (295,102)
Unallocated corporate KPR %
liabilities =4 (227,158) BROLRAY)
(EAHOE  (520,853)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the directors of the company monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and unallocated corporate
assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment, bank balances
and cash that are used by the investment holding company and other
receivables that are receivable by the investment holding companies).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
convertible notes, deferred tax liabilities and unallocated corporate
liabilities (mainly include other payables and accruals borne by the
investment holding companies).

Other segment information

6.

DEEMN(E

T HEEREE(H)
BRESBERARSENARERLH
SREYNCE TR SIS
AHEDELEE  AERAME -

MBEBEASREAREDE  KRER
S E RN FEARZIUBEERAD KL
XEE(X2REME  BFEARE -
REBRBRARBAZRITEHRLRER
BRI ARz BAl BRSO 1

PREREHDREERREDE @ KAk
BRE - BEMBRAERRDECER
B(EERRREZBRARMAEZHE
MR M EET BRI -

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
REAERR BRILER
Manufacturing
Iron ore exploration, and sales of
exploitation and Investing and Property salesand  pharmaceutical
trading operations financing investment products Unallocation Consolidation
AWYR - FHER
E5¢E RERRE NEHERRE LERHEER AAR &8
2017 216 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 216
Bt B F ZB-tF CFAF ZB-tF CTRF ZB-tF CRF CR-4f CRE CR-4fF SR
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000  HK$000
Tén TEr TEx TEr THEr TEr TEx  TEr Tz TEr  TEx  TEn
Additions to property, ERE  BEREE
plant and equipment
Depreciation of property, 0% BEREENE

plant and equipment

0% BERREAE

Provision for impairment loss on

property, plant and equipment  E5EA{E
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE
Amortisation of prepaid lease BNRETRER
payment
Provision for impairment loss BYEEZAE
on intangible assets FiEkA

Write down of obsolete Inventories & 3517 & il
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Geographical information

The Group operates in three principal geographical areas — the PRC,

Hong Kong and Indonesia.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information about
its non-current assets by geographical location are detailed below:

The PRC Fh
Hong Kong B
Indonesia ElfE

Information about major customers

During the year ended 31 March 2017, Customer A and Customer
B contributed approximately HK$3,264,000 and HK$2,817,000
respectively (2016: Nil). Both Customer A and Customer B were
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group during the

year ended 31 March 2017.

DREH(E

i EEK
FEEEZFAIBHRGCE —FE &
B RENE ©

AEBEBIMNBEP ZWARBRAEIE
MEBEE(RMIEMES D) 2 EHF
e

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REPBEF WA FREEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
B+t —T—RF ZEBE—tF —ZT—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT F&ET TET
206 824,266 1,088,439
4,248 737 123
- 2,866 5,000

FTEEFEH

HE - ZT—+FE=ZA=+—HBILFE "
EPEAREFBD B EBL43,264,000% 7T
$28170008 L (T —7RF : T) o &
E_E—+F=RA=+—HIFE &
PAREPBIEEAEBEBUIA 0% £ ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

7. WA FE
WARHBRIGER R EAMHEN MRE
BFHEIEE  BEE_Z—tER_Z

investment and money lending during the years ended 31 March 2017 —RNFEZA=T—HLEFEANBHERE

and 201 6. R EEHRMEFPELHERE €5 -

7. REVENUE, NET

Revenue, which is stated net of value added tax and other sales taxes
and returns, represents amounts invoiced to customers for securities

AEERAFE 2 WD

An analysis of the Group’s turnover for the year is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Continuing operations FEREEY
Securities investment, net BHIRE - FHE
Proceeds on sales HEFTISHIE 24,682
Less: Cost of sales W SHE KR (24,376)
306
Loan interest income BRAEHA 3,942
Other EHAith 206
4,454
8. OTHER REVENUE Hayg A
2017 2016
—E—+tF T —REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Continuing operations BEREER
Interest income on bank deposits RITIF T EMA L2
Dividend income from financial assets at SHETEANFEARZ
fair value through profit or loss M EEZREA 24
Other precious metal trading, net HEnmESBE S F58 9,440
Sundry MIE 225
10,801
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e RS ERAR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

9. OTHER GAINS

Continuing operations

Exchange gains, net

Gains on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net

0. FINANCE COSTS

Continuing operations
Interest on convertible notes/bonds

9. Hfttlzs

2017
—F—tF
HK$’000
FERT

HFRSERR

PE s - FER
HEME - BE M&RERE
R

10. B E XA

2017
—E—+tHF
HK$’000
FERT

FEEEXRE
AR, EHFAE

Annual Report 2017 F#

2016
ZE—RF
HK$'000
FHET

132

132

2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
FHET

30,774
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AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H{ZE - T —tF =—A=+—HILtFE

| 1. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION | 1. BRI RIS 1B
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
The Group’s loss before taxation REBZHERLEEKRBA
from continuing operations is carried EEIANKRTISEE
at after charging: B
Directors’ remuneration (note |2) BE=Me (W7 I2) 33,237
Other staff costs HAth 8 TAA 3,732
Share-based payment expenses LA AR 2 AR SZ 4924
Other staff's retirement benefits scheme HE B T 2 RIREFETEIER
contributions 22
Total staff costs BT 42,114
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #J% « = LR EITE 3,546
Provision for impairment loss on property, ME - BEREERE
plant and equipment E R 4,156
Amortisation of intangible assets B 6,170
Total depreciation and amortisation TERBEBE 13,872
Auditors’ remuneration ZE AN &
— audit services — ZERS 960
— non-audit services — I ERTG 309
1,269
Minimum lease payments under operating leases &4 T~ 2 HIEHA SR 4,856
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value LiaRmE N FEARZ T
through profit or loss BE2 AN HEBE 436
Exchange loss, net bR EE - FE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE —Z—+HF=F=+—HItFE

2. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as

12. ESE <€
s ENEFNEEZMEmT

follows:

Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees other benefits Share options contributions Total
20t FERAMEN BRE BIERH LR B

017 006 2017 206 2017 2016 2017 016 2007 W06
SR-tF CFNF CR-4F DR 0F SRR DT 0F SRR DT 0F SR-4F DR

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKF000 HK$'000 HKS000
Téx Thr ThEn Tz TEn TErT FEx TEx Tz TEx
Executive directors: HITEE:
Mr. Huang Yilln (rote i) ERIE (M) 384 8,207 8,904
Mr. Lin Chengdong (note i) WEHRS A (Ha2i) pZ] 5715 5965
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith BHEEL 384 8207 8,609
Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk (note i) R &% & Writii) 2| 8,207 8,459
Mr. Wu Hongquan (Chairman) ~ REERL(LE)

(note i) (Byitiv) 25 - 25
Ms. Li Yal (note v) Xy bl 144 - 144
Mr. Zhang Zhensheng (note vi) SRR (B72i) 141 - 141

1,787 3033 32465
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES

directors:

Mr. Zhang Xianlin REMEE 156 152 308
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse PEZFE 156 152 308
Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory (note vi)) {446 4 (Hitwi) 156 - 156
Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (note vi) mRBRE (i) - - -
468 304 m

2255 30,640 3,237
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

2. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(i) Mr. Huang Yillin was resigned as the Chairman of the Company on 19 November
2015.

(i)~ Mr. Lin Chengdong was resigned on |6 November 2015.

(i) Mr. Mo Tsz Yuk was resigned on |6 November 2015.

(iv)  Mr. Wu Hongquan as appointed on 5 August 2015 and was appointed as the

chairman of the Company on 19 November 2015.

(v)  Ms. Li Yali was appointed |6 November 2015.

(vi)  Mr. Zhang Zhensheng was appointed |9 November 2015.
(vii)  Mr. Ho Chun Kit, Gregory was resigned on | October 2016.
(viii)  Mr. Ng Ping Yiu was appointed on | October 2016.

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no remunerations
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. None of
the directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 3| March 2017 and 2016.

3. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Continuing operations

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
for the year included 5 (2016: 4) executive directors of the
Company, whose emoluments are included in note |2 above.

Salaries and other benefits FrehEtmEA
Retirement benefits scheme contributions B R1E 52 3

Their emoluments were all within HK$ 1,000,000.

During both years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.
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(i) MERELER-_T—AF+— A+ AT -

@iy AFEEEER-ZE-—RFT+—AT/RHEHE-

vy REERER-_FT-—AFNATAEERT -
YRZZE-—AF+—AT+NABEZERER
AIEE ©

)  FHAZTN-E-AFE+— A+ ABERE-

Vi) RIEREEER-_T—AFT+—A+NBEZRT-

(i) ABGEEER-_Z—AF+A—BBT-

(viiy REBEER_ZT—RF+A—BEZE-

RBE-_Z—tFR-_FT—R"E=A
=+—BLEFE AEEHSEXNTE
EMEERREF AR IIAR K E
ZERSUBERME  RBE_FT—tF
RZZB-—RF=ZR=+—HLFE  #
BEFEWELFRBREEMFH -

EEME

IFEAE XK

() BEREBHFAL
AEEREGZEEFATZMeEER
FEARASE(ZT—RF - 488017
B HMSFBERN LMz e

2017 2016
—g—tF  —2-A%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR Tt
917

18

5 7 B4 197 1 000,000 TT LA o

REBEEZZ—+tFRER_T—F=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

3. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Continuing operations (continued)

(b)  Senior management of the Group
The emoluments of the non-Directors senior management
included in abovementioned five highest paid individuals of the
Group are within the following bands:

HK$Nil- 1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T

During both years ended 3| March 2017 and 2016, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the senior management
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

4. TAXATION

Continuing operations

Current tax: BNHAT IR -

— Hong Kong Profits Tax —HEBNEH

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — RPN

— Indonesia Corporate Income Tax —HIE RS PREH
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEBERE
(Credit)/Charge for the year REFE(ERL) X

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2016:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during
the year.

Subsidiaries in Indonesia are subjected to Corporate Income Tax at

25% for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subjected to the PRC Enterprise Income
Tax at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

13. REME (&)
HEEERE (&)
(b) FEEZBRELR
ARBIEELBRERE(HR
EXRERBHRAL) ZHEEHU

T#E7)
Number of individuals
A
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

RBE-_FT—EtHFR-_FT—RF=
A=1— El JJ:Fﬁ1I$E $;‘%$E%
BEXNTEREERBMSMERES
PN NIIPANZN SEI S S

4. Fi I8
2017 2016
—E —E—NE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAETT
1,658
6

EENB TRE&EALN@*E%,%FEZ
HETERBE N 2T 165%(=ZF —
o 16.5%) B -

HE-_ZT—"+FRZZE—KRF=A
=t+—HItFE - EUEZWE’ RIZER
5% EEPTEH ©

BHE_ZT—tF k= EEE

=t+—HILFE - EPIZBHJ% AR
25 % BT B SIS ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

| 4. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14, BiIE (48)

Continuing operations (continued)

No provision for Indonesia Corporate Income Tax and the PRC
Enterprise Income Tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements respectively as the Group incurred taxation losses in
Indonesia and the PRC for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016.

In accordance to the tax assessment of Inland Revenue Department of
tax losses of approximately HK$49,407,000 (2016: HK$64,187,000)
can be carried forward to offset the future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of
the future profit stream.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before

taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

FFELE XK ()
BHE_ZT—+ttFk_ZF— X F=A
=+T—HIEFE BRATEERHER
PSR STIEEE - B ARNERE T
WERPBEDEBEMEH P BIDEM
ISHIFHIR A -

REHBE B2 BB G + #49,407,000
BIL(ZZT—/N4F : 64,187,000/87T) 2
TRIEEE A A VK % 2 R G
A o AR BB E R Z A TERI M
W EERIECHIEEE -

AEFZRBFAXATEGAEG NEM
EERSERZBRHAEERHRNT

comprehensive income as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before taxation M F5 e 18
(from continuing operations) (REFECEED) 141,211
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 12 & BF|EFHTE16.5%
(2016:16.5%) ZE—RNF 1 165%) 23,330
Tax effect of share of result of an associate SE— I A A
FEIBBE (183)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for PARIE T E TEFR
tax purposes Mz RIETE (29,003)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax MARIEM 5 BERD
purposes WAZRIAZE 3,402
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRIEWR 2 HIE
EEBEDE (12,429)
Utilisation of tax losses previous not recognised @) i 4C A K ERE R 2 FHIE E518 (814)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEAE -
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries  fEH fih Bl AEE & AR & 2 [ &
operating in other jurisdictions RATRABE BB 14,033
Tax credit/(charge) for the year KEEHEAEE R, (FA%) (1,664)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

I5.

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 9 April 2015, the Company entered into the Sales and Purchase
Agreement (the “Sales and Purchase Agreement”) that manufacturing
and sales of pharmaceutical products operations were discontinued
following the disposal of Billion Source Investments Limited (“Billion
Source™), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the "Billion Source Group"),
which carried out all of the Group’s manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical product operations.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, the results and cash flows of the

Billion Source Group are treated as discontinued operations.

Analysis of profit for the year from discontinued

E/Q\::f AFWEANA » KRRAEE]
BEEHR([EEHZ]) UREBER
N 7 fd # 2 & W )8 2 7] Billion Source
Investments Limited ([ Billion Source |) &
HH B B (5% [ Bilion Source &
B DBEIEEERIBEENER - B

AEEREBMAEEERBEEER
Ed

BE_Z-RF=A=+—HLHFE"
Bz XENREREW

Billion Source®

BRERIEE -

REFERE BRI FTE 2B 5H

operations
2016
—EB—RF
HK$'000
FAT
Revenue WA 635
Cost of sales SHE AR (628)
Gross profit EH 7
Distribution and selling expenses DIHRIHEER (387)
Administrative expenses TR 2 (3.225)
Finance costs Bh& B AR (777)
Loss before taxation BrA I E B (4.382)
Taxation IR
(4,382)
Gain on disposal of operation (note 34(i)) HELERB 2 Ba
(HfaE343)) 54,493
Profit for the year from discounted operations AREFRABRIEER 2 aF 50,111
Profit for the year from discontinued operations E{AAEEREE
attributable to: RIEZEB ZER -
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ SN 50,111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

15. ORI (E)
KERHE BRI LT RFIPH

|5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Analysis of profit for the year from discontinued

operations (continued) (#&)
2016
—E—RF
HK$'000
T
Profit before taxation: MRBEBDRR
The Group’s profit before taxation from discontinued REEZ BRIERBRBADRNTY
operations are carried at after charging: RN TY S IBEED
Staff costs BT A 627
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment Wz - BEREEITE 114
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TETAR & R IE B 8 25
Total depreciation and amortisation e R EeE 1139
Cash flows from discontinued operations: RECKALEBZRHERE :
Net cash generated from operating activities WEEBEER S FE 7,908
Net cash used in financing activities BEEEFAR ST (5914)
Net cash increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRESZEMHR I FELN 1,994
Effect of foreign exchange rate exchanges HINGE FE R B 2 (2,829)
Net cash outflow WL FE (835)
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n\/-_R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

l6.

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE 6. 7R FIEHEEE
2016
—E-RF
Notes HK$'000
B THET
Deposit for acquisition of equity interest WhslgiE 2 ke 24 48,109
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERRIE - e REARUKERR 24 16,237
Bank balances and cash RITHEBERE 26 1,321
Assets classified as held for sale DERBIELHECEE 65,667
Notes: Mt :
Disposal Group Held for Sale HEHEZHERR
0) On 31 March 2016, the Group entered into a disposal agreement with a purchaser 0} MNZBE—-RNE-ZA=+—H AEFHE—F
to dispose of the entire registered capital of Shenzhen Shi Longxinchang Industrial BAHFINHER S UWEERATZ2EM
Company Limited* (RYITEMEEEERBMRAF]) (Longxinchang), a BARFINTEMEBEEREAERAT([E
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, investment consultancy services at a ME] HEREFBARSE) 223 ME
consideration of approximately HK$16,358,000. The carrying amount of related K RIEBERR6358000%8 7T - HEAEERE
assets and liabilities are carried at the lower of carrying amount and their fair value Ez EmEREEENE AT ER LSk
less costs to sell and, accordingly, no impairment loss was recognised. The disposal ZEIKEYE At MEEZRRNEEE -
was completed on 25 April 2016. HESHER =T "FHA=ZF+HAZEK °
(ii) In April 2016, the Group entered into a disposal agreement with a purchaser (ii) MNZT—RNENA REBE—-ZEHES

to dispose of the entire registered capital of FIIFEEREEERER AR, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of approximately
HK$49,313,000. The carrying amount of related assets and liabilities are carried at
lower of carrying amount and their fair value less costs to sell and, accordingly, no

impairment loss was recognised. The disposal was completed on 25 April 2016.

Note:

The English name for identification only.

HEWE  WHEARRZ2EWE R RDR
NBEEREXVUEARAAZEHEME
A RELA4931300087T - HEEENMEA
BEZEEEEEOEREAFERDERA
ZERESR - Bt - HEER

VR E BB o
HEFER-_Z—"FOA=-+TRAZEX °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 17. REEARDTEEAELE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE REE
YEAR
From continuing and discontinued operations KREFEESEEBRERILFEK
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners AREERANBIEEBRERNERIIRE
of the Company is based on the following data: T 8B E -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THTT
Loss - E =
Loss for the year from continuing operations KRR ANEBIERFERE
for the year attributable to the owners BB EETEBE
of the Company (92,794) (126,316)
Profit for the year from discontinued operations AN Bl A JE(G AFE R G
attributable to the owners of the Company BRI ERE m A - 50,111
(92,794) (76,205)
2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
’000 Shares '000 Shares
FR TRz
Number of shares RO EE
Weighted average number of shares for the Rt EBIREAR BT 2 kiH
purpose of basic earnings per share (note) IR 8 (M E) 5,343,690 4,187,939
Note: Mt -
The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued operations are the ARERERTRREESARESEREETE
same for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, as the effect of the share options RESREEBEEZHES  BUUHBE-T—tF
and convertible notes would be anti—dilutive and were not included in the calculation of EZZ2—RF=ZA=T—HILEFEZREFELE
diluted loss per share. EBREKRIEER 2 BRERARIEEEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE —Z—+HF=F=+—HItFE

17. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 17. NEEANTEG AELS

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
YEAR (CONTINUED)

From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing operations

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

BREE (&)

KEFREEER
AREEAANBEREFELLEEK
BRERNEBEDENRATEIRET

data: I
2017 2016
—EB—tF —ET—REF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FAET
Loss for the year from continuing operations KRE|EE ANEHAREER
attributable to the owners of the Company BB 2 ¥BEE (92,794) (126,316)

The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations are
the same for the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, as the effect
of the share options and convertible notes would be anti-dilutive and

were not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share.

From discontinued operation

For the year ended 31 March 2016, basic loss per share from
discontinued operations is HK$0.012 per share, based on the loss for
the year from discontinued operations attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately HK$50,111,000. The denominators
used are the same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted
earnings/loss per share.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares of 4,205,402,000
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2016 was derived from the adjustment in relation to
potential dilutive share options and convertible notes/bonds issued by
the Company of 12,956,000 shares and 4,507,000 shares respectively.

AR KAl R IR ER Y AR EEE
BEETEREESRBEEBZ:
PR E R+ ERN T RE
AT+ HUEFEZKREBFERLERE
B2 BREAREEEIEBAER -

KEBARIEEK
HE-_Z—"F=A=1+—BILFE
REERLEEK  BRERNBEAER
0012870 » ERA QAR ABEE LK
IE¥ 2 FEEEL50,111,0008 7T °
FrAmn e FXFFRIEsTESRER
MEERA,EEEER -

BUAERE T F=A=1+—8
HFESREERN 2 TR METF
¥ 8 4,205,402,000 A% T3 7 Bl & & 5t 7B
EE&%H%%%&;N“ﬂ%ﬁZT%

Z¥EF 2 12956000 f% &
+5o7oooﬂxﬂxﬁao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. M3 « BB KRB

Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold Motor Plant and
Buildings equipment  improvements vehicles machinery Total
£E FHR g
B HOERE EE hE HER#E g
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$000
ThT TR TRT ThTL T ThTL
Cost: AA:
At | April 2015 N-Z-1EmA-R 413% 825 3905 1968 9779 57810
Acquistion of subsidiary (note 33) YeEHELR (W) - - 97 - - 97
Additions 5 - 75 %9 27 2 2693
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHEAT - (120 (39) - (136) (62)
Witten off i - - (959) - (1213) (2170
Bxchange realignment EREE (1654) () (189 (209) (347) (2411)
At 31 March 2016 and | Apri 2016 RZB-REZA=+-HBR
WZE- EmA-H 3948 747 2909 3976 8085 5539
Additons £5 - 1515 5565 - - 7080
Disposls e - (3%) - (49) (4 (505)
Buchange relignment Ef3E (1,600) (1) (139) (1) ) (2075)
At 31 March 2017 R=8-tEZA=t-H 38081 209 83% 3598 7789 5969
Accumulated depreciation BiHFEREE:
and impairment:
At | Apri 2015 W-Z-1FmA-R 4926 259 1815 m 218 9953
Charge for the year R 93 15| 40 L 1263 3546
Eiminated on disposal of subsidiaries HERBR AN H - %) (2%) - (18) (369)
Eiminated on written off ifclasp - - (590) - (313) (%03)
Impaiment loss HERE 415 - - - - 4156
Exchange realignment EiEg m () (149 (16) (30) (142
At 31 March 2016 and | April 2016 RZB-REZA=+-BR
HNZE-7FMA-H 9938 0% 1,365 1,549 3083 16241
Chrge for the year Engi LIgl % 1160 53 133 45%
Impairment loss AR - \ - - 760 76|
Bliminated on disposels it R 3 - (14 - () (24) (483)
Exchange realignment EipE (64) (14) () (0) (I5) (805)
At 31 March 2017 W-8-tF=p=t-A 10457 4l 248 1747 494) 20268
Carrying amounts: EEE:
At 31 March 2017 A-g-t£zR=t-A 7614 1453 5855 1851 2847 9630
At31 March 2016 W-E-7E=R=1-A B4 4l 1544 2477 5002 %57
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

19.

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B & E

Exclusive right

BREF
HK$'000
THETT
Cost: R :
At | April 2015, 31 March 2016, RZTE—AFMA—A - NE=A=+—A8"
| April 2016 and 31 March 2017 ZE-REMA-ARZE—+tF=HA=+—H 576,334
Accumulated amortisations and R EERRE
impairments:
At | April 2015 RZZE—RAFHHA—H 543,607
Charge for the year FAZH 6,170
Impairment loss recognised BERBEEE 26,557
At 31 March 2016, | April 2016 and RZZE—RF=ZA=+—H  ZZE—R"FOA-HK
31 March 2017 —E—+F=A=+—H 576,334
Carrying amounts: BRMEE :

At 31 March 2017

At 31 March 2016 N_T—

Notes:

Exclusive right represents the Deed of Statement and Power of Attorney dated 12
September 2009 and made between PT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera (“Indo”), the
holder of the operation license in the mining are located in Lumajang, East Java, Indonesia,
and PT. Dampar Golden International (“PT. Dampar"), pursuant to which, Indo grants
exclusive rights and authorities to PT. Dampar to manage and arrange all activities in the

mining area on behalf of Indo.

Exclusive right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful economic
life. The useful economic life of the exclusive rights was estimated with reference to the
validity of the operation license held by Indo. The operation license was valid for ten years
from 21 July 2010 and the holder was entitled to apply for renewal for two times with a

|0-year term each.

R-ZB-—tH=A=+—H
NFE=ZHA=+—H

Kt

BREF|IEPT. Indo Modern Mining Sejahtera ([Indo])
(AUREEREMEEAEEERRZEEHATE
ZEBAN)BEPT. Dampar Golden International ([ PT.
Dampar DR ZZZTNFNA+ AL 2 BHEL
RE#EE - BIL © IndoMPT. Dampari¥ i B X & F)
BN ARKINdOE IR R LR EREITZFAAE
& o

BREMNDIREGAIAKEFHRNAERES
8 o BHAEM 2 B B F T2 E fIndo PR L
'.é.'EfF—I* ZAMIETEITE BEFAREZER
A —ZE-TFLA -t BRFARBTEF W
ﬁ)\ﬁ%’éﬁﬁ FEHMR - BRBARATF -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 19. BIL&EE (&)

Notes: (continued)

Amortisation was provided for the years ended 3| March 2015 and 2014, the capitalised
cost of the exclusive right was amortised over the remaining period of the licence as from
| April 2014 to 20 July 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Ministerial Regulation No. 1/2014 promulgated
by the Indonesian Government with effect from | January 2014. According to the
regulation, the Indonesian government stopped the export of unprocessed mineral
products with a view to encouraging the upgrading of minerals through processing and
refining before such minerals can be exported. To mitigate this negative effect, the
Company entered into a purchase agreement to purchase equipment for the purpose of
refining the iron sand to sponge iron of higher than 75% Fe employing the direct reduction
method. For the details, please refer to the Company's announcements dated 24 January
2014 and 2 May 2014 respectively.

During the year ended 3| March 2016, the export restriction of iron sand still in force
and the purity level of the iron sand did not meet the minimum requirement of Ministerial
Regulation, and therefore the management had decided to stem the export of the iron

sand and trading business.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment of the end of each reporting
period. The Group has completed its annual impairment test for the exclusive right, due
to the mining operation was affected by the regulation mentioned as above, amount of
approximately HK$26,557,000 impairment loss was recognised for the year ended 31
March 2016, as the recoverable amount is calculated to be lower than its carrying amount.
The recoverable amount of the exclusive right was determined based on a value in use
calculation which uses five years cashflow projection, and a discount rate of 20.42% per
annum Cash flows beyond five year period had been extrapolated using a steady 3.49%
per annum growth rate. As at 3| March 2016, the recoverable amount of the exclusive
right is insignificant is referenced to valuation report issued by Peak Vision Appraisals
Limited, independent qualified valuers, which the exclusive right has been measured based

on the value in use calculation.
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Hret - (&)

HE_Z-—AFER-_ZT-NF=A=+—RALFE
EFREE  BREMNZERERADHARE =
Z-MENA-—RAE_Z-_TFLA-FTRAZHT
AR VR g

RBEE-ZT-NMEF=A=+—BLLFEHH  HE
BT EBFIR GBI 1201455 - B =T —WMF—A
—HRER - RE\EZRO - NRBUFIE LEH A RN
THEES  HEUSENABEER R AEBMm
TRIBRFABEE - RRELBEEZE  ARFF
THBEBRABERBAEAEREREESRY
RBRA/ESBETUIAL 2 BRHE - BAFS &
S2HARA BB AT —NF-—A-+MBA R
—F-WERAZRAZRM o

BET-R"EZA=+—ALFE HPLHAR
BDA LR R #T 2 fUEARRERT & & PIR B2 FAE
2R At EEECRERLEOSEDESE
% o

REBBAREREHRTHTMRETR - A%E
ERAEBRENZFERENR - ARREES
S8 LR BIRE - 54926,557,00074 T E 1B
ERBEE-Z-RFZA=+T—HLFERZ R
EAMKESHEERELREE - BRERN ZATIKE
CEDRECHEEHE(EMNARAFReRETRE
B REBF2042%8 R EMETE - AFEARBUAINZ TR
ERBUTFIAINBTEEEEE - RZT—RF
ZR=+—8 " BREFZ KRB EMTEY
N2 EBY A ERHEMSETEERAREDY
ZHEREFE  MEREMNCREBEECAEESE
TETIUAEE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

Cost of investment in an associate

Unlisted outside Hong Kong at the beginning
of the year
Share of post-acquisition losses and other

comprehensive expenses during the year, Hiap2mAY -
net of dividends received HMBRE MR E
At the end of the year REE

JRE W5 — el g 2

Amount due from an associate

(a) Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable on demand.

(b) On 6 May 2015, the Group acquired 15% equity interests in
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye Investment Development Company
Limited* (RYIBELEREZERER DA (“Shenzhen
Zhaosheng Anye”) through acquisition by a subsidiary. After
the acquisition, Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye becomes available-
for-sale investment of the Group. On 23 September 2015, the
Group acquired 20% equity interests in Shenzhen Zhaosheng
Anye through acquisition by a subsidiary. After the acquisition,
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye becomes an associate of the Group.

(c) The Group completed its annual impairment test for interest in
an associate by comparing the recoverable amount of interest
in an associate to its carrying amount as at 31 March 2017.
The Group has engaged B.l. Appraisals Limited to carry out a
valuation of the interest in an associate as at 31 March 2017
based on the value in use calculations. This valuation uses cash
flow projections based on financial estimates covering a ten-
year period, and a pre-tax discount rate of 8.33%. The value
assigned to the above assumptions reflect past experience and
are consistent with management plans for focusing operations in
these markets. The management believes that the assumption is
reasonable achievable.

*  For identification purpose only

R—EBERRZREZ
DN
£ - BRRINELT
FA - BIEBBRERR

NEZ A

20. A — BB E L E 2R

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT THT
456,313 462,309

(29,085) (5,996)

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

(@) EW—MEBEA EZ%IE\)E&%TE

W AEER 2

by RZZE—RAFHANA  AKEHE
B — KT B A A R R IR R
TEREERAR LB W%ﬁ
) I5%IHE - RUEER - R
%ﬁﬁ%&%$¢l271m¢&
B -RZE—RAFNA=+=RH"
ANE BB UE — M B R F
BRI BE L E20%MHE - R
& RYBELTERRETEE 25

M/\—J °

REREFERE -

() AEEFBEBRN—HEBEEQRZ
oz B SEEAN T —+
FZA=ZT—HZEARE  THE
FERBEAR - NEBDRERM
B EBR AR - LAFEREES
HAHRE PR _ZT—LF=A
—t+—HR—HBERR R
B o WHETIE T FEE 2 %
st R RIBL IR K8 3B3U M AR &R
EEMNHE BT LABECEE
REGBEES  WREFRED

BEE EIEE - - BEEM
E L RRAERT -
* (ERES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 20. R—RBIH& N TE 2z (&)
H

Details of the Group’s associate, which are held indirectly by the REBEEE QA (KRR R@EBRHE
Company at the end of reporting period, are as follows: BEE)ZFEBIT
Proportion of
nominal value
Form of Place of Class of shares/ of paid capitall Proportion
business incorporation/  registered registered capital of voting  Principal
Name of associate and structure  operation capital held held by the Group power held  activity
rEERREL
AL/ BEZRB/ER BYER/HER BRZ
BENTER EBPARRE £EuH EXEH EXEEZEDL ERASL IEER
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye Incorporated PRC Registered 35.0% 350%  Property
ABERE s mE EEdl} Development
and operation
NEFREREE
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associate N T X AEB BN T B Y B
for the period from the date of acquisition to the year ended date HEEEY R y 4 FHIR > B
for Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye was set out below which represents AR E  AFBEBL N RIRE SN
amounts shown in the respective financial statements of the associate e EBER Y S BT IERERNAT
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. An associate is accounted for RT L MU ANRESATERERN
using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. PAREZS SR TIBE o
2017 2016
—E—tF —F R
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET THET
Current asset mEEE 358,800 215,623
Non-current asset EREEE m 465
Current liabilities REBEE 377,705 233,602
2017 2016
—2-tF -T-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Revenue N -
Loss for the period NERES R 2,093
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the LB ER B BEEN G S EHREA
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in the RSN TS ZEmME YR -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M IRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

Y

20. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (CONTINUED) 20. R —REIB& AT =i (&)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET
Net liabilities of the associate as at acquisition — Hf& N FRAUEHEZ
date BEFE (15,723) (15,723)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in $$@J5/\5Tﬂl|$ﬁ?ﬁ§¥2
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye" mAEEERAD L 35% 35%
Cost of investment in associate REFE R B 2 I8E 2 AR
Unlisted outside Hong Kong BBBEINELET (5,503) (5,503)
Goodwill [EES 467,812 467,812
Share of post-acquisition losses and other R B R BB R
comprehensive losses, net of Hibh2mEE
dividends received e RARE (35,081) (5,996)
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in REBRFRIBELZES
Shenzhen Zhaosheng Anye’ BEZERE" 427,228 456,313
There is no commitment and contingent liabilities under an associate. ZEE N B NAR B EMEERRAA
f&°
*  For identification purpose only * ([EHEF
21. INVENTORIES 21. 78
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#5 F b7t
Raw materials =¥ -
Finished goods BIRK 3,493
3,493
Less: write down of obsolete inventories W MORB TR (3493)
During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group has written off HE-_T—R"F=A=+—HILFE -
obsolete finished goods of approximately HK$3,493,000. 7N £ B B HURDR B B AK 493,493,000
o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

22. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22. BRI
2017 2016
—EB—tF —FRF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Properties under development BRPYE 765,866 782,281
Properties under development related to the residential property R ERMCRPRAESNTHES
construction held for sale located in Beibu District, Jinshitan, Jinzhou At EEERE Y Ay EESR
New District, Dalian, the PRC. g o
As at 3| March 2017, the balance included land use rights of R-ZET—+E=ZF=+—H &£&%6
approximately HK$195,125,000 (2016: HK$208,022,000). Upon FE#7195,1250008 70 ( = & — X &
completion of the construction, the land use rights would be 208,022,000 70 ) 2 T Hb{FE FAHE o T
transferred to property held for sale. FHEBRRETIRERTHELEY
% o
The Group's properties under development at their book values are AEERRRYEREETES TN
analysed as follows: T
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Located in the PRC, held on: ERERE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years [0ZE505F HHAY 765,866 782,281
23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. FEUN B 2K
2017 2016
—E—tHF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THETT
Loan receivables FEW B =X 39,000
Interest receivables JE IR B 1,638
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Based on the loan commencement date set out in the relevant
contracts, aging analysis of the Group's loan receivable as of each
reporting date is as follows:

0 — 180 days LTF180H
81 — 365 days 181 F365H

The Group's loan receivables, which arise from the money lending
business in Hong Kong, are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The
loan receivables were repaid in accordance with the terms of the loan
agreements and all loan receivables are recoverable within one year.

All loan receivables are secured, bear interest and are receivable with
fixed terms agreed with customers. The maximum exposure to credit
risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the loan receivables.
The aged analysis of the loan receivables that are not individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired REHARRIE
Less than 30 days past due 1 HR N 230K

As at 31 March 2017, the effective interest rates on the Group’s loan
receivables is approximately 12.4% (2016: 19.2%) per annum. Interest
income of approximately HK$6,651,000 (2016: HK$3,942,000) has
been recognised in revenue in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income during the year and receivable
on the date of repayment.

23.

EWNE R (&)
BREEAEBANZEREHBAN &
2 BB B 0 5 R 1 2 RS A
m -

2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—K

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FTHET

24,570 40,638
13,774 -

38,344 40,638

AEBEZEEER(REREBZNE
%) AETTEHE - BRRERREBEEN
B2 R EE - MATARKRERAR
—FRYgE -

PrBERKEZY BAER - 5t E kRS
B P WE < BIE G E - RS B
RmZEERRSEKERZREE -
ABERNRBELAERERCDBEZIE

WERERER AT -
2017 2016
=B-tF T AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB BT

24,570 40,638
13,774 -

38,344 40,638

RNZE—+FE=F=+—H KA£EH
BFERERZERFEL124%(=
T—RF 1 192%) c FRN - FIEWAL
6,651,000/ 7C( ZZF — 7 © 3,942,000/
TL)ERGEEZREMEARERA
ZWEERARNERBER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Non-current assets:

HRBEE

24. FEAFTRIE

BE R EAEWR

BRX

Deposit for acquisition of investment properties UREEIRE W 2 & (W iEi)

(note i)
Current assets: TEENEE :
Deposit paid (note ii) B e (M ati)

Prepayments (note iii)
Other receivables (note iv)

Notes:

(i)

(iif)

(v)

During the years ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the Group has entered into
sale and purchase agreements to acquire investment properties in the PRC. The
amount represents the deposit paid to the vendors for acquisition of investment
properties. Included in deposit for acquisition of investment properties, deposits
paid of approximately HK$282,040,000 was in relation to acquisition of three
properties in PRC and the physical possession of the properties has been delivered
to the Group. As at 31 March 2017, the title of the three properties was still in the
course of registering under the name of the Group. Details of which are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated |7 May 2017. Another approximately
HK$78,971,000 included in deposit for acquisition of investment properties was in
relation to acquisition of properties in Beijing. Details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 February 2017.

As at 31 March 2017, other deposits paid were mainly comprised of two buildings
naming right located in Shenzhen and a deposit paid for acquisition of investment
properties of approximately HK$20,274,000 and HK$252,708,000. The related
acquisition of investment properties was cancelled during the year ended 31
March 2017 and the amount of deposit paid of approximately HK$252,708,000
will be fully recoverable. As of the date of this report, amount of approximately
HK$56,408,000 was subsequently received.

As at 31 March 2017, prepayments were mainly comprised of prepayment of
construction cost of properties under development.

As at 31 March 2017, other receivables were mainly comprised of other tax
recoverable in the PRC, payable to third party for a potential business co-operation
and cash advanced to staff.
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B BIA (A i)
H At FEUBRSR (MY ativ)

sz -

@

(i)

(iii)

(v)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
HK$'000 HK$000
FET THT

598,092

273,698 22,895

8,371 9,901

35,291 25493
e R

REEZE—tFR-_T—AF=A=+—
BILEEE A5EERKERFEZIRED
XU EEHE A EARBREMER
MEASMNZES - RBBEREDEZ LS
A+ #)282,040,0008 T 2 B AT iR & B
RAPBZ=ZHYEEE  ZZWEZEE
BERERNFAER - R=_T—+tF=A
=+—B Z-EMEZERDERARE
EREELDZBREP - FHEHNAARAH
BEZT—tFRATEBZAMH - RIEEK
BMEZIEEAN - ZAEHKIT8971,0008 T2 1%
SR R Z VR - FBFRER
AESA-_S—+F-_A-+N\BZA M

RZE—+F=ZA=+—0  HiaofEs
TEZREMEBEBMRFIZIETHEERK
B E Y 2 BT 1E £ 420,274,000 7T K&
252,708,000 T - WEMEZ BHIKEEHZE
T +tFZA=+—HLEFECERE O
252,708,000/ 7T 2 BT & & #8 2 Bk E o %
AiEBE - B BE%WER456,408,000%8 7T ©

RZE—tF=ZA=+—0 BANKEIE
BREERBPMERENAZANTOR

REF—EF=A=1+—0  EdEKREX
TERERPEZEMATKRERE - $EE
EBEERNE= T XARRNTETIZH
%o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

25.

26.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 25.
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at REE L2 RAFS
quoted bid price RWmE
Fair value are determined with reference to quoted market bid price.
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26.

As at 31 March 2017, the market rate on short-term bank deposits
of approximately HK$347,062,000 (2016: HK$465,102,000), with
average maturity of less than three months (2016: three months)
range from 0.10% to 1.50% (2016: from 0.10% to 2.70%) per annum.

Cash and cash equivalents were denominated in the following

currencies:
RMB AR
HK$ BIT
Others Ht

The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB
out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control restrictions
imposed by the government of the PRC.

As at 31 March 2016, bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$ 1,321,000 have been reclassified to assets classified as held for
sale (for details, please refer to note 16).

HRERBAFEARZTH
BE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT

7,762 10,632

RFETIRETGHREETE ©

IRITHEBRERE
N-E—+F=A=+—0  FH3H
KEAAZEAUT(ZE—XAF : =@
R ) 2 52 8RR 17 17 3K 49347,062,000% 7T
(ZF— X4 © 465,102,00087T) 2 %5
FEFRNT0.10%E 1.50%( —F—7<F ¢
NTF0.10%%2.70%) °

RehReSFEWATIIERE -

2017 2016
—E-tF T AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FBT

29,728 22,454
433,528 482,222
770 809

464,026 505,485

BERBEELRUAREFEZRS MRS
FEEBANGTEBRNERZINEE
BRI o

RZE—RFE=ZA=1+—8 1765
KIS #1,3210008 TEETNDEED
HABELNEEE(BEAFBEHE2HN
16) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. BB BT ERFK
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx THET
Trade payables E 5 ER R m 8,676
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables at the end of the RREBARBIEAS Y BB ELE
reporting period, based on the contract date or invoice date: ZIENMNBERERSTTWOT -
2017 2016
—E—+tF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
0 to 90 days 0Z90H -
91 to 180 days 91ZE180H 272
181 to 365 days 181 &365H -
Over 365 days #B38365H 8,404
The trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled BoORENERARE  B—RAR—F
on terms of one year. MEEE o
28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28 HiEN BRI R EFTEH
2017 2016
—E—+tF —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Land value added tax payable JE{S IR E R 92,751
Accruals JEETE A 1191
Other payables (note i) H A T BRR (A a2i) 57414
Accrued interest on convertible notes/bonds AR ZEYE & A 2 EEHRE 18,616
166,847 169,972
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28.

(CONTINUED)

Notes:

0] As at 31 March 2017, other payables were mainly comprised of received from
third party in the PRC for a potential business co-operation of approximately
HK$51,362,000 (2016: HK$56,833,000).

29. SHARE CAPITAL 29.
Authorised: JETE ¢
Ordinary share of HK$0.05 each, SR E{E0.058 T 2 A%
At | April 2015, 31 March 2016, RZZE—RFMA—A -
I April 2016 and 31 March 2017 - F=A=+—8"

—E-REFOA-HR
—T—tF=-A=1—H

Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each, FREE2SHB T ERAR -
At | April 2015 RZE—RAFMNA—H

Conversion of convertible notes (Note a) T[S Z 45 (i iFa)
Issue of ordinary shares upon exercise of  7T{F BEAL#E 12 3517 L @A

share options (Note b) (Hiatb)
Placement of shares (Note c) Be & R tn (Htatc)
Share subscription (Note d) RN (K17td)
At 31 March 2016, | April 2016 and RZE—RF=A=+—H"
31 March 2017 “E-RFOA-BR
—E—+HF=H=+—H

HBNRAKREEH
(&)

Wik -

() RZTE—+F=ZA=+—8 HEMHEX
FTERERBECEBAEEEEREFE=H
W B 2 FRIB 451,362,000/ T (ZF — /N4 ¢
56,833,000/87T) °

&N

Number of

ordinary
shares Amount
EEREE S8
HK$'000
THET
10,000,000,000 2,500,000
2,779,390,000 694,848
860,000,000 215,000
34,300,000 8,575
340,000,000 85,000
1,330,000,000 332,500
5,343,690,000 1,335,923
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

29. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@) On 8 May 2015, 19 May 2015, 22 May 2015 and | June 2015, the holders
of the convertible notes converted convertible notes of HK$79,800,000,
HK$102,600,000, HK$19,000,000 and HK$26,600,000 respectively into
210,000,000, 270,000,000, 50,000,000 and 70,000,000 ordinary shares at a

conversion price of HK$0.38.

On 25 November 2015, 3 December 2015 and 22 January 2016, the holders of the
convertible bonds converted convertible bonds of HK$79,200,000, HK$37,440,000
and HK$70,560,000 respectively into 110,000,000, 52,000,000 and 98,000,000
ordinary shares at a conversion price of HK$0.72. The Company intends to utilise
the net proceeds for the settlement of the outstanding balance of the consideration

arising from previous acquisitions and other potential business opportunities

including the real estate project.

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Company issued and allotted an
aggregate of 8,000,000, 100,000 and 26,200,000 at a weighted average exercise
price HK$0.352, HK$0.52 and HK$0.395 per share respectively. For more details,

please refer to Note 32.

(c)  On 6 May 2015, the Company entered into a placing agreement (the "Placing
Agreement”) to allot and issue a total of 340,000,000 new shares at a price of
HK$0.42 per share to not less than six independent places. The placing was
completed on 22 May 2015. The Company intends to utilise the net proceeds

for property investment business of the Group and general working capital of the

Group.

(d) On 16 November 2015, the holders of the share subscription subscribe of
HK$478,800,000 into 1,330,000,000 ordinary shares at a subscribed price of
HK$0.36. The Company intends to utilise the net proceeds as general working

capital of the Group and the investment in natural gas business when opportunities

arise.
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29. BRA(48)

st -

@

(b)

(©

(d)

RZZ—RAFRAANB - ZZT—AFHA
+hAhB ZZE—FFRA-+-BR_-Z
—HAFERNA—HB TRREEZBEARER
8 0.38 7 7T #5 79,800,000 7% 7T~ 102,600,000
7 7T+ 19,000,000 % 7T K& 26,600,000 7 JT &)
Al R E S R R R 210,000,000 i
270,000,000 % ~ 50,000,000 A% K 70,000,000 f%
AR o

R-_ZT—AF+—A=-_+EHBE —ZT—F
F4+-_fA=ZAR-_ZE—AE—A=-+=
B ATRRESFBEAREREIATE
79,200,000 7T ~ 37,440,0003% 7T % 70,560,000
TR R B E S o B E 5 110,000,000
% ~ 52,000,000 B% 2 98,000,000 % & 3@ % o A&
AERBAMESRBEFRLEEEMRERE
MEEEKKE (RREEBEER)EENE
EERESER -

BE_Z—XEFZA=+-—HLFE £2
Al Rl N TEE03528 T ~ 05218
L0395 7T + 1T RELE T & $£8,000,000
&% + 100,000 % 526,200,000 % i 10 ° A BA&F
B2 0M 32 -

RZZE—RFRANH KRR —HE
EnFE((REHE])  BiEER042ET
RER - AR DRINE B AR A B3 B
174 #£340,000,0000% $7i% - REEEE R =
T-AFAA-F+-A%K - ARREEHH
FEREFEREAESENYEREEBR
REEH—REEES -

RZZE—RF+—A+ B BRHAEEZ
#5748 A L 478,800,000 7% 7T 72 B 1,330,000,000
REBAT - FRDBEB036HB T o RAAHR
PBAMGRBIEELASEN —REEES
RS HIERRE R ARER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

30.

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 15 October 2014, 22 October 2014 and 29 October 2014,
the Company issued convertible notes due on |5 October 2016,
22 October 2016 and 29 October 2016 with a principal amount
of HK$ 190,000,000, HK$190,000,000 and HK$228,000,000, which
is intercomprising 12% coupon rate per annum respectively (the
“2014 CN"). The convertible notes were issued for potential future
investments, including real estate projects and the general working
capital of the Group. The convertible notes are designated as fair
value on initial recognition and are convertible into fully paid ordinary
shares with a par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.38. The effective interest rate are ranging
from 14.29% to 14.64%. The Company will redeem the convertible
notes if the notes have not been converted on maturity date. The
principal amount of convertible notes outstanding was approximately
HK$9,997,800 as at 31 March 2016. During the year ended 31
March 2017, outstanding convertible notes with principal amount of
approximately HK$9,997,800 were fully repaid upon maturity.

On 20 August 2015, the Company issued convertible bond due on
20 August 2018 with a principal amount of HK$432,000,000, which
is intercomprising 4% coupon rate per annum (the “2015 CB").
The convertible bonds were issued for potential future investments,
including real estate projects and the general working capital of the
Group. The convertible bonds are designated as fair value on initial
recognition and are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares with a
par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial conversion
price of HK$0.72. The effective interest rate is 15.91%. The Company
will redeem the convertible bonds if the bonds have not been
converted on maturity date. The principal amount of convertible
bonds outstanding was approximately HK$244,800,000 as at 31
March 2017.

30. [ EE

RZZE—NWE+A+HA - ZZ2—N
E+A-+-_BAE-_ZT—MWETA
“t+hB - ARADBEFTAEEE
190,000,000 & 7T * 190,000,000 /& 7T K&
228,000,000 7T + WA ZZF—RF+ A
+HH ZE—RETAZ+ZHEZ
T-RF+AZTNLBIBHZE@mH X
BEFN% AIREER([2014F 7
REE ] - IR BRI EFHE
HEAEANZBUERERERANEE K
BB S MEIT - AIRRER DRSPS
ﬁw%?iﬁﬁiﬁkﬁvﬁﬂﬁmB
mnzmiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁxﬂﬂi%ﬁ
B0 L2 R Bk - BEEREF =

T 14.29% 2 14.64% ° $QTH%@T
%%EF'W%EQSEFFU%Ex
ERBE RN TE—RF=ZA=+—8
MARITHEZABRBEER 2 ASEOR
9,997,800/ - REBE_T—tF=A
=+T—HIEFE HRTE2TBRRE
B2 R4 59,997,800/ T B E
AR BB AT -

RZE—RFENAZ+H » KRABET
K4 58 5432,000,0008 T —Z — )\ F
NAZ+HIE  ZEEXEBFA%Z
AR ES([2015F A R ESH]) o 7]
BREHFDRBEFEREEANZE
FHEBERAEE —REEESME
17 AIRRES IRV S ERRIET A
BAFEAER  WA[R072B T2 W
BB AN N R BREE25E T
ZHREBRK - BEREFIEAISI1% - A
REBERATRERES @ AIRAZEE
FRERRER B - RZTE—LF=
A=+—8  MARTEZAIBRBRES 2
K& B84 5244,800,000/8 7T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =T —t+F=A=+—HIEFE

30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (CONTINUED)

Equity component EREo
At | April 2015 R-ZE—RAFMEMA—H
Issue of convertible notes BT IR

Converted into shares during the year FAER AR D

At 31 March 2016 and | April 2016 RZZE—R"F=A=1+—H
MZZT—-RFMH—AH
Redemption of convertible notes during 7S A [B] AT A R SR %

the year
At 31 March 2017 R-B—+tH=A=+—H
Liability component E&HD
At | April 2015 RZZE—RFMA—H
Issue of convertible notes BT R R
Converted into shares during the year FNEBR BN
Imputed interest expense charged HEMNEZ W
Interest paid ERHE
At 31 March 2016 and | April 2016 RZZE—R"F=A=1+—H

&— = /\f'zpl]ﬂ El
Redemption of convertible notes during 72 S A& [B] AT A R R

the year
Imputed interest expense charged HEN B
Interest paid ERFE
At 31 March 2017 R=Z—t&=A=+—H

The fair value of the convertible notes/bonds issued has been
arrived on the basis of a valuation carried out on the date of issue
by Peak Vision Appraisal Limited, independent professional valuers
not connect with the Group. As at 31 March 2017, the fair value
of the 2014 CN and 2015 CB were approximately of HK$Nil and
HK$226,645,000 (2016: HK$10,066,000 and HK$208,576,000)

respectively.

150 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZER AR A

30. AT R R (FE)

2014 CN 2015 CB Total
20145 20154

THERREE ARERES et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEIT THEIT THEIT
7,209 - 7,209

- 119,993 119,993
(6,879) (47,432) (54311
330 72,561 72,891
(330) - (330)

- 72,561 72,561
229,289 - 229,289
- 312,007 312,007
(220,852) (139,982) (360,834)
5,870 24,904 30,774
(4,661) (8,481) (13,142)
9,646 188,448 198,094
(9,998) - (9,998)
1,003 31,112 32,115
(651) (9,791) (10,442)

- 209,769 209,769

BRI BBRER B2 AFETD
BEEANEB T EBEE B BEMG
BERMEETIHERARREITBHA
HEITZEEESR N _T—+F=A
=+ —H 2014F A R{% FEHE X 2015
FABRBEHFZATFEDNNAESTHE
JC }2226,6450008 T ( = T — /X & ¢
10,066,0005 7T }2.208,576,00078 7T )
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

31.

BB ERRMEE

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Deferred tax arising from:
At | April 2015
Charged to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

At 31 March 2016 and | April 2016

Credited to the consolidated statement of

comprehensive income

At 31 March 2017

Net deferred tax liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the years ended 3| March 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

3 IRIERIEEE
REBEEZE-_ZET—+HER-F
=t+—RILEERN -
BRAFETERAR EOERSH RS
m

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries

W B 2 B

—RNFE=H
RERA M BIRRE

THEERMELENELERR :
MR-ZT—HFMA—H
fear e 2E MR TR

PR A T AR R R FER AR
HEaEFHE

2017
—E—+tF
HK$’000

FTHET

EE
AFEBE
HK$'000
T

46,324

(2,114)

44,210

(2,741)

41,469
2016
—E—RF

HK$'000
TAET

44,210
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

32.

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company’s share options scheme adopted on 14 January 2002
(the 2002 Share Option Scheme"”) for the purposes of recognition
of significant contribution of and for the provision of incentives to any
directors, employees (whether full-time or part-time), consultants,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors
to the Group or affiliates (“Eligible Persons™). On 12 July 2011,
the Company had granted 140,500,000 share options to directors,
employees and other affiliates under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been terminated on 9 August
2011 and a new share option scheme (the “201 | Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9 August 201 I.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme is adopted for the same purpose of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

Under the terms of the 201 | Share Option Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may for a notional consideration of HK$|
grant option to the Eligible Persons to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price no less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company'’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer of the option (which must
be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option.
Options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme must be
taken up within 28 business days from the date on which the offer
is made by returning a written acceptance of the offer signed by the
Eligible Persons together with the payment of HK$ | per option (the
“Acceptance Conditions"). Options granted and accepted may be
exercised at any time for |10 years commencing on the date on which
an option is accepted in accordance with the Acceptance Conditions
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (the “Option Period"”).
Options granted under the Scheme will be exercisable in the Option
Period notwithstanding that the scheme period of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme does not prescribe any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and has not specified
that the exercise of an option is subject to any performance target.
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32.

BBIRE
ARAER-FF-£—AIMAR
MR E ([ 2T — FE R

g EBAEAKENBELRZE
MEF BEE(TWE2BHERR) B

B 5P HER REA - ABAK
BAASERE(EERALDTED
ZETER  TRESREER - N =
T——F+A+-—R  ARARDRE=
e i%h%%ﬂﬁi% BB RE
fth B /B8 2 B9 H 140,500,00015 B IS4 -

—ERoERREHEIER -2 ——F
NARBELE - AR Tﬂ_f——i
NANBRG—BF BB (=T
—— AR E ) -

R FRERESE NIRRT
FREER 8 2 48R B HERM -

BE_ZT——FBREAE KGR K
RAEFGAURBAREBI B TAA
ﬁ%Aiﬁm%%%'u$m#oam
BREER(LEAEXR)AR

@EW“%tEﬁﬁﬁﬁmZWmﬁ
(WEEREEREZEN DAL XA
BHEMZMEARERATZFHK
TEABRRERE) ZEBERBEARQF
Bin o RIB-T——FREREAERD
ZHERBNBEURBEERATHES

ZEMBOZMKNST - BRZESDER
BEM BT ([ ZMEEDRETEY

EHEF28ELEEANERR - B
BEMZEREARE T ——FHRAE
At EIIRE IR B MBS B AR
THEAR(MTERERE ] BERTE R
EEFEIER 2 B ZAR B ERE A
T BE T —FBREFILE
REBBRERNTEN 2 REREH - N
BEETEBREALEINTMRIRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 32. IR (4E)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
cannot exceed 0% (the “Limited”) of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of adoption of the 201 | Share Option Scheme,
excluding any options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the

2011 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue
from the time to time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible
Persons if the exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised
options and shares already issued under all previous option granted,
would in the |2-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant enable that relevant Eligible Person to have shares
exceeding 1% of the issued shares of the Company for the time being
unless separate approval by the shareholders in general meeting is
obtained.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2016, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme was
3,220,000, representing 0.060% of the shares of the Company in issue
at 31 March 201 6.

As at 31 March 2017, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme was
3,220,000, representing 0.060%of the shares of the Company in issue
at the reporting date.

RIE—F——FRERE SR L Z A
BERRERTERAETZRNEE &
ZTABBARRRER T ——FH
BREASERDHITRAZI0%(TE
ERE T — —FREE 8 RMEFE
i 8 B T 8 2 IR E R AU R I RE AR
) (TERD -

BIEFH 8 R AN A BT E A B AR A T 2
BB 2B MARITE  BREEETE
BRI FEITZROEE ZZAHRTE
BB ERDEITRG B E230% ° MR
BEEMBEZE— PR TZAPZI2E
AHH2ETESPERE(BETM
MATEZBRERBENEBAERT
CERERMBET IR EREIMNEE
BATHBEARRERZEHITRGEA
B1% HERESTERTERAER
AL BRIFERBRRAG EREBRES
FTHEE - BUBHISN o

—EE_FERETE
R-ZE—RFEF=ZA=+—8B R-_ZTZT
—EBEREEE TR ARITE 2B
5N 2D E B £3,220,0008% @ 1574
NENR—ZEBE—REF=ZA=1+—HBD 1T
f& 17 2.0.060% °

RN-ZE—+F=A=+—H R_ZZT
ZEEREREITE M ARITE 2 B
5N 2R HDE B £3,220,0008% @ 1574
NAEIREE B HE TR 20.060% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =T —t+F=A=+—HIEFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 32. B (E)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) —EE-FERETE(E)
During the year under review, the details and movements in the share REBEFER @ BRIE-ZZ — FHRE
options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows: SRR LB ERN IS R EFHF N
I

Number of share options

BREXE
Adjusted Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
exercise price  at | April during during during during at 31 March
Date of grant ~ Exercisable period per share 2016 the year the year the year the year 2017
R=F-7% RZB-tE
SREEE  WA-H ZB=t-H
RHAH T4 B HATE REARY REATE RERRR  REREE  HEAOE
(Note i)
(Hiti)
HKS
AT
Category I Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2001 = 1 July 2021 1.775 140,000 - - - - 140,000
Bi- ¥3 3% 3FLATORE
tAtZH “Z--FtAt-R
Category 2: Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2001 = 1 July 2021 1.775 3,080,000 - - - - 3,080,000
Bhl=: BB “FF 5L ATEE
tAt+ZH e o
Total for all categories 3,220,000 - - - - 3,220,000
itk ik
Weighted average 1775 - - - - 1775
exercise price (HKS)
IgET5TRE(ER)

154  Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZER AR A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 32. R (AE)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) —EE-FERENE(E)
Number of share options
BRELE
Adjusted Outstanding Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled Outstanding
exercise price  at | April during during during during at 31 March
Date of grant  Exercisable period per share 2015 the year the year the year the year 2016
R=F-IF R=B-AF
SREEE  MA-H ZR=1-A
RLAR L TRE  HATE REARE REATE REAXY REREE  HRO
(Note i)
(Hiti)
HKS
AT
Category |: Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 = 11 July 2021 1775 420,000 - - (280,000) - 140,000
Bl &% “Ff . S
tA+ZR e o
Category 2: Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2001 = 11 July 2021 1775 3,080,000 - - - - 3,080,000
BH- BR “Ff “E—ELATRE
tA+ZR “EC-%tAT-R
Total for all categories 3,580,000 - - (280,000) - 3,220,000
itk ey
Weighted average 1775 - - 1.775 - 1775
exercise price (HKS)
TS5 EE(E)
Notes: Bzt -
(i) The closing price of the Company's shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the ()  ARBROARE B BB FTET#R 2 YT
date of grant was HK$0.07| (adjusted to HK$1.775 upon capital reorganisation BROZIBT(RBRAEAR -F—=FX
became effective on 3 June 2013). A=ZBHERERERI7758T) -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

32. I (4E)
—FE_FEKREE(E)

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
March 201 | were priced using the Trinomial model. The inputs into
the model share option type.

Grant date share price B BEBRE

Exercise price 1TEME

Adjusted exercisable price after Capital
Reorganisation

Expected volatility TR BRI
Expected option life T8 AR B A i AF R
Dividend yield g B =

Risk-free interest rate B R e A =
2011 Share Option Scheme

On 28 September 2016, 379,500,000 share options were granted
to directors, employees and consultant under 201 | Share Option
Scheme at an exercisable price of HK$0.26| per share.

As at 31 March 2016, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 201 | Share Option Scheme was
139,800,000, representing 2.62% of the Shares of the Company in
issue at the reporting date.
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AHE-T——4=B=f—AIEE
BmRE 2 AT EDER=EX B
EEBATE - R 2%
A

2002 Share
Option
Scheme

=
iRt &l

HK$0.07 | & 7T
HK$0.07 | /& 7T

R EARR 2 ERBEITEE

HK$ 1.77578 7T
78.743%

10 yearsfF

0%

2.796%

—E——FEREE
N-ZZE—XNEALA=-+N\B  KAFR
BT ——FREREAERTEES
fro261 BLMES - BEEREBER
379,500,00017 B B4 -

R-ZE-RFE=ZA=1+—08 stRkE=
T——FEREFEREMDRITEZ
BN R 2 RHE B & 139,800,000
B AR BRI E AR BHTRG

2.62% °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IR R M AT
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

As at 31 March 2017, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 201 | Share Option Scheme was
504,300,000, representing 9.44% of the Shares of the Company in
issue at the reporting date.

During the year ended 31 March 2017 and 2016, the details and
movements in the share options granted under 2011 Share Option
Scheme are as follows:

32.

B (E)
—E——FERETE(E)
R-ZE—+F=A=+—08  stiRlE=
T -—FEREFIREMDARITEZ
i g w8 K 2 Ik 0 B /& 504,300,000
B - (EARRRIRSRE BHE BTG
9.44% ©

BE-_Z—+tFER_F-"E=H
“+—BLFE RE-_T——FER
%%%EﬁﬁZ%%%Z%%&%Em

Number of share options
ERESE
Reclassification
Exercise ~ Outstanding of categories Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
price at | April during during during during  at 31 March
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2016 the year the year the year the year 017
it St NoB-tE
8h BA-A EnEHIE ZA=t-H
RHBH ik kg AR BfPR  REARE  RERGE  REAKN WA
HKS
AT
Category |: Directors 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 204 0352 400000 - - - - 400000
FRl- &% It L2 ZE-MENAZTABE
NAZ17H “RRENA-TEE
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520 2,000,000 - - - - 2,000,000
ZE-METAZR ZE-DETAZRZ
“ECRETACR
20 April 2015 20 April 2015 - 19 Apri 2025 039 55,000,000 - - - - 55,000,000
“%-hf R-REMACTHE
mAZtA “ECREMATAR
18 September 2016 28 September 2016 - 27 September 2026 0261 - - 275,000,000 - - 275,000,000
i “EREMACTNRE
AAZTR ROAENACTLE
Category 2: Employees 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 2024 0352 1,200,000 - - - - 1,200,000
£ 8 E-mE “R-RENAZTARE
NAZ1AH “RRENAZTEE
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520 45400000 - - - - 45,400,000
ZE-METAZA ZZ-RETAZAECTCMETACH
20 April 2015 20 April 2015 - 19 Apri 2025 039 35,800,000 - - - (15,000000) 20,800,000
%I R-REMACTHE
mAZtA “ECREMATAR
18 September 2016 28 September 2016 - 27 September 2026 0261 - - 51,500,000 - - 51,500,000
I TR REMACTNRE
AAZTR ROAERACTE
Category 3: Consultant 28 September 2016 28 September 2016 - 27 September 2017 0261 - - 53,000,000 - - 53,000,000
BRI BN ERE TR REMACTNRE
AAZTR TRERACTE
Total for all categories 139,800,000 - 379,500,000 - (15,000000) 504,300,000
Rt
Weighted average 0437 - 0261 - 03% 0306
exercise price (HKS)
mETshREEL)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Category |: Directors
Bil- 2%

Category 2:Employees
Bz B8

Category 3: Consutant
£7I= - B

Total for all categories

ERRE

Weighted average

exercise price (HK9)
mETEAREGET)

Exercise
price
Date of grant Exercisable period per share
g
RHRH i iR
HKS
AT
16 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 204 0352
25-mF ZE-BENAZT/RE
Ji¥: . it “RRENACTEE
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520
TRMETAZR CR-MELASAZCRoMETACH
20 April 2015 20 April 2015~ 19 April 2025 039
“T-IEMATH CR-1EMACTRE
“ToREMATAR
16 August 2014 26 August 2014 - 25 August 204 0352
2 ZE-RENAZT/EE
NAZtAR 2o mENAZTRA
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 - 2 October 2024 0520
ZE-METAZR ZE-DETAZRE
“RPEHAZA
20 April 2015 20 April 2015 - 19 Apri 2025 039
“E-REMACTA ZE-REMACTAZ
“TCREMATAR
20 April 2015 20 April 2015 19 April 2025 039

E-EERAStR “2-TEMA=1RE
“SCREMATAR

158 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZAR AR A R

32. eI (48

—E-—FEBKRETE(E)
Number of share options
ERERE
Reclassification
of categories
Outstanding during Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
at | April the year during during during  at3| March
2015 (Note ) the year the year the year 2016
N-8-1%F  FAENE RoB-AE
BA-B EEipE ZR=1-A
HAGE Wz RERRE  RERGE  MERXR WA
1,200,000 (200,000) - (400,000) (200,000 400000
20000000 (8,000,000) - - (10,000,000) 2000000
- (33,800,000) 100800000 (12,000,000) - 55,000,000
8600000 200000 - (7,600,000) - 1,200,000
39,000,000 8000000 - (100,000) (1,500,000) 45400000
- 33,800,000 3,000,000 (1,000,000) - 35800000
- - 13,200,000 (13,200,000 - -
68800000 - 17,000,000 (34,300,000 (11,700,000 139,800,000
049 - 039 0385 0517 0437



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

32. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 32. R (AE)

2011 Share Option Scheme (continued) —E——FERENE(E)

Note: et -

() Each of Mr. Lin and Mr. Mo resigned as a director of Asia Resources Holdings () MEERREER-_ZE-—RFE+—A+<H
Limited on 16 November 2015, but Mr. Lin remained as director of certain BHEDMNERERERDBINES - ML
subsidiaries of the Group during the year; Mr. Mo remained as director of ERFRABEREBEETHERARICES -
certain subsidiaries of the Group till |7 March 2016. Therefore, their respective BEEZZ—XR"F=-A+t8 REENMBE
outstanding options have been reclassified under “Employees” category. AEBETHBRARZES - At - &8

HMAITEBEREEERHRE [EE JER -

(i) For equity-settled share-based payments with parties other than employees, the (iy  BEFTHHT (EERIN) 2 REEEIARN B

Group has rebutted the presumption that the fair values of the services received
can be estimated reliably. As in the opinion of the directors, the Group measured
the services received from these parties and its fair value is approximate to the fair
values of the share options granted using the trinomial option pricing model, at the

date these parties rendered related services to the Group.

ERZNRME - AEERED W RS
ZRFERASEGZEE - EFRR N
ZETHTAARBRFABABREZAH
REBEFEEZSFAITNTERZREREA
FEEFA=ZAXPETEEARLEZBR

B2 NTERE ©

REBEEZZT—+F=-A=+—HLEFE
REOERE s AFEDFER =B BE
TEEXTEE 2ERA 28 ABEN
T

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
March 2017 were pricing using the Trinomial model. The inputs into
the model were as follow:

2011 Share Option Scheme Granted on
2 -FRRESEREAS

28 September 20 April 3 October 26 August

2016 2015 2014 2014

R-B-RE RZB-1F RIB-NF R-Z-EF

AB=tNB mA=t+AH +A=H NA=+75H

Grant date share price Rt B ERE HK$0255/87C  HK$0395%7C  HKS0.5207C  HK$0.345/87T
Exercise price T fE HK$0.261 87T HK$0395BT  HK$0.52087T  HKS03528 7T
Expected volatility AR 75.617% 73.37% 71.741% 71.09%
Expected option life EE AR 9.995 yearsF 10 yearsF 10 yearsF 10 yearsf
Dividend yield REE 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate B RN 0.884% |.4% 1.969% 1.919%
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =T —t+F=A=+—HIEFE

33. ACCUISITION OF SUBSIDARIES

(i) Acquisition of Longxinchang

33. I FY B A A
() KBELE

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group acquired
100% of the issued share capital of Longxinchang at a
consideration of approximately HK$16,613,000. Longxinchang
is engaging in investment, provision of investment advisory,
information advisory and investment management service and
domestic trade. The acquisition has been completed on 23
October 2015. Please refer to announcement and circular dated
|8 September 2015.

He—_ZT—XRF=ZA=+—HItF
E - AEBUREEEME 100%E 21T
A - REBX A 166130008 T °
BIRENEIRE - REREBERBR
% BAER ARKREEIERE
MERNES - WEER -_ZT—AF
TAZ+H=B%K - FEBLHEA
ARBMA-ZT-—HENAAT+N\E
2 AR o

HK$'000
FHTT
Fair value of the assets acquired and REBREMEBEEREREBZATE
liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition
Prepayment and other receivable TE A FRIE R H A FE U AR 3K 16,490
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 123
Total identifiable net assets at fair value AR EEFERSE  EATE 16,613
Total consideration BRE (16,613)

The acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition
method.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$ 165,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the period, within the “administrative expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

RRWBECRBURBEAR -

Y B AR R RC AN A3 8140 165,000/ T2
RERAEPMER  ASEHAR
FEBEBEkEMEEEER [T
Fis |TBE THERA/MX -

Net cash outflow from the acquisition Wihs 2 IR et 55

Cash consideration paid ERNBReRE (16,613)

Bank balances and cash acquired FIERITHEMR KIS 123
(16,490)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

33. ACCUISITION OF SUBSIDARIES
(CONTINUED)

()

(ii)

Acquisition of Longxinchang (continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of Longxinchang

Included in the loss for the year is approximately of
HK$ 1,000 attributable to the additional business generated
by Longxinchang. Longxinchang did not generate any revenue
during the period.

Had these business combinations been effected at | April 2015,
the revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$4,454,000, and the loss for the year from continuing
operations would have been approximately HK$142,874,000.
The Directors consider these “pro-forma” numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the combined
group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference point
for comparison in future periods.

Acquisition of It R1E B EIRZHB R L Al

During the year ended 31| March 2016, the Group acquired
100% of the issued share capital of It REBAIREHER
/AA] at a consideration of approximately HK$127,000. 3t
ERBIRZRABMR A A is inactive. The acquisition has been
completed during the year.

The acquisition of LR EBBIRFBABR AT did not
constitute a business. In accordance with HKFRS 3, such
acquisition did not give rise to goodwill.

33. WEBFTE 2~ B (&)

(1)

(ii)

WiEELE (&)
WBHEE 2 REER &
RFEEZEBEPBIEL 00078 TR
BZRINEBREIGZHIE - EBIRE
RER A E A TR R A o

W EE£BAMHR - —AFMA
—HEBEER  AEBMZBABLA
4,454,000/ 70 © MANFE KB FE
KRR BB 4 A 142,874,000
BIL - BEERAE WEHEE T
REHAEHEERFEEFENE
WA 2 MR AEARET
L2 E ), -

Wiglt R1EBERIREZEAE IR
AN
REE-_Z—"F=ZA=+—HL
FE - AEERRBILRERAER
HERAB S HITRA - RE
BHI127,00078 7T - dt REBEIRE
HERABEEER - WEEREF
AR e

Bt R EBERAEAARDRLA
BR—IEER - REBEUHREE
R3S - B AELRE -

HK$'000
THET
Fair value of the assets acquired and RUBBREMEEERBRREEZATE
liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition
Property, plant and equipment e N 97
Bank balances and cash RITHEBREIRE 30
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFEZH#ANEEFERE 127
Total consideration BRE (127)
Net cash outflow from the acquisition I 2 IR &M FEE
Cash consideration paid ERNRENRE (127)
Bank balances and cash acquired FRERTTH R IR ® 30
(97)
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

33. ACCUISITION OF SUBSIDARIES
(CONTINUED)

33. WEBFTE 2~ B (&)

(iii) Acquisition of Guangzhou Shi An Ye

During the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group acquired
100% of the issued share capital of Guangzhou Shi An Ye at a
consideration of approximately HK$12,737,000. Guangzhou Shi
An Ye is engaging in general consultancy service. The acquisition

has been completed on 4 May 2015.

(i) WIE B M T & 3
RBE-T—A"F=ZA=+—AL
FE  AEEREEREMNMLZERE
EEITRA - RERL 12,737,000
BT o BINTT ZE R FHEEBER
%o WEBEDR -_ZE—AHFERAMA

FERK °
HK$'000
FHTT
Fair value of the assets acquired and RUBEHEMBEER
liabilities recognised at the date of BREEZAFE
acquisition
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E fth e W BR K 12,758
Accruals and other payables JEET B F R B fth & A5 BR AR (40)
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LIRS 19
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BATEFECAH#ANEEFERE 12,737
Total consideration ERIME (12,737)

The acquisition has been accounted for using acquisition
method.

Acquisition-related costs amounting to approximately
HK$25,000 have been excluded from the consideration
transferred and have been recognised as an expense in
the period, within the “administrative expenses” line item
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

ERWECEBEBEEAR

Uiz B2 48 B8 A ZK 4925,0007%8 7T B #e 83
FEREPMEG  YEEBHRREA
BREEME2EREER [TTREAX ]
HE THEREMAX -

Net cash outflow from the acquisition g 2 IRe it F5E

Cash consideration paid ENRERE (12,737)

Bank balances and cash acquired FIEIRITHEMR LIRS 19
(12,718)
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BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

33. ACCUISITION OF SUBSIDARIES

(CONTINUED)
(iii) Acquisition of Guangzhou Shi An Ye

(continued)
Impact of acquisition on the results of Guangzhou Shi An Ye

Included in the loss for the year is approximately of HK$1,000
attributable to the additional business generated by Guangzhou
Shi An Ye. Guangzhou Shi An Ye did not generate any revenue
during the period.

Had these business combinations been effected at | April 2015,
the revenue of the Group would have been approximately
HK$4,454,000, and the loss for the year from continuing
operations would have been approximately HK$142,874,000.
The Directors consider these “pro-forma” numbers to represent
an approximate measure of the performance of the combined
group on an annualised basis and to provide a reference point

for comparison in future periods.

34. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(i) Disposal of Billion Source group

On 9 April 2015, the Group has entered into a conditional sale
and purchase agreement with the purchaser Mr. Pan Guohua*
(EBIZESLA), an independent third party in respect of the
sale 100% equity share of Billion Source Investments Limited
(which has two subsidiaries company, Silver Epoch Investments
Limited and Value Brilliant Investments Limited, investment
holdings companies, and one indirect wholly owned subsidiary,
Siping Ju Neng Medicine Industry Co, Ltd.* (FOFEgL&e3
APRAF]), a company engaged in manufacturing and sale of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC) (“Billion Sourse group”)
at a consideration of RMB30,000,000. (For details, please refer
to the announcements dated |5 April 2015 and 12 June 2015,
and the circular dated on 8 May 2015). The disposal of the
PRC pharmaceutical business was subsequently completed on 12
June 2015 and the consideration as determined on that date at
approximately HK$37,902,000.

*  For identification purpose only

33. WEBFTE 2~ B (&)

(i) WIBE M T & 3 (48 )

WIEHEMT L2 XEEH 2%
Fr

AEFZEBERBEIEL 00078 TTE
MR R ZBEINEIG RIS 2R -
JE N T %2 SE 70 B 0 3 4 2 A (R (T UK
A e

WM EE£BAHR T —RAFMA
—BABEER m%lzumﬂw;%
4,454,000 70 © MAFEREFHE
KR EETS 1B 4 5 142,874,000
BIL - BEEZRAE WEHEIHT
REHAEHEERFEEFENE
WEB AT E RIR M B 1% BIRHETT
ML ERR 2 EE -

34. HEMB AT WE EiE
(i) 4 EBillion Source%£ &

RZZE—RAFMWMANE » AEHH
BUE=—FEHERELERD
EBillion Source Investments Limited
(AEERmRAKREHREEROM
B & @] Silver Epoch Investments
Limited &2 Value Brilliant Investments
Limited » W2 E BB EF HRKE
%luu%?&%’iﬁ'ﬂﬁ% Al

BB E B RN F]) ([Billion Source
%@J)E’\J%uﬁﬂﬂéﬂiﬁﬂﬂiﬁ
B Wi‘??%/\ﬁﬁ%ooooooo
T (HBRE2MERAEZS—
$@H+£E&_§—ﬁ$/\ﬁ
TTHZAMRBEHAZE—RAEF
AT NBZBE) o & B %
mEBEENR_ZE—RAF A+
HEmlk mMRERZBEEAD
37,902,000/ 7T °

* ERES
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

34. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES  34. HEME A TWE EiE

(CONTINUED) (15

(i) Disposal of Billion Source group (continued) )

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as

follows:

Consideration received BHRE

Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment M - HEREE
Prepaid lease payment TR HERIE
Inventories FE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk E AU AR TR
Bank balances and cash WITHER LB
Trade and other payables B 5 R E M EATAR R
Bank borrowings HRITEE

Release of translation reserve fERR 2 BE K

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries i E BT BB A Rl M ER

Satisfied by: BTRIHFAZN -
Cash He

Net cash inflow from disposal: PEFHEZBESRNTFE
Cash consideration ReRE
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERITEBRER®

For the period from | April 2015 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiaries were engaged in sales and manufacturing of
pharmaceutical products in the PRC. The revenue contributed
by the subsidiaries were approximately HK$653,000 and loss of
approximately HK$4,382,000 has recognised in the Group's loss
for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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1 EBillion Source% &
(#&)
REEBHZENB AR ZEEF
(ER NN

HK$'000
TAT

37,902

(50,253)
(3,873)
(1,545)

(15,376)
(1,577)

5,129
55,590

25,997
28,496

54,493

37,902

37902
(1,577)

36,325

H-Z—AFMNA—HEEHER
HIEEIR . BB AR R EA
EHERBIEERER - Z5HB
N E)E B A W R £7653,0007% 7T & &S
B494382,000 8 TERAEBEZE
CE-RE=ZA=1+—-BILFEY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

34. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES  34. HEME A TWE EiE
(CONTINUED) (#&)

(ii) Disposal of High Legend group (ii)

In August 2015, the Group has disposed 100% equity share of
High Legend International Limited (which has one subsidiary
company MMBEEREIRFRAF], a company engaged
in running a patisserie coffee shop in the PRC) (“High Legend
group”) at a consideration of RMB1,300,000. The disposal of
the PRC coffee shop was subsequently completed on |3 August
2015 and the consideration as determined on that date at
approximately HK$1,572,000.

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as

follows:
Consideration received 2R E
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment M - HWE REE
Inventories s
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KRR S
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM BRI
Release of translation reserve R 2 FE W
Loss in disposal of subsidiaries LEMBAREE
Satisfied by: BRI FAZA -
Cash Re
Net cash inflow from disposal: HEFH REMAFEE
Cash consideration RENE
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERITEBRER S

For the period from | April 2015 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiaries were engaged in running a patisserie coffee
shop in the PRC. The revenue contributed by the subsidiaries
were approximately HK$123,000 and loss of approximately
HK$72,000 has recognised in the Group's loss for the year
ended 31 March 2016.

HE LB
RZZE—RFNA - AEEBEEEE
REEBRAERAR (HEHEE — MK
BRARNMNAZERERBRAA
(— MR P BINEAA R B MBEE
BWAE)) ([ REBRER ] /2 EL
Bt - REAR AR 1,300,000 °
HEFREMYEEER T —RF
NAT=Z8%K  RERZBEET
BHI1,572,0008 7T °

REERPZENBRARZEEF
(EVENNE

HK$'000
FTAET

1,572

(166)

(14)

(1,359)
5

38
(88)

(50)

1,572

1,572
(1,359)

213

H-Z—AFMNA—HEEHER
BRI ERRS - BB A R B
FIENEEBMES - ZEMB AR
BRI AU 2549 123,000 7T K B 18
H720008 TERAEBHRE_F
—RNFZAZT—BLEFENEE
NFER. ©
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZ =T —t+F=A=+—HIEFE

34. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES  34. HEME A TWE EiE

(CONTINUED) (#&
(iii) Disposal of 1t 15 B AR Z#H B R 2 Al (iii)

On 28 December 2015, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the purchaser It RIUEGE AR A
A], an independent third party in respect of the sale of 100%
share equity of It RIBBEIEAHAFR QA at a consideration
of approximately HK$120,000. 3t F 15 18 8l [& 7% ’T’ﬁ_ﬁﬁA Al is
inactive in the PRC. The disposal of 3t ERAIBFAAEGRA
7] was completed on 4 March 2016,

The net assets of subsidiary at the date of disposal were as

)
HEIRIEBRIRZHABR
/'\ 7
NZEBE—RE+-_A=+/\H K
SEEEFIERAEERABRAF
(ByE=F)BEtnEBRERE
BHABRAREHEEI Y —EE
Btk - RELAE120,000%87T © 4t
TEBEIRABAERAFNPEHY
FE% - HEILLREBAEZNAE
RABER-_ZE—X"E=AWNAR

HK$'000
TAT

120

(87)
(33)

120

120

follows:

Consideration received BHRE

Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE
Bank balances and cash RITER LB E

Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMTB A R ES

Satisfied by: BRI HFAZM -
Cash Be

Net cash inflow from disposal: PEFHEZBESRANFE :
Cash consideration RENE
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERITEBRER S

For the period from | April 2015 to the date of disposal,
the above subsidiary was inactive in the PRC. The revenue
contributed by the subsidiary was approximately HK$Nil and
profit of approximately HK$Nil has recognised in the Group's
loss for the year ended 3| March 2016.
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE—ZT—t+F=A=+—HIEFE

34. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES  34. HEME A TWE EiE

(CONTINUED) (#&)
(iv) Disposal of BN X ¥R EBRER A (iv) LEBNH ZE£RERRE
RAH

On 18 January 2016, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the purchaser BN 5 &% & B R
BBRAF], an independent third party in respect of the sale of
100% share equity of Guangzhou Shi An Ye at a consideration
of approximately HK$12,027,000. Guangzhou Shi An Ye is
majority engaging in business services in the PRC. The disposal of
Guangzhou Shi An Ye was completed on | March 2016.

The net assets of subsidiary at the date of disposal were as

RZZE—X"F—A+N\AH  ~&£E
HEHENTELZREZRERA
A (BYE=F)REHERMTERE
ZEEBRET I ESE i REY
A12,027,0008 70 c EMTWLEE
EEPEYEERRY o HEREIM
TLREER _TE—XR"F=-A—H%=

RHEERRZEHB AR ZEESF

HK$'000
TAT
12,027

(11,906)
(96)
25

12,027

12,027

follows:

Consideration received R E

Net assets disposed of: EHEEEFE
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H A e AR TR
Bank balances and cash IRITEHER IR

Gain on disposal of subsidiary i E BT BB A Rl M aR

Satisfied by: BTRHFAZNM -
Cash He

Net cash inflow from disposal: HEFBEZREMAFHE :
Cash consideration ReERE
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERITEBRER®

For the period from | April 2015 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiary was engaged in general consultancy services
in the PRC. The revenue contributed by the subsidiary was
approximately HK$Nil and loss of approximately HK$ 1,000 has
recognised in the Group’s loss for the year ended 3| March
2016.

(96)

11,931

H-E—AFNA—REELEH
i Nl s N b RN B Nl e
EREERRE - WE LR ER
B U3 89T JT KBS 1B 491,000
EEEA$$@§Y§ iﬁ_/\¢ H
=+ —HIEFENEIBARR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

34. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
(v) Disposal of FRITIEIREBEXZREERL A

On 25 April 2016, the Group has disposed of the entire
registered capital of Shenzhen Shi Longxinchang Industrial
YTHEMEBXERAERAA), a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, which is engaged
in the PRC at consideration of RMB13,600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,048,000).

Company Limited* (%

The net assets of subsidiary at the date of disposal were as
follows:

34. HEM B AT HiE

(#8)

(v) HEFRITIEKE BE¥XZE
BRR A
R-B—XEMA-+AHA K&

Consideration received BURE
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Prepayment TERTRIR
Bank balances and cash WITHEB MRS
Release from translation reserve fEbR 2 [ H
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HE B A RESE

leﬁ FITEMREEERES

ANANARR —HRPEREE
ﬂ‘%a@%%ﬁrﬁ%ﬁﬂ)ﬁ@%% A E
N REEAREI3,6000007T (8
B R #916,048,000/8 7T ) °

REERPZEMBRARZEER
(EV N

HK$'000
FTHET

16,048

(15930)
(119)

)
(23)

(24)

16,048

Satisfied by: BRI FAZA -
Cash B

Net cash inflow from disposal: HEFEZRERAFE -
Cash consideration ReRE

Bank balances and cash disposal

For the period from | April 2016 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiary was engaged in general consultancy services
in the PRC. The revenue contributed by the subsidiary was
approximately HK$Nil and loss of approximately HK$ 1,000 has
recognised in the Group's loss for the year ended 3| March
2017.

*  For identification purpose only
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BRERITEHEES

* (ERES

16,048
(119)

15,929

H-ZE-RFHA-HAEEHEHR
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

34. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

(vi) Disposal of FRYIIBERE¥RREFRL &

34. HEM B AT HiE

(&)

On 25 April 2016, the Group has disposed of its entire
registered capital of RIBEEREXERBRAF], a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which is engaged in the PRC
at consideration of RMB41,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$48,397,000).

The net assets of subsidiary at the date of disposal were as
follows:

Consideration received BURE
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Prepayment TERTRIR
Bank balances and cash WITHEB MRS
Release from translation reserve R bR 2 [ H
Loss on disposal of subsidiary HE B A RESE

(Vi) HEFRYNBREFREXZRE

R 2 &
R-ZB—XNENA-+HE K&
ECHEERNFIBRERELLRE
ERAR(ARA—HRPAEME
EBKN2EWNB AR 2P
X R{EAARE41,0000007T
(HEEF4948,397,000/ 7T ) °

REERPZEMBRARZEER
(EV N

HK$'000
FTHET

48,397

(47217)
(1,178)

2
(88)
(86)

48,397

48,397

Satisfied by: BRI FAZA -
Cash B

Net cash inflow from disposal: HEFEZRERAFE -
Cash consideration ReRE
Bank balances and cash disposal EHERITEBRRE®

For the period from | April 2016 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiary was engaged in general consultancy services
in the PRC. The revenue contributed by the subsidiary was
approximately HK$Nil and loss of approximately HK$ 1,000 has
recognised in the Group’s loss for the year ended 3| March
2017.

(1,178)

47,219

H-Z—AFNA—HEEHER
HIEEIR . BB AR R EY
E—REMRE - ZWBARER
B U3 89T 8 oT KBS 18 49 1,000
TERAREEHEE _T—+F=A
=+ —HIEFEMEIBARER -
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e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

35. RESERVES

Details of the movements of the Group'’s reserves are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 66.

Details of the movements of the Company’s reserves are set out in

note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

36. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

Within one year —F AR
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_EFRF
(BREEMTF)

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the Group for
certain of its premises. Leases are negotiated for an average term of 3
(2016: 3) years and rentals are fixed throughout the lease term.

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
capital commitments:

Contracted but not provided for: BERTAMEREEE
Acquisition of investment properties I EEIS B %
Property development expenditure YIHBERAS
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35.

36.

37.

B
AEBREEDEWRRBGELHA
WHEBF -

ARTRBELDAERRNG S HBER
W41 -
REBEE
EEEERBEEA
2017 2016
—B—tE —FAE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH FHT
3,606
1,220

REBEONFTEAREREETYEZ
EAEE  BOBER=F(ZF—RX
F=ZF)FHEN  mAPRZEE
EE °

BN
RS - AEE G TR E AR ¢

2017 2016
—F-tF TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT TRET

190,407 65,296
61,035 -

65,296
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

38.

39.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group'’s qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The Group and each of the employees make

monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$603,000 (2016:
HK$221,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the
Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are
disclosed below.

Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was
as follows:

Short-term benefits GHAE A
Retirement benefit scheme RIRBFET B
Share-based payment expenses LARR D 2 B2

38.

39.

BRIKERIETE]
AREREBZAARERSATEY
BHEAES((BES]) - B2 E
ERAREZAENHBAE  ATREA
BHZESER - ARBRSMIEAS
ARBHES BRI -

FEIMBARZEEIIFERMRLZ
B ERRKEMEIKE - - EH B
REVAMERRENGIENEHFEET
BALLZ R AERBRENZER -
AEBMERARBRGE2HE—RERM
AHEIER TR AR -

GATEWRFERANERZ AR AD
603,000/ 7C ( =& — /N4 : 221,000/
TT)  DASEBEERFERAEE X
FES N ZERTEI 2R -

ERREALRS

ARAREANBRAR(KENARRLZ
MEALD)HZRZERFEARFEE -
AW ERAMERE - lREZFHEETTE
BREMBEHAREEI)  AEEEA
MEEALHZ X ZFHBERENT -

FTEEBASZHH
TREEABNFRZFHMAOT :

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FH&T

284

92

30,640
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Group’s material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows.

Name of subsidiaries

WEAREE

Asia Financial Holdings
(Hong Kong) Limited
MEREE(RE)BRAR

jeall]

Land Ace Limited
ELRERAR

Man Lee Management Limited

BHEREARAA

PT. Dampar Golden International

PT. Damper International Limited

Senco Investment Limited

HEREERAT

World Metro Investment Limited

NEREBRAH

EMEXER(RINBRAF
(note a)

EMERER(RINBRAF
(Wfita)

BERRERER(RINERLA
(note a)

BRHERER(RI)ERAR
(Hista)

Place of
incorporation/
operation
LAY
REhH

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
BB
Hong Kong

BB

Indonesia

£

British Virgin Islands
RERKES

Hong Kong
6

Hong Kong
86

The PRC
&

The PRC
R

Class of
shares/
registered
capital held
st e,/
e LR

Ordinary
EEK

Ordinary
BBk
Ordinary

EBR

Ordinary
BBk

Ordinary
BBk

Ordinary
BBk

Ordinary
BBk

Registered
wE

Registered
B4
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40. B A AFF1E

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital
BB/
EMER

HK$ 10,000
10,0007 7

HKS |
177
HKS2

BT

US$250,000
250,000 T

US$100
100ETT

HKS |
17T

HKS |
17T

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,0000007T

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,0000007T

RBERR > AEEZETBMB AR

BT -

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

ARAREZARRAEE/

EMERLH
Directly Indirectly
EE %

100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 60%
- 60%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

FERHK

Money lending
&

Gold trading
B2EY

Management services and
securities trading

ERRBEREFES

Refine and sell iron sand
exploited
BRREED
Rz Em

Trading of iron sand

HYES

Management services

TR

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB ERRMEE

nVT\

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Class of
Place of shares/
incorporation/  registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held
LAY iR,/
MELAREE geny amEREH
NEBIMEMBB N F(note g  The PRC Registered
NERMERERAR (Mita) Bl
MMBEE HBB R A (note g)  The PRC Registered
MNERESERARA(MF) HE B
BRESFACKINERRDRE  The PRC Registered
(note a) H Al
ERESHEARINBRA
(Hfzta)
WETBETNERER The PRC Registered
EB 2R (note o) HE A
WETALEEENERER
BRAR(Hita)
FREEEFACKYNERRA  The PRC Registered
(note a) H A}
REEEFARINERARA
(Kiita)
AEEABEERARAF  The PRC Registered
(note a) H faai
RYBEAEXERARLA
(Hiita)
RshBEEERERAF  The PRC Registered
(note a) H i
ALK EEEERBRAA
(Hiita)

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

40. MY B Al=F15 (48)

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

BRRAE/ ARAREHRBAEE/

EMEX

HK$205,000,000
205,000,000 7T

RMBI5,000,000
AEH15000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
AR 3,000,000

US$2,000,000
2,000,000% 7T

RMB3,000,000
AR #3,000,0007T

RMBI,000,000
ARH1,000,0007T

RMBI,000,000
ARH1,000,0007T

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital
held by the Company

EMER LA
Directly Indirectly
BB B

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

- 100%
- 100%

Principal activities

TEEHK

Property development

NEER

Dormant
gﬁﬂ AR %

Investment holding

REER

Dormant
S

Property investment

ESIS

Investment holding

RERR

Property investment

ESIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE —ZE—+HF=A=+—HILtFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. MY B Al=F15 (48)
(CONTINUED)
Class of Fully paid  Proportion of nominal
Place of shares/ share capitall  value of paid capital/
incorporation/  registered registered registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held capital  held by the Company Principal activities
AL, iR,/ BRRE/ FNAREZHRREAEE/
WELDE A Beny &SRR afER EfE AL Al TERHK
Directly Indirectly
BB B
RYMEEEEXERERAR  The PRC Registered RMBI,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note a) i A AR 10000007 - 0%  EEEX
AR REEXERERAF
(Kiita)
AR REEATRAR The PRC Registered HK$10,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note a)
R REEAERARA i Gl 10,000,000/ 7T - 0%  EEg¥
(Hizta)
RYBHEREERERAF  The PRC Registered RMBI100,000 - 100%  Property investment
(note a)
MIFHERERRERLE A ARH100,0007 - 100%  MERE
(Hiita)
THEBEESCRINERAR  The PRC Registered RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note a)
EMERES (RINBRAR & A AR%100,0000007T - 0% — EEEX
(Hizta)
TMEARRERE (R The PRC Registered US$30,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
BB A (note )
EMERRERECRY) i A 30,000,000% 7T - 100%  EEEX
AR DR (Hrita)
BREMERBAFEEREMLAT  The PRC Registered HK$ 100,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note a)
RENERBERERELAR + Bl 100,000,000 7 - 0% EEEX
(Hfzta)
Note: Mt -
(a)  The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign owner enterprises established in the (a) ZMBARRNRPEKZZBEINEBEE R
PRC. xe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the result or assets of the
Group. To give the details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

Place of interest and voting

incorporation/ rights held by non-

Name of subsidiary operation controlling interest
AL FEREZFEELZ
WEARER Kemy BEREEERRERE
2017 2016
“2-t§ ZTRF
% %
PT. Damper Indonesia 40
Golden International e

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group'’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.

Loss allocated to non-

40. B A B8 (&)

REREFAEMMERE - MHERRGE
ERAREEZEHES

EER/LERIM 2 AKEZ KB AR
BAREZRENEEREETE - &
ERREINEMHBARZFIEEER
BRI o

TREIANEEREREAIE LS
F2EMBRRZHE

Accumulated non-

controlling interest controlling interests

R ER 25t
EzEE FERES
2017 2016 2017 2016
“E-tf ZTRF B+t —FTF
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TR THIL TER THT
2945 (9,147) (8.168)

BARASEEE AR ERIFERER Z M
BRBZHMBERBMEBEINGT - AT
MBERBERTEEAYHEMNZS
Ll
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H{ZE - T —tF =—A=+—HILtFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 40. Mt B A RIF15 (&)
(CONTINUED)
PT. Damper Golden International PT. Damper Golden International
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT THET
Current assets MEVEE 1,565
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,045
Current liabilities DEE=RET 26,030
Non-current liabilities ERBEE -
Equity attributable to owners RRABEE NEE#ER
of the Company (12,252)
Non-controlling interest SRR (8,168)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R M IRR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE —Z—+HF=F=+—HItFE

40. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

PT. Damper Golden International (continued)

40. B D EFF1E (1)

PT. Damper Golden International

()
2017 2016
—EB—tF ZE—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FABT
Revenue WA -
Expenses L3 (7.125)
Loss for the year REEBE (7,125)
Loss attributable to the owners of the KNEHB AELER
Company (4,180)
Loss attributable to non-controlling eI R (N B 1R
interest (2,945)
Loss for the year REEEIE (7.125)
Other comprehensive income attributable KAREBAEEZ
to the owners of the Company Hiv 2E W 53
Other comprehensive income/(expense) IR R (L 2
attributable to non-controlling interest HihzmEmkes (FAX) (174)
Other comprehensive income/(expense) HEpzmikss (FAx) (121)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to  ANA R #A AJEE 2
the owners of the Company 2HEMAXEE (4.127)
Total comprehensive expense attributable to  JEFEREHEZS FE(G 2
non-controlling interest 2 TH X A5 (3.119)
Total comprehensive expense ZHERX B (7.246)
Net cash outflow from KEEEEBZ
operating activities We M FRE (438)
Net cash inflow from REREEE
investing activities WEMAFEE 54
Net cash outflow from REFBEEE
financing activities WEm L FEE (78)
(462)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 2017 H{ZE - T —tF =—A=+—HILtFE

41. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF 41, DT 2 BISRR AL
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF =
THE COMPANY
Summarised statement of financial position information of the RRRRHERRZ M BARRRE R
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: CRORCE
2017 2016
—E—+tHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FHT
Non-current assets RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SR NG 106,500 106,500
106,500 106,500
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — TEfIFUIA ~ #£2& & 60 707
Hofth FE U AR 5K
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSB B A B 518 111,172 1,277,341
Bank balances and cash RITEEBR NI 1,036 8,476
111,268 1,286,524
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables Z Z MR = 154
Amounts due to subsidiaries S NGIE e 123,969 121,269
Other payables and accruals Hib TR R IEET & B 17,148 712,428
Convertible notes Al R - 9,646
141,117 843,497
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(EE) BERE (28,849) 443,027
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBAERE 77,651 549,527
Capital and reserves BEAXRHE
Share capital R A 1,335,923 1,335,923
Reserves i (1,468,041) (974,844)
(132,118) 361,079
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Convertible notes AR E % 209,769 188,448

77,651 549,527
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IR R M AT
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

41. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Huang Yilin
BRMALE

Director

EF

41. R QB 2 BB R E FHE

o8 (4=
= (nﬁ

~

PHEREREN _TE—EF A+ /\H
LEESHHEWKERZ  WHTHA
TREEEHT

Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith
REELE

Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

41. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF

41. N1 7] 2 AR R R B RHE
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF =

(%

~

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Convertible Share-base
Share Share notes  Capital payment Exchange  General Accumulated
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total
4 HR
Rx  BRGEE RERE KRARE XORE EXRE -RRE EHER aE
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKPO00  HK$OO0  HK$HO0O
Thr Thr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  THr  TEr  TEn
At | April 2015 RZE-RENA-A 694648 1188237 7210 198350 31,900 7 180030 (1530312) 770290
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - (1,550371)  (1,550371)
Total comprehensive expenses TERREY AR
for the year - - - - - - - (1550371) (1550371)
Recognition of convertible notefbonds AR ARELE /
into shares ErEaakh - - 119993 - - - - - 119993
Conversion of convertible notesibonds T ARZE /
into shares ErEnakn 25000 200200 (54312) - - - - - 30889
Lapse of share option BRELH - - - - (10255) - - 1025 -
Equity seftled share-based trensactions ~ hE& &5 b R{ &
B2 - - - - 35 - - - g6
Issue ordinary shares upon exercse  {TEEEMRERETT
of share options LR 8575 464 - - (l0Jo) - - - 3115
Placing of shares EERD 85000 57,800 - - - - - - 142800
Share subscription DO 3500 146300 - - - - - - 478800
At3I March 016and | Aprl 2016 RZF-7E=R
=t-8k
ZE-RERA-R 1393 1597179 72891 198,350 47,107 7 180030 (3070428) 361079
Loss for the year REEEE - - - - - - - (527980)  (527980)
Total comprehensive expenses AEERESHAE
for the year - - - - - - - (527.980)  (527,980)
Redemption of convertible notes ROTAREE - - (330) - - - - 330 -
Lapse of share options BIRELH - - - - (4559 - - 4559 -
Equity settled share-based transactions ~ JEREEMR I &
B2 - - - - U - - - M
At31 March 2017 R-F-tF=4
=1-f 1335923 1597179 72561 198350 71331 7 180030 (3593519)  (132118)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\/-_ﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

42. DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2017 (2016: Nil).

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@) On 19 April 2017, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,

Continental Joy Limited (the “Continental Joy"”), entered into
the agreement with Jiu Tai International Resources Company
Limited (“Jiu Tai”) in relation to the acquisition of 20% equity
interests in a company (the “Target Company A”) incorporated
in Hong Kong with limited liability which is principally engaged
in general trading. The Target Company A is wholly-owned by
Jiu Tai. The Target Company A owns 100% equity interest in
Guangxi Subsidiary. Guangxi Subsidiary is principally engaged
in production and sales of bottled water. Jiu Tai has agreed to
sell, and Continental Joy has agreed to purchase, the shares of
20% equity interests in the Target Company A for an aggregate
consideration of HK$273,000,000, which shall be settled
by promissory note issued by the Company. The relevant
conditions precedent of the agreement have been fulfilled,
completion took place on 25 April 2017. Details of which are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 19 April and
25 April 2017. On 14 June 2017, the promissory notes had been
fully redeemed.

42. |RE

43. %

EETEBRRNEBE-_ZE—+tF=HA
e EtiFZEﬂhb._v—ﬁ
F ) o

n\l:l E Tﬁ %

(@ RZE—EFWA+NAE AR

Al & & Mf B A 7 Continental Joy
Limited([ Continental Joy |) £ L. & Bl
BRaelRiR i AR AR (T A DK
B-—RELR(IBRAFAL Z220%
RIEFT Wi - BRRARARKE
BT 2BERAR - FEHE
—REH - BERFABHNLEERE
e - BREQAFABEEANMEA
Rl EPRRAE - BB QAR FER
ZHEERHEEREK - NABRE
&  MContinental JoyE RIEESR
BIRARIAZ20%ER D - B
{8 %273,000,000/8 7T * FELAZAR R 7]
BT AR ZRER - ZHE 28
BERGHEEER  RZT—+
FMHAZTRHATEK © FHENA
AEAAR-E—tFMWA+T A
RMAZ+HBZRAM - R_F
—tFERNATNA  ZERALER
EAREEL -
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For the year ended 31 March 2017 HZE — &

BB ERRMEE

—tEF=ZA=t—HLEE

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(©

On 27 April 2017, BRELE#A ORI) BR A A
("Hongyuan”), being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into the Disposal Agreement with the
FITEZEBIRIEEERER AR (“Shenzhen Shi Anye”)
in relation to the disposal of XYIIEEAEXEEER A A
("Penghongsheng”), pursuant to which Hongyuan has agreed
to sell and Shenzhen Shi Anye has agreed to purchase 60%
equity interest in Penghongsheng and the Hongyuan has agreed
to sell and to procure certain members of the Group to sell
and Shenzhen Shi Anye has agreed to purchase the amounts
owed by Penghonsheng to Hongyuan and certain members of
the Group for the disposal consideration of RMB240,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$271,200,000). Details of which
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 27 April
2017.

On 6 June 2017, Hongyuan, entered into the Disposal
Agreement with Shenzhen Shi Anye in relation to the
disposal of 40% equity interest in Penghongsheng, pursuant
to which Honyuan has conditionally agreed to sell and
Shenzhen Shi Anye has conditionally agreed to purchase
40% equity interest in Penghongshend and Hongyuan has
conditionally agreed to sell and to procure certain members
of the Group to sell and Shenzhen Shi Anye has conditionally
agreed to purchase the amounts owed by Penghonsheng to
Hongyuan and certain members of the Group for the disposal
consideration of RMB160,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$180,800,000). Details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 6 June 2017.

On 17 May 2017, RZEEFEFHACRIIN) B R 2 F](“Shengyi”)
and SR & fEHERY R ORYI) B R 2 A (“ISH Yanbao')
entered into the supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement to the 2014 Acquisition Agreement, the May 2015
Acquisition Agreement and the November 2015 Acquisition
Agreement”) to the 2014 Acquisition Agreement, the May 2015
Acquisition Agreement and the November 2015 Acquisition
Agreement, pursuant to the timetables, progress, delay and
any relevant terms in relation to the fact that ISH Yanbao shall
register the title of the investment properties under the name of
Shengyi. Details of which are set out in the announcement of the
Company dated 17 May 2017.
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n\l:l

(b)

(©

HEHREE(E)
RZE—+FMWA=Z++H &Q
RIEEEEWBRARIEREESRN
CRIDBRAR(BIR]) BRI
MEZEERREZERBRAA(F
IMLZENDHEEFRIBEIEE
BRARAT (SR DI HE
W REZDE  BRERED
E MAITLEEREEEBRS
FZ60%HE - BRRERELNE
MREEAEEETHEARLEE -
MANTELEEREBERSEAX
R REAEESETRERARZS
o HERERARK240,000,000
TC (FHZF R 49271,200,000 7T ) © 5
BERARR AT —+FNH
A=-t+tB22 -

RZZE—+tFXNANH  BRER
T LZEFREER BT 2 40%
R ERE - BREZBE %
REBKGEHEZHE - mxEIl
MZEEFRGHRAEBERES
ZA0%[%HE - BIRIRE B G [E
ERERREAEEETHKE AT
HE - MANTLZEEBIEGEH
BAEEEBSAERFRERAER
ETHERRIZ&%  HERE
AN R 1600000007 (FHERLD

180,800,000 7T ) ° FFBHR AR
AIEBA-ZT—+FARNBZA
5 o

RZZE—+FRA+ERH BLE
ERACRIDABRAR(NRE])
Mg ERERMRCRYIDBERA

Al((HeEREBRDFIIL-_F—0
FhER=Z  —T-RFDAKE
HEE—F-AF+— ARBIHZ
Zﬁ?ﬁﬁz’: ([T —mERER
#F _ZT-RFRAREBHERC
T-haF+-AKRBHZR MBI
&) R IRBEAERERAER

BRANREZBRBCRENE
ZEREZRER ER  ERRME

IR IRRET L - FFIFH R AR A
BER—_Z—tFHA+LAZA
ff o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IR R M AT
For the year ended 31 March 2017 HHE - —+F=ZA=+—HULFE

43. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

(d) On 23 May 2017, Continental Joy entered into the Agreement
with Mr. Lam Chun Ho ("Mr. Lam”), a merchant, in relation
to the acquisition of 670 issued shares, representing 67% of
the equity interests of Good Union (China) Limited (“Good
Union”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability which is principally engaged in investment. Good Union
is wholly-owned by Mr. Lam. Good Union owns 100% equity
interest in Subsidiary A. Subsidiary A is principally engaged
in, inter alia, environment and energy saving technology
development and services. Subsidiary A in turn owns 100%
equity interest in Subsidiary B. Subsidiary B is principally engaged
in exploitation, production and sales of spring water. Mr. Lam has
agreed to sell, and Continental Joy has agreed to purchase, the
shares of 67% equity interests of Good Union for an aggregate
consideration of HK$244 million, which shall be settled by cash.
The relevant conditions precedent of the agreement have been
fulfilled, completion took place on 7 June 2017. Details of which
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 23 May

2017 and 7 June 2017.

Up to the date on the approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the Directors are still assessing the fair values of
Good Union and its subsidiaries’” assets and liabilities to be
recognised at the date of the acquisition of Good Union. The
fair value assessment of goodwill, if any, of Good Union and its
subsidiaries had not been finalized and thus, the recognition of
Good Union and its subsidiaries’ assets and liabilities may subject
to change upon finalization of the valuation. The Directors

expect the valuation will be finalized in 2017.

(e) On 29 June 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Ms. Hu Huifang (#8282 %) and Ms. Shi Xiulan
(B F5H), relating to the acquisition of 100% equity interest of
Shaanxi Tiandi Zhongli Energy Development Company Limited
(BRPE R N EEIREFE R AR A R]) (“Shaanxi Tiandi") at a
consideration of RMB31,200,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$36,816,000). The acquisition of Shaanxi Tiandi has not yet
completed as at 31 March 2017. Subsequently, the Group has
served a termination notice to the vendors for, among other
things, termination of the sale and purchase agreement on 26
May 2017. Details of which are set out in the announcements of

the Company dated 29 May 2017.

44. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 June 2017.

3. EERREE(E)

(d)

(®)

RZZ—+tFRA=+=H"
Continental Joy B2 7 A W8 5 58 A&
(IMEE]DRKEER(FE)A
PRAE ([ER ) e70REFHITRG
(BEZ R EI67%M 3 ) R L ek o B
ERNEBEMK L BRAR -
FENERE - EBBRMNKEEERE
HE - EMBEEMBARAZEE
BEkE - WBARAZTBRE(EFPE
B RB R E e R A KR -
M@ A RIABEE I B A BBz 2 &BA%
BeoMBARBEENERFE - &
EREEBEEK MEEERED
£ M Continental JoyE R E g B &
S6T%AIER () - ARER2448 8
BT WERESEN - ZHEEHE
FREHDEEN R —+F
NAEBEK o FIBEHR A AR
HAR-_T—tFRA-T+=BRZ
E—+FRAEHZAM

BEEHERSEEMB®REAZAE -
ERNETHERREMB A RN
WIEENRE B TRACEERA
BEZRATFE - EBREWERF
ZEEB(WA)ATELERKE
R A EBRRENELGE
ENEBERALGNHELEREE
B EEHEAHREKR-_Z—+F
71:52 °

R-ZT—XNENAZ+HB K&
BEPEFZEIRABTH L LA
V—HhEEWE RAEEBEUR
B A R312000007T (HERLD
36,816,000/7%8 7T ) IR BE PR 79 K b 32 )
RERERERAMRAA([PRA KM ])
2 ERRASAE o PR K 2 YR BB —
T+ F=ZF=+—HHEHAEK -
HEg AEEWR_Z—+tFHA
—tHREBREFEHKIEBENE
(EFBIE)RIEEERE - 515
BN ANRBEHA-_ZS—+tFERHA
“thABZRMH -

44 BETBFESHBHREK

HEMBHRRIDINR T —tF A
“HN\BEEESHAEL KT -

Annual Report 2017 F#

183



FINANCIAL SUMMARY

I EE

For the year ended 31 March 2017 HE—E—+F=ZA=+—HULFE

Results

Revenue

Loss before taxation
Tax (charge)/credit

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Loss for the year from discontinued
operations

Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interests

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Shareholders’ funds

ES

WA

BRI AT B 1R
BE(Ax) /He

RERFELE
X2 EBAR

AEECEILE
XHZER

AERER
FE{ -

ZNSIE: 5SS 2PN
LEBRRER

BERAE

BEME
AfERE

BRE®R
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2013
—ET—=F
HK$'000
FAT

11,957

(199,320)

(199,320)

(199,320)

(197.967)
(1353)

(199,320)

2013
—E-=F
HK$'000
FET

849,35
(331,766)

517,585

Year ended 31 March
HE=A=t—HLEE

2014
—T—mEF
HK$'000
TET

18,189

(349,981)
(114)
(350,095)

(18,966)

(369,061

(207,068)
(161993)

(369,061)

As at 31 March

2014
—T-QF
HK$'000
FET

1,007,677
(90,526)

517,585

2015
—T-RF
HK$'000
FET

(3.560)

(209,686)
(368)

(210,054)

(35,248)

(245302)

(157,152)
(88,150)

(245302)

R=A=t—-H
2015
—T-RF
HK$'000
FET

166328
(573910)

1,089,371

2016
—TRF
HK$'000
FET

4454

(141211
(1,664)

(142,875)

(50,111

(92,764)

(76,205)
(16,559)

(92,764)

2016
—ET—REF
HK$'000
FHTT

2,560,721
(520,853)

2017
—F-tF
HK$°000
TR

(94,121)
317

(93,804)

(93,804)

(93,804)

2017
—F-tF
HK$’000
Ti&x

2,433,016
(557,950)

2,039,868 | EEEATT




* For identification purpose only {2 {5 3!

Asia Resources Holdings Limited
TNERZERER AR
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